STATE OF TENNESSEE
REGULAR MEETING
AIR POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

Nashville Room, 3" Floor Tennessee Tower

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue
In Person and
Remote Access Via WebEx link

Wednesday June 08, 2022

9:30 A.M.
Item Presenter Page
1. Roll Call
2. Approval of the Board Meeting Minutes 02
3. NESHAP Rule Revisions Mark Reynolds 06
4. Bristol TN Lead SIP Revision Board Order 22-009 Paul LaRock 206
5. APC COE Renewal Marc Corrigan 336

e Davidson County Certificate of Exemption
Board Order: 22-005

e Hamilton County Certificate of Exemption
Board Order: 22-006

e Knox County Certificate of Exemption Board
Order: 22-007

e Shelby County Certificate of Exemption Board
Order: 22-008

The meeting will be held in compliance with Tennessee Code Annotated Section 8-44-108, as amended by Chapter 490 of the
1999 Public Acts of the Tennessee General Assembly. The meeting will be conducted permitting participation by electronic or
other means of communication. Consequently, some members of the Tennessee Air Pollution Control Board are allowed to
and may participate by electronic or other means of communication and may not be physically present at the announced

location of the meeting.

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 1




Air Pollution Control Board
of the
State of Tennessee
Regular Meeting

On Wednesday February 09, 2022, at 9:30 A.M., the Air Pollution Control Board of the State
of Tennessee, (hereinafter, referred to as the “Board”), began its meeting on the 3" Floor of
the Tennessee Tower in the Nashville Room. The following Board members were physically

present:

Dr. Ronne Adkins
Mr. Mike Haverstick
Dr. Shawn Hawkins
Mr. Richard Holland
Ms. Caitlin Jennings
Mayor Ken Moore

Ms. Amy Spann

Mr. Greer Tidwell

Mayor Larry Waters

The following Board members joined the meeting via WebEx:
Dr. John Benitez
Dr. Joshua Fu
Dr. Chunrong Jia
Mr. Stephen Moore

The following Board member was absent:

Mr. Jimmy West

Dr. Ronne’ Adkins represented the Chairman, Commissioner David Salyers by proxy. Ms.
Michelle Owenby, Director of the Division of Air Pollution Control, served as the Technical

Secretary.

The Technical Secretary welcomed Board members and those attending via WebEx.

The Vice-Chairman, Mayor Larry Waters, called the meeting to order and asked for a Roll Call
and the response was as follows:

Dr. Adkins Present Dr. Benitez WebEx
Dr. Fu WebEx Mr. Haverstick Present
Dr. Hawkins Present Mr. Holland Present
Ms. Jennings Present Dr. Jia WebEx
Mayor Moore Present Mr. Moore WebEx
Ms. Spann Present Mr. Tidwell Present
Mayor Waters Present Mr. West Absent
Page 1 of 4

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022



Nine (9) Board members were present and Four (4) via WebEx.

Deputy Commissioner, Greg Young, presented the Board with a Bureau of Environment
Update.

Bill Miller with the Office of General Counsel (OGC) presented the board with the Conflict of
Interest. Mr. Miller stated that the Conflict of Interest is at least 8 that “represent the public
interest” as defined by Tenn. Comp. R. & Regs. 0400-30-17-.02(1).

The next item on the agenda was the approval of the minutes from the January 12, 2022,
Board meeting.

Mayor Moore made a motion to approve the minutes and Dr. Benitez seconded the motion.

The Vice-Chairman asked for a Roll Call and the response was as follows:

Dr. Adkins Yes Dr. Benitez Yes
Dr. Fu Yes Mr. Haverstick Yes
Dr. Hawkins Yes Mr. Holland Yes
Ms. Jennings Yes Dr. Jia Yes
Mayor Moore Yes Mr. Moore Yes
Ms. Spann Yes Mr. Tidwell Yes
Mayor Waters Yes

The January 12, 2022, minutes were approved as written.

The motion carried with thirteen (13) affirmative votes.

Mr. Travis Blake with the Division of Air Pollution Control presented a request from Eastman
Chemical Company BO 22-004 for a variance from the prompt notification requirements of
TAPCR 1200-03-20-.03 for excess SO, emissions of less than 24 hours duration. Mr. Blake
answered questions from the Board.

Mr. Holland made a motion to approve, and Mayor Moore seconded the motion.

The Vice-Chairman asked for a Roll Call and the response was as follows:

Dr. Adkins Yes Dr. Benitez Yes
Dr. Fu Yes Mr. Haverstick Yes
Dr. Hawkins Yes Mr. Holland Yes
Ms. Jennings Yes Dr. Jia Yes
Mayor Moore Yes Mr. Moore Abstained
Ms. Spann Yes Mr. Tidwell Yes

Page 2 of 4

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 3



Mayor Waters Yes
The motion carried with twelve (12) affirmative votes and one (1) abstention.

Mr. Mark Reynolds, Division of Air Pollution Control, gave a presentation to the Board
members on the final Regional Haze State Implementation Plan (SIP) BO 22-002. Mr.
Reynolds stated that numerous comments were received during the public comment period.
Mr. Reynolds reviewed some of the comments and the Division’s responses. Mr. Reynolds
stated the definition of regional haze and the main sources of regional haze. The two federal
Class | areas in Tennessee are the Great Smoky Mountains National Park and Joyce Kilmer-
Slick Rock Wilderness Area. The Division has been coordinating with the other southeastern
states through the VISTAS organization. The SIP for the second planning period was due on
July 31, 2021. However, most states have not submitted their SIP’s yet. Mr. Reynolds stated
several of the regional haze rule requirements including the long-term strategy, which
includes enforceable emissions limitations, compliance schedules, and other measures as
necessary to achieve the reasonable progress goals. Facilities were chosen for a reasonable
progress analysis based on an Area of Influence (Aol) analysis and CAMx PSAT photochemical
modeling analysis. A reasonable progress analysis was submitted for Eastman Chemical
Company and TVA Cumberland. Recent data has shown a dramatic decrease in both sulfur
dioxide and nitrogen oxides, which has resulted in monitoring data showing improvement
in visibility. Mr. Reynolds concluded by answering a few questions from the Board members.

Lilly Anderson with National Parks Conservation Association, Amy Kelly with Sierra Club, and
Mallory Kirby addressed the board with comments.

Richard Holland addressed the Board that his company was named in the presentation but

there was no direct effect for voting.

Mayor Moore made a motion to approve, Dr Hawkins seconded the motion.

The Vice-Chairman asked for a Roll Call and the response was as follows:

Dr. Adkins Yes Dr. Benitez Yes

Dr. Fu Yes Mr. Haverstick Yes

Dr. Hawkins Yes Mr. Holland Yes

Ms. Jennings Yes Dr. Jia Yes
Mayor Moore Yes Mr. Moore Abstained
Ms. Spann Yes Mr. Tidwell Yes
Mayor Waters Yes

The motion carried with twelve (12) affirmative votes and one (1) abstention.

Mr. Grant Ruhl with OGC presented the updated/revised 2022 Air Pollution Control Manual
to the board. Mr. Ruhl answered questions from the board.

There being no further business to discuss before the Board, the meeting was adjourned
at 11:35am.

Page 3 of 4

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 4



(Signed) Michelle Owenby, Technical Secretary
Tennessee Air Pollution Control Board

Approved at Nashville, Tennessee on June 8 2022

(Signed) Mayor Larry Waters, Vice-Chairman
Tennessee Air Pollution Control Board

(Signed) David Salyers, Chairman
Tennessee Air Pollution Control Board

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 5

Page 4 of 4



Department of State For Department of State Use Only
Division of Publications

312 Rosa L. Parks Ave., 8th Floor, Snodgrass/TN Tower Sequence Number:
Nashville, TN 37243 .
Phone: 615-741-2650 Rule ID(s):
Email: publications.information@tn.gov File Date:

Effective Date:

Rulemaking Hearing Rule(s) Filing Form

Rulemaking Hearing Rules are rules filed after and as a result of a rulemaking hearing (Tenn. Code Ann. § 4-5-205).

Pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 4-5-229, any new fee or fee increase promulgated by state agency rule shall take effect on July 1, following
the expiration of the ninety (90) day period as provided in § 4-5-207. This section shall not apply to rules that implement new fees or fee
increases that are promulgated as emergency rules pursuant to 8 4-5-208(a) and to subsequent rules that make permanent such emergency
rules, as amended during the rulemaking process. In addition, this section shall not apply to state agencies that did not, during the preceding
two (2) fiscal years, collect fees in an amount sufficient to pay the cost of operating the board, commission or entity in accordance with § 4-29-
121(b).

Agency/Board/Commission: Air Pollution Control Board
Division: Air Pollution Control
Contact Person: Mark A. Reynolds
Address: William R. Snodgrass Tennessee Tower
312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 15" Floor
Nashville, Tennessee
Zip: 37243
Phone: (615) 532-0559
Email: mark.a.reynolds@tn.gov

Revision Type (check all that apply):
~ X Amendment
~ New
__ Repeal

Rule(s) (ALL chapters and rules contained in filing must be listed here. If needed, copy and paste additional
tables to accommodate multiple chapters. Please make sure that ALL new rule and repealed rule numbers are
listed in the chart below. Please enter only ONE Rule Number/Rule Title per row.)

Chapter Number | Chapter Title

0400-30-38 Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
Rule Number Rule Title

0400-30-38-.01 Federal Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
0400-30-38-.02 Reserved

Chapter Number | Chapter Title
1200-03-02 Definitions

Rule Number Rule Title
1200-03-02-.01 General Definitions

Chapter Number | Chapter Title
1200-03-04 Open Burning

Rule Number Rule Title
1200-03-04-.04 Exceptions to Prohibition

Chapter Number | Chapter Title
1200-03-05 Visible Emission Regulations

SS-7039 (October 2021)
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

RDA 1693

oRr


mailto:mark.a.reynolds@tn.gov

Rule Number
1200-03-05-.05

Chapter Number
1200-03-09

Rule Number
1200-03-09-.01
1200-03-09-.02
1200-03-09-.04

Chapter Number
1200-03-11

Chapter Number
1200-03-16

Rule Number
1200-03-16-.01

Chapter Number
1200-03-20

Rule Number
1200-03-20-.03

Chapter Number
1200-03-21

Rule Number
1200-03-21-.01

Chapter Number
1200-03-26

Rule Number
1200-03-26-.02

Chapter Number
1200-03-31

Rule Number
1200-03-31-.01
1200-03-31-.02
1200-03-31-.03

1200-03-31-.04
1200-03-31-.05
1200-03-31-.06
1200-03-31-.07
1200-03-31-.08
1200-03-31-.09
1200-03-31-.10
1200-03-31-.11
1200-03-31-.12
1200-03-31-.13

Rule Title

Standard for Certain Existing Sources

Chapter Title

Construction and Operating Permits

Rule Title

Construction Permits

Operating Permits
Exemptions

Chapter Title
Repealed

Chapter Title

New Source Performance Standards

Rule Title
General Provisions

Chapter Title

Limits on Emissions Due to Malfunctions, Startups, and Shutdowns

Rule Title

Notice Required When Malfunction Occurs

Chapter Title

General Alternate Emission Standards

Rule Title

General Alternate Emission Standard

Chapter Title

Administrative Fees Schedule

Rule Title

Construction and Annual Fees

Chapter Title

Case-by-Case Determinations of Hazardous Air Pollutant Control Requirements

Rule Title
Reserved
Definitions

Intent of the Board for Case-by-Case Determinations of Hazardous Air Pollutant Control

Requirements

Standards for Existing Sources

Standards for New Sources

Opportunity for Early Reductions Schedule
Residual Risk and Revisions to MACT

Reserved
Reserved
Reserved
Reserved
Reserved
Reserved

SS-7039 (October 2021)
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

~N N

RDA 1693



Place substance of rules and other info here. Please be sure to include a detailed explanation of the changes
being made to the listed rule(s). Statutory authority must be given for each rule change. For information on
formatting rules go to

https://sos.tn.gov/products/division-publications/rulemaking-guidelines.

Chapter 0400-30-38
Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants

Amendments

The Table of Contents of Chapter 0400-30-38 Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants is amended by
deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

Table of Contents

0400-30-38-.01 Federal Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
0400-30-38-.02 Reserved

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Rule 0400-30-38-.01 Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines is amended by deleting it in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

0400-30-38-.01 Federal Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
() The provisions of the subparts and appendices of 40 CFR 63 listed in subparagraph (b) of this paragraph
are hereby incorporated by reference as published in the July 1, 2020 edition of the Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR), except as provided in subparagraph (a) of this paragraph. In certain cases, a different
version of the federal regulation is incorporated by reference which will be specified in subparagraph (b)
of this paragraph.
€) Any reference contained in 40 CFR 63 to the:
1. Administrator shall instead be a reference to the Technical Secretary.
2. EPA regional office shall instead be a reference to the EPA Region IV office.
(b) List of federal regulations under 40 CFR Part 63:
1. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart A: General provisions;

2. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart B: Requirements for Control Technology Determinations for
Major Sources in Accordance With Clean Air Act Sections, Sections 112(g) and 112(j);

3. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart D: Regulations Governing Compliance Extensions for Early
Reductions of Hazardous Air Pollutants;

4, 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart F: National Emission Standards for Organic Hazardous Air
Pollutants From the Synthetic Organic Chemical Manufacturing Industry;

5. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart G: National Emission Standards for Organic Hazardous Air
Pollutants From the Synthetic Organic Chemical Manufacturing Industry for Process
Vents, Storage Vessels, Transfer Operations, and Wastewater;

6. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart H: National Emission Standards for Organic Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Equipment Leaks;

7. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart |: National Emission Standards for Organic Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Certain Processes Subject to the Negotiated Regulation for Equipment
Leaks;

SS-7039 (October 2021)
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

RDA 1693

o W


https://sos.tn.gov/products/division-publications/rulemaking-guidelines

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

SS-7039 (October 2021)
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

40 CFR Part 63 Subpart J: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for
Polyvinyl Chloride and Copolymers Production;

Reserved;
40 CFR Part 63 Subpart L: National Emission Standards for Coke Oven Batteries;

40 CFR Part 63 Subpart M: National Perchloroethylene Air Emission Standards for Dry
Cleaning Facilities;

40 CFR Part 63 Subpart N: National Emission Standards for Chromium Emissions From
Hard and Decorative Chromium Electroplating and Chromium Anodizing Tanks;

40 CFR Part 63 Subpart O: Ethylene Oxide Emissions Standards for Sterilization
Facilities;

Reserved;

40 CFR Part 63 Subpart Q: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for
Industrial Process Cooling Towers;

40 CFR Part 63 Subpart R: National Emission Standards for Gasoline Distribution
Facilities (Bulk Gasoline Terminals and Pipeline Breakout Stations);

40 CFR Part 63 Subpart S: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
from the Pulp and Paper Industry;

40 CFR Part 63 Subpart T: National Emission Standards for Halogenated Solvent
Cleaning;

40 CFR Part 63 Subpart U: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutant
Emissions: Group | Polymers and Resins;

Reserved;

40 CFR Part 63 Subpart W: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for
Epoxy Resins Production and Non-Nylon Polyamides Production;

40 CFR Part 63 Subpart X: National Emission Standards For Hazardous Air Pollutants
From Secondary Lead Smelting;

40 CFR Part 63 Subpart Y: National Emission Standards for Marine Tank Vessel Loading
Operations;

Reserved;

40 CFR Part 63 Subpart AA: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
from Phosphoric Acid Manufacturing Plants;

40 CFR Part 63 Subpart BB: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
from Phosphate Fertilizers Production Plants;

40 CFR Part 63 Subpart CC: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
From Petroleum Refineries;

40 CFR Part 63 Subpart DD: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
from Off-Site Waste and Recovery Operations;

40 CFR Part 63 Subpart EE: National Emission Standards for Magnetic Tape
Manufacturing Operations;

RDA 1693

o N



30. Reserved;

31. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart GG: National Emission Standards for Aerospace Manufacturing
and Rework Facilities;

32. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart HH: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
From Oil and Natural Gas Production Facilities;

33. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart Il: National Emission Standards for Shipbuilding and Ship Repair
(Surface Coating);

34. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart JJ: National Emission Standards for Wood Furniture
Manufacturing Operations;

35. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart KK: National Emission Standards for the Printing and Publishing
Industry;

36. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart LL: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Primary Aluminum Reduction Plants;

37. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart MM: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Chemical Recovery Combustion Sources at Kraft, Soda, Sulfite, and Stand-Alone
Semichemical Pulp Mills;

38. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart NN: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Wool Fiberglass Manufacturing at Area Sources;

39. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart OO: National Emission Standards for Tanks—Level 1;

40. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart PP: National Emission Standards for Containers;

41. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart QQ: National Emission Standards for Surface Impoundments;

42. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart RR: National Emission Standards for Individual Drain Systems;

43. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart SS: National Emission Standards for Closed Vent Systems,
Control Devices, Recovery Devices and Routing to a Fuel Gas System or a Process;

44, 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart TT: National Emission Standards for Equipment Leaks—Control
Level 1;

45. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart UU: National Emission Standards for Equipment Leaks—Control
Level 2 Standards;

46. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart VV: National Emission Standards for Oil-Water Separators and
Organic-Water Separators;

47. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart WW: National Emission Standards for Storage Vessels
(Tanks)—Control Level 2;

48. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart XX: National Emission Standards for Ethylene Manufacturing
Process Units: Heat Exchange Systems and Waste Operations;

49. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart YY: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Source Categories: Generic Maximum Achievable Control Technology Standards;

50. Reserved;

51. Reserved;

52. Reserved;

SS-7039 (October 2021) 5 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 10



53. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart CCC: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Steel Pickling—HCI Process Facilities and Hydrochloric Acid Regeneration Plants;

54. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart DDD: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Mineral Wool Production;

55. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart EEE: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
from Hazardous Waste Combustors;

56. Reserved;

57. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart GGG: National Emission Standards for Pharmaceuticals
Production;

58. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart HHH: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
From Natural Gas Transmission and Storage Facilities;

59. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart IIl: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for
Flexible Polyurethane Foam Production;

60. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart JJJ: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutant
Emissions: Group IV Polymers and Resins;

61. Reserved;

62. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart LLL: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
From the Portland Cement Manufacturing Industry;

63. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart MMM: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Pesticide Active Ingredient Production;

64. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart NNN: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Wool Fiberglass Manufacturing;

65. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart OOO: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutant
Emissions: Manufacture of Amino/Phenolic Resins;

66. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart PPP: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutant
Emissions for Polyether Polyols Production;

67. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart QQQ: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Primary Copper Smelting;

68. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart RRR: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Secondary Aluminum Production;

69. Reserved;

70. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart TTT: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Primary Lead Smelting;

71. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart UUU: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Petroleum Refineries: Catalytic Cracking Units, Catalytic Reforming Units, and Sulfur
Recovery Units;

72. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart VVV: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants:
Publicly Owned Treatment Works;

73. Reserved;

SS-7039 (October 2021) 6 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 11



74. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart XXX: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Ferroalloys Production: Ferromanganese and Silicomanganese;

75. Reserved;

76. Reserved;

77. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart AAAA: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Municipal Solid Waste Landfills;

78. Reserved;

79. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart CCCC: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Manufacturing of Nutritional Yeast;

80. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart DDDD: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Plywood and Composite Wood Products;

81. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart EEEE: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Organic Liquids Distribution (Non-Gasoline);

82. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart FFFF: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Miscellaneous Organic Chemical Manufacturing;

83. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart GGGG: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Solvent Extraction for Vegetable Oil Production;

84. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart HHHH: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Wet-Formed Fiberglass Mat Production;

85. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart Illl: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants:
Surface Coating of Automobiles and Light-Duty Trucks;

86. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart JJJJ: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants:
Paper and Other Web Coating;

87. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart KKKK: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Surface Coating of Metal Cans;

88. Reserved;

89. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart MMMM: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Surface Coating of Miscellaneous Metal Parts and Products;

90. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart NNNN: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Surface Coating of Large Appliances;

91. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart OOOO: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Printing, Coating, and Dyeing of Fabrics and Other Textiles;

92. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart PPPP: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Surface Coating of Plastic Parts and Products;

93. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart QQQQ: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Surface Coating of Wood Building Products;

94. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart RRRR: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Surface Coating of Metal Furniture;

95. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart SSSS: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Surface Coating of Metal Coill;

SS-7039 (October 2021) 7 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 12



96. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart TTTT: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Leather Finishing Operations;

97. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart UUUU: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Cellulose Products Manufacturing;

98. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart VVVV: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Boat Manufacturing;

99. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart WWWW: National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Reinforced Plastic Composites Production;

100. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart XXXX: National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Rubber Tire Manufacturing;

101. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart YYYY: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Stationary Combustion Turbines;

102. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart ZZZZ: National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines;

103. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart AAAAA: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Lime Manufacturing Plants;

104. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart BBBBB: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Semiconductor Manufacturing;

105. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart CCCCC: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Coke Ovens: Pushing, Quenching, and Battery Stacks;

106. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart DDDDD: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Major Sources: Industrial, Commercial, and Institutional Boilers and
Process Heaters;

107. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart EEEEE: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Iron and Steel Foundries;

108. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart FFFFF: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Integrated Iron and Steel Manufacturing Facilities;

109. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart GGGGG: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Site Remediation;

110. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart HHHHH: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Miscellaneous Coating Manufacturing;

111. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart IllIl: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants:
Mercury Emissions From Mercury Cell Chlor-Alkali Plants;

112. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart JJJJJ: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Brick and Structural Clay Products Manufacturing;

113. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart KKKKK: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Clay Ceramics Manufacturing;

114. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart LLLLL: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Asphalt Processing and Asphalt Roofing Manufacturing;

115. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart MMMMM: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Flexible Polyurethane Foam Fabrication Operations;

SS-7039 (October 2021) 8 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 13



116. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart NNNNN: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Hydrochloric Acid Production;

117. Reserved;

118. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart PPPPP: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Engine Test Cells/Stands;

119. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart QQQQQ: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Friction Materials Manufacturing Facilities;

120. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart RRRRR: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Taconite Iron Ore Processing;

121. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart SSSSS: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Refractory Products Manufacturing;

122. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart TTTTT: National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Primary Magnesium Refining;

123. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart UUUUU: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Coal- and Oil-Fired Electric Utility Steam Generating Units;

124. Reserved;

125. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart WWWWW: National Emission Standards for Hospital Ethylene
Oxide Sterilizers;

126. Reserved;

127. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart YYYYY: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Area Sources: Electric Arc Furnace Steelmaking Facilities;

128. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart ZZ777: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Iron and Steel Foundries Area Sources;

129. Reserved,;

130. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart BBBBBB: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Source Category: Gasoline Distribution Bulk Terminals, Bulk Plants, and
Pipeline Facilities;

131. Reserved;

132. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart DDDDDD: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Polyvinyl Chloride and Copolymers Production Area Sources;

133. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart EEEEEE: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Primary Copper Smelting Area Sources;

134. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart FFFFFF: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Secondary Copper Smelting Area Sources;

135. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart GGGGGG: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Primary Nonferrous Metals Area Sources—Zinc, Cadmium, and Beryllium;

136. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart HHHHHH: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Paint Stripping and Miscellaneous Surface Coating Operations at Area
Sources;

SS-7039 (October 2021) 9 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 14



137. Reserved;

138. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart JJJJJJ: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Industrial, Commercial, and Institutional Boilers Area Sources;

139. Reserved;

140. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart LLLLLL: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Acrylic and Modacrylic Fibers Production Area Sources;

141. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart MMMMMM: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Carbon Black Production Area Sources;

142. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart NNNNNN: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Chemical Manufacturing Area Sources: Chromium Compounds;

143. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart OOOOOQOO: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Flexible Polyurethane Foam Production and Fabrication Area Sources;

144. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart PPPPPP: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Lead Acid Battery Manufacturing Area Sources;

145. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart QQQQQQ: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Wood Preserving Area Sources;

146. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart RRRRRR: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Clay Ceramics Manufacturing Area Sources;

147. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart SSSSSS: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Glass Manufacturing Area Sources

148. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart TTTTTT: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Secondary Nonferrous Metals Processing Area Sources;

149. Reserved;

150. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart VVVVVV: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Chemical Manufacturing Area Sources;

151. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart WWWWWW: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Area Source Standards for Plating and Polishing Operations;

152. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart XXXXXX: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants Area Source Standards for Nine Metal Fabrication and Finishing Source
Categories;

153. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart YYYYYY: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Area Sources: Ferroalloys Production Facilities;

154. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart ZZ7Z777: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Area Source Standards for Aluminum, Copper, and Other Nonferrous
Foundries;

155. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart AAAAAAA: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Area Sources: Asphalt Processing and Asphalt Roofing Manufacturing;

156. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart BBBBBBB: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Area Sources: Chemical Preparations Industry;

157. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart CCCCCCC: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Area Sources: Paints and Allied Products Manufacturing;

SS-7039 (October 2021) 10 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 15



158. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart DDDDDDD: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Area Sources: Prepared Feeds Manufacturing;

159. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart EEEEEEE: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Gold Mine Ore Processing and Production Area Source Category;

160. Reserved;
161. Reserved;

162. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart HHHHHHH: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutant Emissions for Polyvinyl Chloride and Copolymers Production;

163. Appendix A to Part 63: Test Methods;
164. Appendix B to Part 63: Sources Defined for Early Reduction Provisions;

165. Appendix C to Part 63: Determination of the Fraction Biodegraded (Fbio) in a Biological
Treatment Unit;

166. Appendix D to Part 63: Alternative Validation Procedure for EPA Waste and Wastewater
Methods; and

167.  Appendix E to Part 63: Monitoring Procedure for Nonthoroughly Mixed Open Biological
Treatment Systems at Kraft Pulp Mills Under Unsafe Sampling Conditions.

(2) The provisions of the subparts and appendices of 40 CFR Part 61 listed in subparagraph (b) of this
paragraph are hereby incorporated by reference as published in the July 1, 2020, edition of the Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR), except as provided in subparagraph (a) of this paragraph. In certain cases, a
different version of the federal regulation is incorporated by reference which will be specified in
subparagraph (b) of this paragraph.

(@) Any reference contained in 40 CFR Part 61 to the:
1. Administrator shall instead be a reference to the Technical Secretary; and
2. EPA regional office shall instead be a reference to the EPA Region IV office.
(b) List of Federal Regulations under 40 CFR Part 61:
1. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart A: General provisions;
2. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart B: National Emission Standards for Radon Emissions From
Underground Uranium Mines;
3. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart C: National Emission Standard for Beryllium;
4. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart D: National Emission Standard for Beryllium Rocket Motor
Firing;
5. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart E: National Emission Standard for Mercury;
6. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart F: National Emission Standard for Vinyl Chloride;
7. Reserved;
8. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart H: National Emission Standards for Emissions of Radionuclides
Other Than Radon From Department of Energy Facilities;
9. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart I: National Emission Standards for Radionuclide Emissions
SS-7039 (October 2021) 11 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 16



From Federal Facilities Other Than Nuclear Regulatory Commission Licensees and Not
Covered by Subpart H;

10. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart J: National Emission Standard for Equipment Leaks (Fugitive
Emission Sources) of Benzene;

11. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart K: National Emission Standards for Radionuclide Emissions
From Elemental Phosphorus Plants;

12. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart L: National Emission Standard for Benzene Emissions from
Coke By-Product Recovery Plants;

13. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart M: National Emission Standard for Asbestos;

14. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart N: National Emission Standard for Inorganic Arsenic Emissions
From Glass Manufacturing Plants;

15. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart O: National Emission Standard for Inorganic Arsenic Emissions
From Primary Copper Smelters;

16. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart P: National Emission Standard for Inorganic Arsenic Emissions
From Arsenic Trioxide and Metallic Arsenic Production Facilities;

17. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart Q: National Emission Standards for Radon Emissions From
Department of Energy Facilities;

18. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart R: National Emission Standards for Radon Emissions From
Phosphogypsum Stacks;

19. Reserved;

20. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart T: National Emission Standards for Radon Emissions From the
Disposal of Uranium Mill Tailings;

21. Reserved;

22. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart V: National Emission Standard for Equipment Leaks (Fugitive
Emission Sources);

23. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart W: National Emission Standards for Radon Emissions From
Operating Mill Tailings;

24. Reserved;

25. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart Y: National Emission Standard for Benzene Emissions From
Benzene Storage Vessels;

26. Reserved;

27. Reserved;

28. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart BB: National Emission Standard for Benzene Emissions From
Benzene Transfer Operations;

29. Reserved;

30. Reserved;

31. Reserved;

32. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart FF: National Emission Standard for Benzene Waste Operations;

SS-7039 (October 2021) 12 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 17



33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

Appendix A to Part 61: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants,
Compliance Status Information;

Appendix B to Part 61: Test Methods;
Appendix C to Part 61: Quality Assurance Procedures;
Appendix D to Part 61: Methods for Estimating Radionuclide Emissions; and

Appendix E to Part 61: Compliance Procedures Methods for Determining Compliance
With Subpart I.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Rule 0400-30-38-.02 Pa

int Stripping, Auto Body Refinishing, and Miscellaneous Surface Coating Operations is

amended by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the follow:

0400-30-38-.02 Reserved

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021)

13 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 18



Chapter 1200-03-02
Definitions

Amendments

Subparagraph (g) of paragraph (1) of Rule 1200-03-02-.01 General Definitions is amended by deleting it in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

(@)

“Best available control technology (BACT)” means an emission limitation (including a visible
emission standard) based on the maximum degree of reduction for each pollutant subject to
regulation under these rules which would be emitted from any proposed new or modified air
contaminant source which the Technical Secretary, on a case-by-case bases, taking into account
energy, environmental, and economic impacts and other costs, determines is achievable for such
source or modification through application of production processes or available methods,
systems, and techniques, including fuel cleaning or treatment or innovative fuel combustion
techniques for control of such pollutant. In no event shall application of best available control
technology result in emissions of any pollutant which would exceed the emissions allowed by any
applicable standard under Chapters 0400-30-38 and 1200-03-16 of these rules. If the Technical
Secretary determines that technological or economic limitations on the application of
measurement methodology to a particular class of sources would make the imposition of an
emission standard infeasible, a design, equipment, work practice, or operational standard, or
combination thereof, may be prescribed instead to require the application of best available control
technology. Such standard shall, to the degree possible, set forth the emission reduction
achievable by implementation of such design, equipment, work practice, or operation, and shall
provide for compliance by means which achieve equivalent results.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 14 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 19



Chapter 1200-03-04
Open Burning

Amendments

Part 3 of subparagraph (c) of paragraph (1) of Rule 1200-03-04-.04 Exceptions to Prohibition is amended by
deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

3. All regulated asbestos containing materials have been removed in accordance with part
(2)(b)13 of Rule 0400-30-38-.01; and

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 15 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 20



Chapter 1200-03-05
Visible Emission Regulations

Amendments

Subparagraph (b) of Paragraph (2) of Rule 1200-03-05-.05 Standard for Certain Existing Sources is amended by
deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

(b) The air contaminate source is not regulated under the rules contained in Chapter 0400-30-38,
Chapter 1200-03-16, and Chapters 1200-03-25 and paragraph (4) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 16 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 21



Chapter 1200-03-09
Construction and Operating Permits

Amendments

Subparagraph (d) of paragraph (2) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01 Construction Permits is amended by deleting it in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

(d) “Best available control technology (BACT)” means an emission limitation (including a visible
emission standard) based on the maximum degree of reduction for each pollutant subject to
regulation under these rules which would be emitted from any proposed new or modified air
contaminant source which the Technical Secretary, on a case-by-case basis, taking into account
energy, environmental, and economic impacts and other costs, determines is achievable for such
source or modification through application of production processes or available methods,
systems, and techniques, including fuel cleaning or treatment or innovative fuel combustion
techniques for control of such pollutant. In no event shall application of best available control
technology result in emissions of any pollutant which would exceed the emissions allowed by any
applicable standard under Chapters 0400-30-38 and 1200-03-16 of these rules. If the Technical
Secretary determines that technological or economic limitations on the application of
measurement methodology to a particular class of sources would make the imposition of an
emission standard infeasible, a design, equipment, work practice, or operational standard, or
combination thereof, may be prescribed instead to require the application of best available control
technology. Such standard shall, to the degree possible, set forth the emission reduction
achievable by implementation of such design, equipment, work practice, or operation, and shall
provide for compliance by means which achieve equivalent results. This definition does not apply
to major sources and major modifications, as defined in subparagraph (4)(b) of this rule, which
are subject to the provisions of paragraph (4) of this rule.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Subpart (i) of part 1 of subparagraph (d) of paragraph (4) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01 Construction Permits is
amended by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

® The source or modification would be a major stationary source or major
modification only if fugitive emissions, to the extent quantifiable, are considered
in calculating the potential to emit of the stationary source or modification and
such source does not belong to any of the categories listed under subpart
(b)1:(i), or any other stationary source category which, as of the (effective date of
this rule) is being regulated under Chapters 0400-30-38 and 1200-03-16.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seg. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Subitem XXVII of item (V) of subpart (iv) of part 1 of subparagraph (b) of paragraph (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01
Construction Permits is amended by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

XXVII. Any other stationary source category which, as of August 7,
1980, is being regulated under Chapter 1200-03-16, New Source
Performance Standards or Chapter 0400-30-38, Emission
Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants, or Chapter 1200-03-31,
Standards For Hazardous Air Contaminants For Source
Categories.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seg. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Subitem Il of item (I) of subpart (xi) of part 1 of subparagraph (b) of paragraph (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01
Construction Permits is amended by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

1. The National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
(NESHAP) contained in Chapter 0400-30-38 and Chapter 1200-
03-31 or;

SS-7039 (October 2021) 17 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 22



Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Iltem (XXVII) of subpart (ii) of part 4 of subparagraph (b) of paragraph (8) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01 Construction
Permits is amended by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

(XXVIl) Any other stationary source category which, as of August 7, 1980, is
being regulated under Chapter 1200-03-16, New Source Performance
Standards, or Chapter 0400-30-38, Emission Standards for Hazardous
Air Pollutants. or Chapter 1200-03-31, Standards For Hazardous Air
Contaminants For Source Categories, or 40 CFR Part 60 and 61 (July 1,
1993).

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

The first sentence of subparagraph (b) of paragraph (11) of Rule 1200-03-09-.02 Operating Permits is amended
by deleting “Chapter 1200-03-11" and replacing it with “Chapter 0400-30-38” so that as amended the first
sentence of the subparagraph shall read as follows:

Definitions - The following terms are defined as they uniquely apply to this paragraph. All other terms
shall have the meaning given to them in Chapter 1200-03-02, Chapter 0400-30-38, Chapter 1200-03-30
Chapter 1200-03-31, Chapter 1200-03-32 and Chapter 1200-03-20.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Subpart (iii) of part 1 of subparagraph (c) of paragraph (11) of Rule 1200-03-09-.02 Operating Permits is
amended by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

(iii) Any source, including an area source, subject to a standard or other requirement
under section 112 of the Federal Act, Chapter 0400-30-38, or Chapter 1200-03-
31 except that a source is not required to obtain a permit solely because it is
subject to regulations or requirements under section 112(r) of the Federal Act or
Chapter 1200-03-32;

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Subpart (i) of part 2 of subparagraph (c) of paragraph (11) of Rule 1200-03-09-.02 Operating Permits is amended
by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

® All non-major sources including those subject to Section 112 of the Federal Act
or Chapter 0400-30-38 or Chapter 1200-03-31 and section 111 of the Federal
Act or Chapter 1200-03-16. If the Administrator promulgates future regulations
which prohibit the exemption of a non-major source from the requirements of this
paragraph, such source will be so permitted by the Technical Secretary. Upon
the Administrator's written notification to the Technical Secretary that such
sources must be permitted according to the provisions of this paragraph, the
Technical Secretary shall notify the sources that the applications are due within
180 days of his written notice. The Technical Secretary shall have up to 90 days
to accomplish the notification commencing upon his notification from the
Administrator.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Section A of subitem IV of item (I) of subpart (ii) of part 5 of subparagraph (f) of paragraph (11) of Rule 1200-03-
09-.02 Operating Permits is amended by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

A. A federally enforceable emissions cap assumed to avoid
classification as a modification under any provision of
Title | of the federal Act. Further, federally enforceable
emission caps assumed to avoid classification as a
modification under Chapter 0400-30-38, Chapter 1200-
30-16, Chapter 1200-03-31, paragraph (4) of Rule 1200-

SS-7039 (October 2021) 18 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 23



03-09-.01 or paragraph (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01 are
included in the criteria of this section.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Subitem V of item (I) of subpart (ii) of part 5 of subparagraph (f) of paragraph (11) of Rule 1200-03-09-.02
Operating Permits is amended by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

V. Are not modifications under Title | of the Federal Act or the
federal regulations promulgated pursuant thereto. Further, the
minor permit modification process may be used only for changes
that are not modifications under Chapter 0400-30-38, Chapter
1200-03-31, Chapter 1200-03-16, paragraph (4) of Rule 1200-
03- 09-.01 or paragraph (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01; and

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Paragraph (1) of Rule 1200-03-09-.04 Exemptions is amended by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead
the following:

(1) The permit exemptions listed in paragraph (4) of this rule do not apply if an air contaminant source is
subject to a standard or requirement contained in the following, except if the air contaminant source
belongs to a source category listed in paragraph (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-.07, even if the source itself is
not eligible for authorization, or except where specifically stated:

Chapter 0400-30-38 (Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants);

Chapter 1200-03-18 (Volatile organic compounds);

Chapter 1200-03-19 (Emission standards and monitoring requirements for additional control areas);
Chapter 1200-03-22 (Lead emission standards);

Chapter 1200-03-27 (Nitrogen oxides); and

Paragraph (2) of Rule 1200-03-31-.05 (Case-by-case determinations of hazardous air pollutant
requirements).

In addition, the exemption provided for the air contaminant sources in paragraph (4) of this rule does not
exempt the sources from inclusion in determining if a major stationary source or major modification
construction permit is required under paragraphs (4) and (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Part 10 of subparagraph (a) of paragraph (2) of Rule 1200-03-09-.04 Exemptions is amended by deleting it in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

10. “Hazardous air pollutant” means any air contaminant regulated in Chapter 0400-30-38, or
listed in paragraph (6) of Rule 1200-03-31-.02.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Part 9 of subparagraph (d) of paragraph (4) of Rule 1200-03-09-.04 Exemptions is amended by deleting it in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

9. Any emission unit with the potential to emit radionuclides which will result in a dose to the
most exposed member of the public of less than 0.1 millirem per year. Even though
radionuclide air contaminant sources are regulated under Chapter 0400-30-38, this
exemption is still valid except that recordkeeping and reporting requirements must be
met.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Part 15 of subparagraph (a) of paragraph (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-.04 Exemptions is amended by deleting it in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

SS-7039 (October 2021) 19 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 24



15. “Hazardous air pollutant” means any air contaminant regulated in Chapter 0400-30-38 or
listed in paragraph (6) of Rule 1200-03-31-.02.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Part 3 of subparagraph (c) of paragraph (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-.04 Exemptions is amended by deleting it in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

3. Any emission unit or activity which is a subset of a process emission source, fuel burning
installation, or incinerator, and which has a potential to emit less than 5 tons per year of a
regulated air pollutant, by annual certification of compliance as required in item
(12)(d)L(ii)(I) of Rule 1200-03-09-.02, may, at the discretion of the Technical Secretary,
be considered to meet the monitoring and related recordkeeping and reporting
requirements of subpart (11)(e)1(iii) of Rule 1200-03-09-.02 and part (2)(b)1 of Rule
1200-03-10-.04, and the compliance requirements of subpart (11)(e)3(i) of Rule 1200-03-
09-.02 for that regulated air pollutant except where generally applicable requirements of
the state implementation plan specifically impose monitoring and related record keeping
and reporting requirements, or except where any applicable procedures and methods are
required pursuant to Rule 1200-03-10-.04. This provision shall not relieve any emissions
unit or activity from any applicable standard or requirement under Chapters 0400-30-38
and 1200-03-31, and subparagraph (1)(dd) of Rule 1200-03-02-.01.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Part 28 of subparagraph (f) of paragraph (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-.04 Exemptions is amended by deleting it in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

28. Vacuum cleaning systems used exclusively for industrial, commercial, or residential
housekeeping purposes, except those systems used to collect hazardous air
contaminants regulated by Chapter 0400-30-38.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 20 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 25



Chapter 1200-03-11
Hazardous Air Contaminants

Repeal
Chapter 1200-03-11 Hazardous Air Contaminants is Repealed.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 21 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 26



Chapter 1200-03-16
New Source Performance Standards

Amendment

Subparagraph (a) of paragraph (11) of Rule 1200-03-16-.01 General Provisions is amended by deleting in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

(a) Introduction
This paragraph contains requirements for control devices used to comply with applicable rules of
Chapter 0400-30-38 and this chapter. The requirements are placed here for administrative

convenience and only apply to facilities covered by rules referring to this paragraph.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 22 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 27



Chapter 1200-03-20
Limits on Emissions Due to Malfunctions, Startups, and Shutdowns

Amendment

Paragraph (1) of Rule 1200-03-20-.03 Notice Required When Malfunction Occurs is amended by deleting it in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

(D) When any air contaminant source malfunctions in such a manner as to cause the emission of air
contaminants in excess of the applicable emission standards contained in Division 1200-03 or any permit
issued thereto, or of sufficient duration to cause damage to property or public health, the owner or
operator of the air contaminant source shall promptly notify the Technical Secretary of such malfunction
and provide a statement giving all pertinent facts, including the estimated duration of the malfunction.
Violations of the visible emission standard (excluding visible emissions caused by hazardous air
pollutants named in Chapter 0400-30-38) which occur for less than 20 minutes in one day (midnight to
midnight) need not be reported. Prompt notification will be within 24 hours of the malfunction and shall be
provided by telephone to the Division's Nashville office. The Technical Secretary shall be notified when
the malfunction has been corrected. In attainment and unclassified areas if emissions other than from
sources designated as significantly impacting on a nonattainment area in excess of the standards will not
and do not occur over more than a 24-hour period (or will not recur over more than a 24-hour period) and
no damage to property and or public health is anticipated, notification is not required. Any malfunction that
creates an imminent hazard to health must be reported by telephone immediately to the Division's
Nashville office and to the State Civil Defense.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 23 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 28



Chapter 1200-03-21
General Alternate Emission Standards

Amendment

Subparagraph (d) of paragraph (2) of Rule 1200-03-21-.01 General Alternate Emission Standard is amended by
deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

(d) The pollutants involved in the alternate emission standard must be comparable emissions, and no
interpollutant trades are allowed. Air contaminant sources subject to the standards in Chapter
0400-30-38 cannot apply the alternate emission standard to hazardous air contaminants. Air
contaminant sources subject to emission standards in Chapter 1200-03-16, or paragraph (4) of
Rule 1200-03-09-.01 or subparagraph (5)(b) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01 cannot use an alternate
emission standard, except for reductions in actual emissions below the level required in these
rules. Such reduction may be used as credit for existing source. However, all applicable
standards and requirements established under paragraph (4) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01, under
Chapters 0400-30-38 and 1200-03-16, and according to a lowest-achievement-emission-rate
(LAER) determination under paragraph (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01 must be complied with and are
not superseded or replaced by the alternate emission standard.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 24 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 29



Chapter 1200-03-26
Administrative Fees Schedule

Amendments

Part 1 of subparagraph (i) of paragraph (2) of Rule 1200-03-26-.02 Construction and Annual Fees is amended by
deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

1. Each pollutant regulated under Chapter 0400-30-38 Emission Standards for Hazardous
Air Pollutants (Excluding Transitory Asbestos from construction, demolition, and
renovation).

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Subparts (i) and (ii) of part 1 of subparagraph (i) of paragraph (3) of Rule 1200-03-26-.02 Construction and
Annual Fees are amended by deleting them in their entirety and substituting instead the following:

0] Sources that are subject to federally promulgated hazardous air pollutant
standards that can be imposed under Chapter 0400-30-38 or Chapter 1200-03-
31 will place such regulated emissions in the specific hazardous air pollutant
under regulation. If the pollutant is also in the family of volatile organic
compounds or the family of particulates, the pollutant shall not be placed in that
respective family category.

(ii) A miscellaneous category of hazardous air pollutants shall be used for hazardous
air pollutants listed at part (2)(i)12. of this rule that do not have an allowable
emission standard under Chapter 0400-30-38 or Chapter 1200-03-31. A pollutant
placed in this category shall not be subject to being placed in any other category
such as volatile organic compounds or particulates.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 25 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 30



Chapter 1200-03-31
Case by Case Determinations of Hazardous Air Pollutant Control Requirements

Amendments

Chapter 1200-03-31 Case by Case Determinations of Hazardous Air Pollutant Control Requirements is amended
by deleted in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

Chapter 1200-03-31
Case-by-Case Determinations of Hazardous Air Pollutant Control Requirements

Table of Contents

1200-30-31-.01 Reserved

1200-30-31-.02 Definitions

1200-30-31-.03 Intent of the Board

1200-30-31-.04 Standard for Existing Sources
1200-30-31-.05 Standards for New Sources
1200-30-31-.06 Opportunity for Early Reductions Schedule
1200-30-31-.07 Residual Risk and Revisions to MACT
1200-30-31-.08 Reserved

1200-30-31-.09 Reserved

1200-30-31-.10 Reserved

1200-30-31-.11 Reserved

1200-30-31-.12 Reserved

1200-30-31-.13 Reserved

1200-3-31-.01 Reserved

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

1200-03-31-.02 Definitions - The following definitions are applicable to this chapter:

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)
(5)

(6)

“Major Source” means any stationary source or group of stationary sources located within a contiguous
area and under common control that emits or has the potential to emit considering controls, in the
aggregate, 10 tons per year or more of any hazardous air pollutant or 25 tons per year of any combination
of hazardous air pollutants. In addition, the provisions of subpart (11)(b)14(i) of Rule 1200-03-09-.02 are
recognized as to the grouping or aggregation of emissions for the purpose of calculating emission
potential as it relates to the applicability thresholds of this definition. Additionally, electric utility steam
generating units will not be regulated as major sources until the United States Environmental Protection
Agency decides that they should be so regulated pursuant to Section 112(n) of the federal Clean Air Act.

“Area Source” means any stationary source of hazardous air pollutants that is not a major source. Mobile
sources such as vehicles, trains, planes, ships, et cetera are not area sources.

“New Source” means a stationary source that emits hazardous air pollutants as they are defined in this
paragraph and is constructed or reconstructed on or after the date that the United States Environmental
Protection Agency approves the major source operating permit program submitted by the State of
Tennessee in accordance with Section 502(d) of the federal Clean Air Act.

“Stationary Source” shall have the meaning given to it in subparagraph (1)(ddd) of Rule 1200-03-02-.01.

“Existing Source” is any stationary source that emits hazardous air pollutants as they are defined in
paragraph (6) of this rule and is not a new source.

“Hazardous Air Pollutant” - means any of the following air contaminants:
CAS No. Chemical name

75070 Acetaldehyde
60355 Acetamide

SS-7039 (October 2021) 26 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 31



75058
98862
53963
107028
79061
79107
107131
107051
92671
62533
90040
1332214
71432
92875
98077
100447
92524
117817
542881
75252
106990
156627
133062
63252
75150
56235
463581
120809
133904
57749
7782505
79118
532274
108907
510156
67663
107302
126998
1319773
95487
108394
106445
98828
94757
3547044
334883
132649
96128
84742
106467
91941
111444
542756
62737
111422
121697
64675
119904
60117
119937
79447

SS-7039 (October 2021)

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

Acetonitrile

Acetophenone
2-Acetylaminofluorene
Acrolein

Acrylamide

Acrylic acid

Acrylonitrile

Allyl chloride
4-Aminobiphenyl

Aniline

o-Anisidine

Asbestos

Benzene (including benzene from gasoline)
Benzidine

Benzotrichloride

Benzyl chloride

Biphenyl
Bis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate(DEHP)
Bis(chloromethyl) ether
Bromoform

1,3-Butadiene

Calcium cyanamide

Captan

Carbaryl

Carbon disulfide

Carbon tetrachloride
Carbonyl sulfide

Catechol

Chloramben

Chlordane

Chlorine

Chloroacetic acid
2-Chloroacetophenone
Chlorobenzene
Chlorobenzilate

Chloroform

Chloromethyl methyl ether
Chloroprene
Cresols/Cresylic acid (isomers and mixture)
o-Cresol

m-Cresol

p-Cresol

Cumene

2,4-D, salts and esters

DDE

Diazomethane
Dibenzofurans
1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane
Dibutylphthalate
1,4-Dichlorobenzene(p)
3,3-Dichloro benzidene
Dichloroethyl ether (Bis(2-chloroethyl)ether)
1,3-Dichloropropene
Dichlorvos

Diethanolamine

N,N-Diethyl aniline (N,N-Dimethylaniline)
Diethyl sulfate
3,3-Dimethoxybenzidine
Dimethyl aminoazobenzene
3,3'-Dimethyl benzidine
Dimethyl carbamoy! chloride

27
32

RDA 1693



68122
57147
131113
77781
534521
51285
121142
123911
122667
106898
106887
140885
100414
51796
75003
106934
107062
107211
151564
75218
96457
75343
50000
76448
118741
87683
77474
67721
822060
680319
110543
302012
7647010
7664393
123319
78591
58899
108316
67561
72435
74839
74873
71556
60344
74884
108101
624839
80626
1634044
101144
75092
101688
101779
91203
98953
92933
100027
79469
684935
62759
59892

SS-7039 (October 2021)

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

Dimethyl formamide

1,1-Dimethyl hydrazine

Dimethyl phthalate

Dimethyl sulfate
4,6-Dinitro-o-cresol, and salts
2,4-Dinitrophenol
2,4-Dinitrotoluene

1,4-Dioxane (1,4-Diethyleneoxide)
1,2-Diphenylhydrazine

Epichlorohydrin (1-Chloro-2,3-epoxypropane)

1,2-Epoxybutane

Ethyl acrylate

Ethyl benzene

Ethyl carbamate (Urethane)

Ethyl Chloride (Chloroethane)
Ethylene dibromide (Dibromoethane)
Ethylene dichloride (1,2-Dichlorethane)
Ethylene glycol

Ethylene imine (Aziridine)

Ethylene oxide

Ethylene thiourea

Ethylidene dichloride (1,1-Dichloroethane)
Formaldehyde

Heptachlor

Hexachlorobenzene
Hexachlorobutadiene
Hexachlorocyclopentadiene
Hexachloroethane
Hexamethylene-1,6-diisocyanate
Hexamethylphosphoramide

Hexane

Hydrazine

Hydrochloric acid

Hydrogen fluoride (Hydrofluoric acid)
Hydroquinone

Isophorone

Lindane (all isomers)

Maleic anhydride

Methanol

Methoxychlor

Methyl bromide (Bromomethane)
Methyl chloride (Chloromethane)
Methyl chloroform (1,1,1-Trichloroethane)
Methyl hydrazine

Methyl iodide (lodomethane)

Methyl isobutyl ketone (Hexone)
Methyl isocyanate

Methyl methacrylate

Methyl tert butyl ether

4,4-Methylene bis(2-chloronaniline)
Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane)
Methylene diphenyl diisocyanate (MDI)
4,4'-Methylenedianiline

Naphthalene

Nitrobenzene

4-Nitrobiphenyl

4-Nitrophenol

2-Nitropropane
N-Nitroso-N-methylurea
N-Nitrosodimethylamine
N-Nitrosomorpholine

28
33

RDA 1693



56382 Parathion

82688 Pentachloronitrobenzene (Quintobenzene)
87865 Pentachlorophenol
108952 Phenol
106503 p-Phenylenediamine
75445 Phosgene
7803512 Phosphine
7723140 Phosphorus
85449 Phthalic anhydride
1336363 Polychlorinated biphenyls (Arochlors)
1120714 1,3-Propane sultone
57578 beta-Propiolactone
123386 Propionaldehyde
114261 Propoxur (Baygon)
78875 Propylene dichloride (1,2-Dichloropropane)
75569 Propylene oxide
75558 1,2-Propylenimine (2-Methyl aziridine)
91225 Quinoline
106514 Quinone
100425 Styrene
96093 Styrene oxide
1746016 2,3,7,8-Tetrachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin
79345 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane
127184 Tetrachoroethylene (Perchloroethylene)
7550450 Titanium tetrachloride
108883 Toluene
95807 2,4-Toluene diamine
584849 2,4-Toluene diisocyanate
95534 o-Toluidine
8001352 Toxaphene (chlorinated camphene)
120821 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene
79005 1,1,2-Trichloroethane
79016 Trichloroethylene
95954 2,4,5-Trichlorophenol
88062 2,4,6-Trichlorophenol
121448 Triethylamine
1582098 Trifluralin
540841 2,2,4-Trimethylpentane
108054 Vinyl acetate
593602 Vinyl bromide
75014 Vinyl chloride
75354 Vinylidene chloride (1,1-Dichloroethylene)
1330207 Xylenes (isomers and mixture)
95476 0-Xylenes
108383 m-Xylenes
106423 p-Xylenes
0 Antimony Compounds
0 Arsenic Compounds (inorganic including arsine)
0 Beryllium Compounds
0 Cadmium Compounds
0 Chromium Compounds
0 Cobalt Compounds
0 Coke Oven Emissions
0 Cyanide compounds?
0 Glycol ethers? ©

! X'CN where X = H' or any other group where a formal dissociation may occur. For example KCN or Ca(CN),

2 Include mono- and di-ethers of ethylene glycol, diethylene glycol, and triethylene glycol R-(OCH,CHy),- OR'.

Where:

n=1,20r3:

R = alkyl C7 or less; or

R = phenyl or alkyl substituted phenyl;
SS-7039 (October 2021) 29 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 34



(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

Lead Compounds

Manganese Compounds
Mercury Compounds

Fine mineral fibers®

Nickel Compounds

Polycyclic Organic Matter?
Radionuclides (including radon)®
Selenium Compounds

[cNeoloNoNoNoNeNo)

“Federal Clean Air Act” means the federal statutes found at 42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq. as amended by Public
Law No. 101-549 (November 15, 1990).

“MACT” means maximum achievable control technology. It is a case-by-case determination of what
constitutes a maximum achievable reduction of hazardous air pollutants considering the costs of
achieving the emission reduction and any non-air quality health and environmental impacts and energy
requirements. MACT may include but is not limited to: control equipment, work practice standards,
emission standards, process maodifications or raw materials substitution and/or reformulation.

“GACT” means generally available control technology. It is a case-by-case determination of what
constitutes reasonable and proper control for hazardous air pollutants from area sources. GACT may
include, but is not limited to: control equipment, work practice standards, emission standards, process
modification or raw materials substitution and/or reformulation.

Reserved.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

1200-03-31-.03 Intent of the Board

For Case-by-Case Determinations of Hazardous Air Pollutant Control Requirements:

(1)

(2)

The role of the United States Environmental Protection Agency is recognized by the Board as being
essential in the setting of case-by-case determinations of hazardous air pollutant control requirements.
The federal Agency is in the unique position to conduct research and compile national data bases as to
the source by source control levels that are being achieved or proposed in the regulation of hazardous air
pollutants. As the State of Tennessee does not fully possess these abilities, the Technical Secretary shall
utilize the federal Agency's resources prior to setting a case-by-case hazardous air pollutant requirement.
In addition, the Technical Secretary shall recognize any federal law, federal regulation, or lawfully
promulgated policy of the United States Environmental Protection Agency pertaining to case-by-case
determinations of hazardous air pollutant requirements as the minimum acceptable criteria prior to the
setting of a case-by-case hazardous air pollutant requirement under the provisions of this rule.

The Technical Secretary may consider other applicable criteria in the absence of any data or requirement
of the United States Environmental Protection Agency. In such case, the Technical Secretary shall rely
upon generally accepted engineering principles and any unique aspects of a source category as a whole
that would be a prohibitory factor in the imposition of a requirement for industries in that source category.

R’ =H or alkyl C7 or less; or
OR’ consisting of carboxylic acid ester, sulfate, phosphate, nitrate, or sulfonate.

This action deletes each individual compound in a group called the surfactant alcohol ethoxylates and their derivatives (SAED) from
the glycol ethers category in the list of hazardous air pollutants (HAP) established by section 112(b)(1) of the Clean Air Act (CAA).

3 Includes mineral fiber emissions from facilities manufacturing or processing glass, rock, or slag fibers (or other mineral derived fibers) of
average diameter 1 micrometer or less.

“4Includes organic compounds with than one benzene ring, and which have a boiling point greater than or equal to 100°C.

5a type of atom which spontaneously undergoes radioactive decay.

5 The substance ethylene glycol monobutyl ether (EGBE, 2-Butoxyethanol) (Chemical Abstract Service (CAS) Number 111-76-2) is deleted
from the list of hazardous air pollutants established by 42 U.S.C. 7412(b)(1).

SS-7039 (October 2021) 30 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 35



3)

To the extent possible, it is the Board's intent to impose MACT and GACT limitations equivalent to that
required by the United States Environmental Protection Agency at the time of the case-by-case
determination. Should there be a prudent reason to be more stringent than the federal equivalent the
Technical Secretary may issue a more stringent MACT or GACT requirement. In exercise of the authority
to issue a more stringent requirement, the Technical Secretary shall issue a determination specifying the
rationale employed in the setting of a more stringent requirement. The determination shall accompany the
permit in which the case-by-case determination is declared. As the declaration of a case-by-case
requirement will be specified on a permit, disputes regarding the imposition of MACT or GACT are to be
resolved in the manner prescribed by Rule 1200-03-09-.05. If GACT is done on a permit by rule basis, the
Board will view the public hearing process as the permittee's opportunity to object to the requirements of
GACT. However, the permittee may appeal the applicability of GACT to their operations as to
commenced date or emission/production magnitude applicability thresholds present at their source.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

1200-03-31-.04 Standard for Existing Sources

(1) Major sources will be issued an operating permit pursuant to the provisions of paragraph (11) of Rule
1200-03-09-.02 listing their current hazardous air pollutant emission rate on a pollutant-by-pollutant basis.
These "hollow permits” will remain in effect until one or more of the following activities occur:

(a) When the United States Environmental Protection Agency promulgates MACT for a source
specific category pursuant to Sections 112(d) or (h) of the federal Clean Air Act, the Technical
Secretary shall specify MACT for all existing major sources in that category as a revision to their
"hollow permit". Upon written notification from the Technical Secretary, the source shall have 180
days to prepare their application for a MACT permit revision and submit it to the Technical
Secretary. The Technical Secretary shall process the application by issuing a permit within 9
months of receipt of a complete application. MACT revisions to hollow permits shall be issued
within 18 months of promulgation. A compliance schedule to attain MACT by a date certain shall
be made part of the permit. The length of the schedule to attain compliance shall be determined
by the complexities of coming into compliance and the Board's intent to be equivalent to the
federal MACT. The Technical Secretary shall provide that the source's compliance schedule is at
least as long as the federal rules allow. In most areas, this should not exceed three years. The
Technical Secretary is authorized to grant up to a one-year extension to comply as long as it does
not conflict with the federal requirements and there is sufficient justification to grant the additional
time.

(b) If the United States Environmental Protection Agency fails to meet the Federal Clean Air Act
schedules prescribed in Section 112(e)(1) and/or (3) for timely promulgation of MACT
requirements thereby invoking the "MACT hammer" provisions at Section 112(j) of the federal
Clean Air Act, the Technical Secretary shall specify MACT for all sources in the source category
in question as a permit revision to their "hollow permit". Sources subject to the missed MACT
standard shall file a complete MACT permit revision application with the Technical Secretary no
later than 18 months after the federally missed deadline for the source category. The Technical
Secretary shall process the MACT permit revision application by issuing a permit within 18
months of his receipt of a complete application.

(2) Area sources that are not exempt from the requirement to obtain a permit pursuant to Rule 1200-03-09-
.04 will be issued an operating permit specifying GACT with an appropriate compliance schedule to
achieve that requirement by a date certain within 18 months of the United States Environmental
Protection Agency's promulgation of a source specific GACT standard if they are in that source specific
category. The date to achieve compliance shall be no less than that allowed by the federal rule which
promulgated GACT for that source category. If a source is not exempted from the requirement to obtain a
permit pursuant to Rule 0400-30-09-.04, it shall be the duty of such area source owner or operator to
register their annual emissions of hazardous air pollutants with the Technical Secretary utilizing the forms
prescribed by the Technical Secretary. In the interest of efficiency, the Technical Secretary may bring
proposed regulations to the Board that would permit area sources by rule on a source category specific
basis. It is the intent of the Board that such rule would be effective within 18 months of the federal GACT
promulgation. The rule will also provide that compliance with GACT shall be attained no later than that
specified by the equivalent federal rule.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 31 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 36



Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

1200-03-31-.05 Standards for New Sources

(1)

(2)

Major sources shall utilize MACT as prescribed by the Technical Secretary upon start up regardless of
whether or not the United States Environmental Protection Agency has established MACT under Section
112(d) or (h) of the Federal Clean Air Act. MACT shall be prescribed on the source's construction permit
and transferred to the source's operating permit upon startup of the facility.

Area sources that are not exempt from the requirement to obtain a permit in accordance with Rule 1200-
03-09-.04 shall utilize GACT as prescribed by the Technical Secretary upon start up if the United States
Environmental Protection Agency has established GACT under Section 112(d)(5). GACT shall be
prescribed on the source's construction permit and transferred to the source's operating permit upon
startup of the facility.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seg. and 4-5-201 et seq.

1200-03-31-.06 Opportunity for Early Reductions Schedule

(1)

(2)

®3)

(4)

The owner or operator of an existing source of hazardous air pollutants may be issued an operating
permit allowing six additional years to comply with a future MACT commencing on the compliance date of
that MACT limit if each of the following criteria are satisfied:

(a) The source will utilize control and/or work practices that will result in a 90 per centum or more
reduction in emissions of hazardous air pollutants (95 per centum in the case of hazardous air
pollutants which are particulates).

1. The reduction shall be determined with respect to verifiable and actual emissions in a
base year not earlier than calendar year 1987.

2. If there is evidence that emissions in the base year 1987, or any subsequent base year
are artificially or substantially greater than emissions in other years prior to the
implementation of the early emission reductions, the Technical Secretary shall require the
use of an arithmetic average of the years commencing upon the suspect year and ending
upon the period of time when the person seeking the early reductions schedule files their
plan for the purpose of determining base year emission levels.

3. The Technical Secretary may allow a source to use 1985 or 1986 emission data for the
purpose of determining base year emissions if the source has submitted such data to the
Technical Secretary in a form that can be used to make the baseline calculations and
further that such information was in the Technical Secretary’s possession prior to
November 15, 1990.

The early emission reduction must occur prior to the federal proposal of a source category specific MACT
standard to which the source will be subject. Federal proposal will be considered effective when the
United States Environmental Protection Agency publishes the standard in the Federal Register. The
reduction need not actually occur prior to the federal proposal if the source owner or operator has
committed to an enforceable schedule that extends no further than January 1, 1994.

A major source operating permit must be issued to the source owner or operator pursuant to the
provisions of paragraph (11) of Rule 1200-03-09-.02 detailing the schedule to attain the early emission
reductions and the enforceable emission limit that is to be attained. For the purposes of this paragraph,
the Technical Secretary shall issue the permit within nine months of a complete application.

The early reductions of less toxic hazardous air pollutants shall not be credited toward the reduction of
highly toxic hazardous air pollutants (such as, but not limited to chlorinated dioxins and furans) that pose
high risks of adverse public health effects associated with exposure to small quantities of such highly
toxic hazardous air pollutants. The Technical Secretary shall use the relative risks of chlorinated dioxins
and furans as a qualitative benchmark in determining whether or not a hazardous air pollutant is highly
toxic.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 32 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 37



Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.
1200-03-31-.07 Residual Risk and Revisions to MACT

(2) MACT standards are subject to revision if the United States Environmental Protection Agency determines
that the existing MACT standards are insufficient to protect the public pursuant to the residual risk
provisions of Section 112(f) of the federal Clean Air Act. Upon such finding, the Technical Secretary shall
modify previously set MACT limitations in that source category to conform to the federally promulgated
revised MACT standards within 18 months of such federal promulgation. The modification will be a permit
revision to the source's operating permit consistent with the provisions of paragraph (11) of Rule 1200-03-
09-.02. The Technical Secretary shall prescribe a compliance schedule on the permit amendment that
will specify an expeditious date to attain compliance with the revised MACT standards. The length of the
schedule will be determined by the complexities of coming into compliance and the Board's desire to be
equivalent to any federally revised MACT requirements.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.
1200-03-31-.08 through 1200-03-31-.12 Reserved
Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.
1200-03-31-.13 Reserved

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 33 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 38



* If a roll-call vote was necessary, the vote by the Agency on these rulemaking hearing rules was as follows:

Board Member Aye | No Abstain | Absent | Sighature
(if required)

Dr. Ronné Adkins
Commissioner's Designee, Dept. of
Environment and Conservation

Dr. John Benitez
Licensed Physician with experience in health
effects of air pollutants

Dr. Joshua Fu
Involved with Institution of Higher Learning on
air pollution evaluation and control

Mike Haverstick
Working in management in Private
Manufacturing

Dr. Shawn A. Hawkins
Working in field related to Agriculture or
Conservation

Richard Holland
Working for Industry with technical experience

Caitlin Roberts Jennings
Small Generator of Air Pollution representing
Automotive Interests

Dr. Chunrong Jia
Environmental Interests

Ken Moore
Working in Municipal Government

Stephen Moore
Working for Industry with technical experience

Amy Spann, PE
Registered Professional Engineer

Greer Tidwell, Jr.
Conservation Interest

Larry Waters
County Mayor

Jimmy West
Commissioner's Designee, Dept. of Economic
and Community Development

| certify that this is an accurate and complete copy of rulemaking hearing rules, lawfully promulgated and adopted
by the Air Pollution Control Board on 06/08/2022 and is in compliance with the provisions of T.C.A. § 4-5-222.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 34 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 39



| further certify the following:

Notice of Rulemaking Hearing filed with the Department of State on: 10/20/2021
Rulemaking Hearing(s) Conducted on: (add more dates). 12/15/2021
Date:
Signature:

Name of Officer: Michelle W. Owenby

Title of Officer: Technical Secretary

Agency/Board/Commission:  Air Pollution Control Board

Rule Chapter Number(s): 0400-30-38, 1200-03-02, 1200-03-04, 1200-03-05, 1200-03-09, 1200-03-11,

1200-03-16, 1200-03-20, 1200-03-21, 1200-03-26, and 1200-03-31

All rulemaking hearing rules provided for herein have been examined by the Attorney General and Reporter of the
State of Tennessee and are approved as to legality pursuant to the provisions of the Administrative Procedures
Act, Tennessee Code Annotated, Title 4, Chapter 5.

Herbert H. Slatery Il
Attorney General and Reporter

Date

Department of State Use Only

Filed with the Department of State on:

Effective on:

Tre Hargett
Secretary of State

SS-7039 (October 2021) 35 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 40



Public Hearing Comments

One copy of a document that satisfies T.C.A. § 4-5-222 must accompany the filing.

1. Comment:

Response:

The Division of Air Pollution Control (Division), on behalf of Air Pollution Control Board (Board),
received a comment from the Tennessee Chamber of Commerce and Industry (Chamber). The
comment stated that the Chamber understands that the purpose of the proposed amendment is
to incorporate the National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) by
reference to create more efficiency for the Division since these requirements cannot be enforced
unless they are adopted in the state regulations or referenced in permits. However, it was
presented to the Board that the Board would still be required to adopt the standards each year
and thus would have the opportunity to review and consider whether the exact federal standards
are best for Tennessee or whether a variation (equally as stringent) is more appropriate. The
Chamber asked for clarification on how the Division will ensure that any future amendment of the
NESHAP standards will be subject to review and approval of the Board prior to adoption in
Tennessee.

The Division intends to keep Chapter 0400-30-38 current with the comparable federal regulations
by updating Chapter 0400-30-38 on an annual basis. Any future revision to Chapter 0400-30-38
would require a rulemaking hearing notice to be filed with the Office of the Secretary of State and
a rulemaking hearing prior to consideration by the Board.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 36 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 41



Regulatory Flexibility Addendum

Pursuant to T.C.A. 88 4-5-401 through 4-5-404, prior to initiating the rule making process, all agencies shall
conduct a review of whether a proposed rule or rule affects small business.

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

The type or types of small business and an identification and estimate of the number of small businesses
subject to the proposed rule that would bear the cost of, or directly benefit from the proposed rule.

Small businesses are already subject to the National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
(NESHAP) that the Board is incorporating by reference. It is estimated that less than 250 small
businesses per year are subject to the current NESHAP and likewise subject to this rulemaking.

The projected reporting, recordkeeping, and other administrative costs required for compliance with the
proposed rule, including the type of professional skills necessary for preparation of the report or record.

This rulemaking does not add any additional reporting, recordkeeping, and other administrative costs.
The NESHAP already require reporting and recordkeeping. There is some skill necessary for preparing
reports and records. An employee at a small business with a degree in engineering or environmental
studies would generally prepare the reports or records; however, a college degree is not necessary.

A statement of the probable effect on impacted small businesses and consumers.

This rulemaking will not impose any additional requirements on small businesses currently subject to the
NESHAP.

A description of any less burdensome, less intrusive or less costly alternative methods of achieving the
purpose and objectives of the proposed rule that may exist, and to what extent the alternative means
might be less burdensome to small business.

The Division of Air Pollution Control on behalf of the Board evaluated how the other states in EPA Region
IV were enforcing NESHAP. All states in EPA Region IV other than Tennessee have incorporated the
NESHAP regulations by reference. Also, the EPA has recommended adoption by reference.

A comparison of the proposed rule with any federal or state counterparts.

The other seven states in EPA Region IV have adopted NESHAP regulations by reference. This
rulemaking will have no impact on attracting or detracting economic activity in Tennessee.

Analysis of the effect of the possible exemption of small businesses from all or any part of the
requirements contained in the proposed rule.

There is no exemption available for small businesses from the requirements of the NESHAP since these
regulations are based on the type and amount of air pollutants emitted from a source. The only way for a
small business to no longer be subject to the requirements of the NESHAP would be to eliminate the
emission of air pollutants from the source.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 37 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 42



Impact on Local Governments

Pursuant to T.C.A. 88 4-5-220 and 4-5-228, “On any rule and regulation proposed to be promulgated, the
proposing agency shall state in a simple declarative sentence, without additional comments on the merits for the
policy of the rule or regulation, whether the rule or regulation may have a projected financial impact on local
governments.” The statement shall describe the financial impact in terms of increase in expenditures or decrease

in revenues.”

The Board does not believe this rulemaking will result in an increase in expenditures or decrease in revenues for
local governments.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 38 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 43



Additional Information Required by Joint Government Operations Committee
All agencies, upon filing a rule, must also submit the following pursuant to T.C.A. § 4-5-226(i)(1).

(A) A brief summary of the rule and a description of all relevant changes in previous regulations effectuated by
such rule;

The proposed amendments to Chapter 0400-30-38 will incorporate by reference all National Emission
Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) from 40 C.F.R. Parts 61 and 63. Currently, the requirements
of a NESHAP must be placed in a permit before the State of Tennessee can enforce them. The Tennessee Air
Pollution Control Board (Board) proposes to repeal all of Chapter 1200-03-11 and one rule in Chapter 1200-03-
31, which currently reproduce some, but not all, of the NESHAP regulations. The proposed rule will incorporate
by reference the federal NESHAP regulations and allow the Technical Secretary of the Board to enforce these
federal regulations directly. In addition, current references in other rules to Chapter 1200-03-11 will be revised to
reference to Chapter 0400-30-38.

(B) A citation to and brief description of any federal law or regulation or any state law or regulation mandating
promulgation of such rule or establishing guidelines relevant thereto;

Pursuant to Clean Air Act section 112, Tennessee is required to enforce the NESHAP as part of its federally
authorized air program and incorporating the NESHAP into Chapter 0400-30-38 will streamline permitting and
compliance-related evaluations. According to Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-103 the intent an
purpose of Tennessee Code Annotated Title 68, Chapter 201, Part 1 is to maintain purity of the air resources of
the state consistent with the protection of normal health, general welfare, and physical property of the people,
maximum employment and the full industrial development of the state and for the Board to do so through the
prevention, abatement, and control of air pollution by all practical and economically feasible methods.

(C) Identification of persons, organizations, corporations or governmental entities most directly affected by this
rule, and whether those persons, organizations, corporations or governmental entities urge adoption or
rejection of this rule;

Persons, organizations, corporations, or governmental entities most directly affected by this rule are regulated
facilities that are subject to the NESHAP. The Air Pollution Control Board has not received any indication from
these persons that they object to this rulemaking. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency is a proponent of
this rulemaking.

(D) Identification of any opinions of the attorney general and reporter or any judicial ruling that directly relates to
the rule or the necessity to promulgate the rule;

The Board is not aware any. |

(E) An estimate of the probable increase or decrease in state and local government revenues and expenditures,
if any, resulting from the promulgation of this rule, and assumptions and reasoning upon which the estimate
is based. An agency shall not state that the fiscal impact is minimal if the fiscal impact is more than two
percent (2%) of the agency's annual budget or five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000), whichever is less;

This rulemaking will not increase or decrease state or local government revenues and expenditures. |

(F) Identification of the appropriate agency representative or representatives, possessing substantial knowledge
and understanding of the rule;

Mark A. Reynolds

Division of Air Pollution Control

William R. Snodgrass Tennessee Tower
312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 15th Floor
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

(615) 532-0559
mark.a.reynolds@tn.gov

(G) Identification of the appropriate agency representative or representatives who will explain the rule at a
scheduled meeting of the committees;

SS-7039 (October 2021) 39 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 44


mailto:mark.a.reynolds@tn.gov

Horace Tipton
Legislative Liaison
Office of General Counsel

(H) Office address, telephone number, and email address of the agency representative or representatives who

will explain the rule at a scheduled meeting of the committees; and

Office of General Counsel

Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation
William R. Snodgrass Tennessee Tower

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 2nd Floor

Nashville, Tennessee 37243

(615) 253-5339

Horace.Tipton@tn.gov

(0

Any additional information relevant to the rule proposed for continuation that the committee requests.

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)

(5)

A description of the action proposed, the purpose of the action, the legal authority for the action and the
plan for implementing the action.

The action proposed is to incorporate by reference all National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants (NESHAP) from 40 CFR Parts 61 and 63. The proposed rule will incorporate by reference the
NESHAP regulations and allow the Technical Secretary of the Board to enforce these federal
regulations directly instead of including them in individual permits. The statutory authority for this
rulemaking is Tennessee Code Annotated Title 68, Chapter 201, Part 1. The NESHAP regulations
protect public health by limiting the emissions of air pollution. These rules effectuate the intent of
Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-103 “to maintain purity of the air resources of the state
consistent with the protection of normal health, general welfare and physical property of the people,
maximum employment and the full industrial development of the state” and for the board to do so
“through the prevention, abatement and control of air pollution by all practical and economically feasible
methods.”

A determination that the action is the least-cost method for achieving the stated purpose.

This rulemaking is believed to be the least-cost method for the State to enforce the NESHAP
regulations. The Division of Air Pollution Control (Division) evaluated how the other states in EPA
Region IV were enforcing the NESHAP regulations. The other seven states in EPA Region IV have
incorporated the NESHAP regulations by reference. Also, the EPA has recommended adoption by
reference.

A comparison of the cost-benefit relation of the action to nonaction.

This rulemaking incorporates by reference all federal NESHAP and authorizes the Technical Secretary
to enforce these regulations directly. There will be no additional costs associated with the proposed rule.
Regulated facilities are already required to comply with the most current version of the NESHAP
regardless of whether they are incorporated in a permit, because EPA has authority under Clean Air Act
section 112 to enforce the federal NESHAP regulations in states. If the rules are not promulgated, the
Technical Secretary will not be able to enforce the NESHAP directly in the event that a permit for a
regulated source has not yet been issued or must be revised to incorporate the relevant NESHAP
provisions. Based on this comparison, the benefits of moving forward with this rulemaking outweigh the
costs.”

A determination that the action represents the most efficient allocation of public and private resources.

This action represents the most efficient allocation of public and private resources. The NESHAP
regulations help protect public health by limiting the emissions of air pollution. By making these
changes, the Board will full incorporate the federal regulations so that they can be directly enforced by
the Technical Secretary.

A determination of the effect of the action on competition.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 40 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 45


mailto:Horace.Tipton@tn.gov

This rulemaking will not affect competition.

(6) A determination of the effect of the action on the cost of living in the geographical area in which the
action would occur.

Cost of living in the geographical area in which the action would occur will not be affected.

(7 A determination of the effect of the action on employment in the geographical area in which the action
would occur.

It is not anticipated that the action will affect employment.

(8) The source of revenue to be used for the action.

The action can be accommodated with existing resources.

(9) A conclusion as to the economic impact upon all persons substantially affected by the action, including

an analysis containing a description as to which persons will bear the costs of the action and which
persons will benefit directly and indirectly from the action.
There will be no additional costs associated with this rulemaking. Regulated facilities are already
required to comply with the most current version of the NESHAP regulations regardless of whether they
are incorporated in a permit, because EPA has authority under Clean Air Act section 112 to enforce the
NESHAP regulations in states. However, this rule will allow the Technical Secretary to enforce the most
current version of the federal requirements even if the provisions of the current version have not been
incorporated into a permit.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 41 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 46



Department of State

For Department of State Use Only

Division of Publications

312 Rosa L. Parks Ave., 8th Floor, Snodgrass/TN Tower

Nashville, TN 37243
Phone: 615-741-2650

Email: publications.information@tn.gov

Sequence Number:
Rule ID(s):
File Date:

Effective Date:

Rulemaking Hearing Rule(s) Filing Form

Rulemaking Hearing Rules are rules filed after and as a result of a rulemaking hearing (Tenn. Code Ann. § 4-5-205).

Pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 4-5-229, any new fee or fee increase promulgated by state agency rule shall take effect on July 1, following
the expiration of the ninety (90) day period as provided in § 4-5-207. This section shall not apply to rules that implement new fees or fee
increases that are promulgated as emergency rules pursuant to 8 4-5-208(a) and to subsequent rules that make permanent such emergency
rules, as amended during the rulemaking process. In addition, this section shall not apply to state agencies that did not, during the preceding
two (2) fiscal years, collect fees in an amount sufficient to pay the cost of operating the board, commission or entity in accordance with § 4-29-

121(b).

Agency/Board/Commission:

Air Pollution Control Board

Division: Air Pollution Control
Contact Person: Mark A. Reynolds
Address: William R. Snodgrass Tennessee Tower

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 15™ Floor
Nashville, Tennessee
Zip: 37243
Phone: (615) 532-0559
Email: mark.a.reynolds@tn.gov

Revision Type (check all that apply):

X Amendment
New
Repeal

Rule(s) (ALL chapters and rules contained in filing must be listed here. If needed, copy and paste additional
tables to accommodate multiple chapters. Please make sure that ALL new rule and repealed rule numbers are
listed in the chart below. Please enter only ONE Rule Number/Rule Title per row.)

Chapter Number

Chapter Title

0400-30-38

Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants

Rule Number

Rule Title

0400-30-38-.01

0400-30-38-.02

Stationary-Reciprocating-thternal Combustion-Engines Federal Standards for Hazardous

Chapter Number

Chapter Title

1200-03-02

Definitions

Rule Number

Rule Title

1200-03-02-.01

General Definitions

Chapter Number

Chapter Title

1200-03-04

Open Burning

Rule Number

Rule Title

1200-03-04-.04

Exceptions to Prohibition

SS-7039 (October 2021) 1

RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 47


mailto:mark.a.reynolds@tn.gov

Chapter Number

Chapter Title

1200-03-05

Visible Emission Regulations

Rule Number

Rule Title

1200-03-05-.05

Standard for Certain Existing Sources

Chapter Number

Chapter Title

1200-03-09

Construction and Operating Permits

Rule Number

Rule Title

1200-03-09-.01

Construction Permits

1200-03-09-.02

Operating Permits

1200-03-09-.04

Exemptions

Chapter Number

Chapter Title

1200-03-11

Hazardous-Air-Contaminants Repealed

Rule Number

Rule Title

Chapter Number

Chapter Title

1200-03-16

New Source Performance Standards

Rule Number

Rule Title

1200-03-16-.01

General Provisions

Chapter Number

Chapter Title

1200-03-20

Limits on Emissions Due to Malfunctions, Startups, and Shutdowns

Rule Number

Rule Title

1200-03-20-.03

Notice Required When Malfunction Occurs

Chapter Number

Chapter Title

1200-03-21

General Alternate Emission Standards

Rule Number

Rule Title

1200-03-21-.01

General Alternate Emission Standard

Chapter Number

Chapter Title

1200-03-26

Administrative Fees Schedule

Rule Number

Rule Title

1200-03-26-.02

Construction and Annual Fees

Chapter Number

Chapter Title

1200-03-31 Case By Case Case-by-Case Determinations of Hazardous Air Pollutant Control
Requirements

Rule Number Rule Title

SS-7039 (October 2021) 2 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 48



1200-03-31-.01

General-Provisions-[Reserved] Reserved

1200-03-31-.02

Definitions

1200-03-31-.03

Intent of the Board for Case-by-Case Case-by-Case Determinations of Hazardous Air
Pollutant Control Requirements

1200-03-31-.04

Standards for Existing Sources

1200-03-31-.05

Standard Standards for New Sources

1200-03-31-.06

Opportunity for Early Reductions Schedule

1200-03-31-.07

Residual Risk and Revisions to MACT

1200-03-31-.08 Reserved
1200-03-31-.09 Reserved
1200-03-31-.10 Reserved
1200-03-31-.11 Reserved
1200-03-31-.12 Reserved

1200-03-31-.13

Perehloroethylene-Air-Emission-StandardsforBry-Cleaning-Facilities Reserved

SS-7039 (October 2021) 3

RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 49



Place substance of rules and other info here. Please be sure to include a detailed explanation of the changes
being made to the listed rule(s). Statutory authority must be given for each rule change. For information on
formatting rules go to

https://sos.tn.gov/products/division-publications/rulemaking-guidelines.

Chapter 0400-30-38
Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants

Amendments

The Table of Contents of Chapter 0400-30-38 Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants is amended by
deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

Table of Contents

0400-30-38-.01 Stationary—Reciprocating—tnternal-Combustion—Engines Federal Standards for Hazardous Air

Pollutants
0400-30-38-.02 Pai

Reserved
Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Rule 0400-30-38-.01 Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines is amended by deleting it in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

0400-30-38-.01 Stationary-Reciprocating-tnternal- Combustion-Engines Federal Standards for Hazardous Air

Pollutants

(2) ubjectto-the provisions-of thisrule-may
07 The provisions of the subparts and
appendices of 40 CFR 63 listed in_subparagraph (b) of this paragraph are hereby incorporated by
reference as published in the July 1, 2020 edition of the Code of Federal Requlations (CFR), except as
provided in_subparagraph (a) of this paragraph. In certain cases, a different version of the federal
requlation is incorporated by reference which will be specified in subparagraph (b) of this paragraph.
(a) Any reference contained in 40 CFER 63 to the:
1. Administrator shall instead be a reference to the Technical Secretary.
2. EPA regional office shall instead be a reference to the EPA Region 1V office.
(b) List of federal requlations under 40 CFR Part 63:
1. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart A: General provisions;
2. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart B: Requirements for Control Technology Determinations for
Major Sources in Accordance With Clean Air Act Sections, Sections 112(g) and 112());
3. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart D: Regulations Governing Compliance Extensions for Early
Reductions of Hazardous Air Pollutants;
4. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart F: National Emission Standards for Organic Hazardous Air
Pollutants From the Synthetic Organic Chemical Manufacturing Industry;
5. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart G: National Emission Standards for Organic Hazardous Air
Pollutants From the Synthetic Organic Chemical Manufacturing Industry for Process
Vents, Storage Vessels, Transfer Operations, and Wastewater;
6. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart H: National Emission Standards for Organic Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Equipment Leaks;
7. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart |: National Emission Standards for Organic_Hazardous Air
SS-7039 (October 2021) 4 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 50


https://sos.tn.gov/products/division-publications/rulemaking-guidelines

Pollutants for Certain Processes Subject to the Negotiated Regulation for Equipment
Leaks:

8. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart J: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for
Polyvinyl Chloride and Copolymers Production;

9. Reserved:

10. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart L: National Emission Standards for Coke Oven Batteries;

11. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart M: National Perchloroethylene Air Emission Standards for Dry
Cleaning Facilities;

12. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart N: National Emission Standards for Chromium Emissions From
Hard and Decorative Chromium Electroplating and Chromium Anodizing Tanks;

13. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart O: Ethylene Oxide Emissions Standards for Sterilization
Facilities;

14. Reserved;

15. 40 CFER Part 63 Subpart Q: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for
Industrial Process Cooling Towers;

16. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart R: National Emission Standards for Gasoline Distribution
Facilities (Bulk Gasoline Terminals and Pipeline Breakout Stations);

17. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart S: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
from the Pulp and Paper Industry;

18. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart T: National Emission Standards for Halogenated Solvent
Cleaning;

19. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart U: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutant
Emissions: Group | Polymers and Resins;

20. Reserved;

21. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart W: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for
Epoxy Resins Production and Non-Nylon Polyamides Production;

22. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart X: National Emission Standards For Hazardous Air Pollutants
From Secondary Lead Smelting;

23. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart Y: National Emission Standards for Marine Tank Vessel Loading
Operations;

24. Reserved;

25. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart AA: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
from Phosphoric Acid Manufacturing Plants;

26. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart BB: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
from Phosphate Fertilizers Production Plants;

27. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart CC: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
From Petroleum Refineries;

28. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart DD: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
from Off-Site Waste and Recovery Operations;

SS-7039 (October 2021) 5 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 51



29. 40 CFR_Part 63 Subpart EE: National Emission Standards for Magnetic Tape
Manufacturing Operations;

30. Reserved;

31. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart GG: National Emission Standards for Aerospace Manufacturing
and Rework Facilities;

32. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart HH: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
From Oil and Natural Gas Production Facilities;

33. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart Il: National Emission Standards for Shipbuilding and Ship Repair
(Surface Coating);

34. 40 CFR_Part 63 Subpart JJ: National Emission Standards for Wood Furniture
Manufacturing Operations;

35. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart KK: National Emission Standards for the Printing and Publishing
Industry;

36. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart LL: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Primary Aluminum Reduction Plants;

37. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart MM: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Chemical Recovery Combustion Sources at Kraft, Soda, Sulfite, and Stand-Alone
Semichemical Pulp Mills;

38. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart NN: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Wool Fiberglass Manufacturing at Area Sources;

39. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart OO: National Emission Standards for Tanks—Level 1;

40. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart PP: National Emission Standards for Containers;

41. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart QQ: National Emission Standards for Surface Impoundments;

42. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart RR: National Emission Standards for Individual Drain Systems;

43. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart SS: National Emission Standards for Closed Vent Systems,
Control Devices, Recovery Devices and Routing to a Fuel Gas System or a Process;

44. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart TT: National Emission Standards for Equipment Leaks—Control
Level 1;

45. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart UU: National Emission Standards for Equipment Leaks—Control
Level 2 Standards;

46. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart VV: National Emission Standards for Oil-Water Separators and
Organic-Water Separators;

47. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart WW: National Emission Standards for Storage Vessels
(Tanks)—Control Level 2;

48. 40 CFER Part 63 Subpart XX: National Emission Standards for Ethylene Manufacturing
Process Units: Heat Exchange Systems and Waste Operations;

49. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart YY: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Source Cateqories: Generic Maximum Achievable Control Technology Standards;

50. Reserved;

SS-7039 (October 2021) 6 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 52



51. Reserved;

52. Reserved;

53. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart CCC: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Steel Pickling—HCI Process Facilities and Hydrochloric Acid Regeneration Plants;

54. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart DDD: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Mineral Wool Production;

55. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart EEE: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
from Hazardous Waste Combustors;

56. Reserved;

57. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart GGG: National Emission Standards for Pharmaceuticals
Production;

58. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart HHH: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
From Natural Gas Transmission and Storage Facilities;

59. 40 CFER Part 63 Subpart Ill: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for
Flexible Polyurethane Foam Production;

60. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart JJJ: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutant
Emissions: Group 1V Polymers and Resins;

61. Reserved;

62. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart LLL: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
From the Portland Cement Manufacturing Industry;

63. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart MMM: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Pesticide Active Ingredient Production;

64. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart NNN: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Wool Fiberglass Manufacturing;

65. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart OOO: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutant
Emissions: Manufacture of Amino/Phenolic Resins;

66. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart PPP: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutant
Emissions for Polyether Polyols Production;

67. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart Q0QQ: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Primary Copper Smelting;

68. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart RRR: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Secondary Aluminum Production;

69. Reserved;

70. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart TTT: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Primary Lead Smelting;

71. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart UUU: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Petroleum Refineries: Catalytic Cracking Units, Catalytic Reforming Units, and Sulfur
Recovery Units;

72. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart VVV: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants:
Publicly Owned Treatment Works;

SS-7039 (October 2021) 7 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 53



73. Reserved;

74. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart XXX: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Ferroalloys Production: Ferromanganese and Silicomanganese;

75. Reserved;

76. Reserved;

77. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart AAAA: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Municipal Solid Waste Landfills;

78. Reserved;

79. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart CCCC: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Manufacturing of Nutritional Yeast;

80. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart DDDD: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Plywood and Composite Wood Products;

81. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart EEEE: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Organic Liquids Distribution (Non-Gasoline);

82. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart FFFF: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Miscellaneous Organic Chemical Manufacturing;

83. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart GGGG: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Solvent Extraction for Vegetable Oil Production;

84. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart HHHH: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Wet-Formed Fiberglass Mat Production;

85. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart Illl: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants:
Surface Coating of Automobiles and Light-Duty Trucks;

86. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart JJJJ: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants:
Paper and Other Web Coating;

87. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart KKKK: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Surface Coating of Metal Cans;

88. Reserved;

89. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart MMMM: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Surface Coating of Miscellaneous Metal Parts and Products;

90. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart NNNN: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Surface Coating of Large Appliances;

91. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart OOOQ: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Printing, Coating, and Dyeing of Fabrics and Other Textiles;

92. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart PPPP: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Surface Coating of Plastic Parts and Products;

93. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart OO0QQ: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Surface Coating of Wood Building Products;

94. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart RRRR: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Surface Coating of Metal Furniture;

SS-7039 (October 2021) 8 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 54



95. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart SSSS: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Surface Coating of Metal Coil;

96. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart TTTT: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
for Leather Finishing Operations;

97. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart UUUU: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Cellulose Products Manufacturing;

98. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart VVVV: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Boat Manufacturing;

99. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart WWWW: National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Reinforced Plastic Composites Production;

100. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart XXXX: National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Rubber Tire Manufacturing;

101. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart YYYY: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Stationary Combustion Turbines;

102. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart ZZ77: National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines;

103. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart AAAAA: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Lime Manufacturing Plants;

104. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart BBBBB: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Semiconductor Manufacturing;

105. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart CCCCC: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Coke Ovens: Pushing, Quenching, and Battery Stacks;

106. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart DDDDD: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Major Sources: Industrial, Commercial, and Institutional Boilers and
Process Heaters;

107. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart EEEEE: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Iron and Steel Foundries;

108. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart FFFFF: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Integrated Iron and Steel Manufacturing Facilities;

109. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart GGGGG: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Site Remediation;

110. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart HHHHH: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Miscellaneous Coating Manufacturing;

111. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart Illll: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants:
Mercury Emissions From Mercury Cell Chlor-Alkali Plants;

112. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart JJJJJ: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Brick and Structural Clay Products Manufacturing;

113. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart KKKKK: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Clay Ceramics Manufacturing;

114. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart LLLLL: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Asphalt Processing and Asphalt Roofing Manufacturing;

SS-7039 (October 2021) 9 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 55



115. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart MMMMM: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Flexible Polyurethane Foam Fabrication Operations;

116. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart NNNNN: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Hydrochloric Acid Production;

117. Reserved;

118. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart PPPPP: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Engine Test Cells/Stands;

119. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart OO0Q0Q: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Friction Materials Manufacturing Facilities;

120. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart RRRRR: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Taconite Iron Ore Processing;

121. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart SSSSS: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Refractory Products Manufacturing;

122. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart TTTTT: National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Primary Magnesium Refining;

123. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart UUUUU: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Coal- and Qil-Fired Electric Utility Steam Generating Units;

124. Reserved;

125. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart WWWWW: National Emission Standards for Hospital Ethylene
Oxide Sterilizers;

126. Reserved;

127. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart YYYYY: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air

Pollutants for Area Sources: Electric Arc Furnace Steelmaking Facilities;

128. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart ZZ777: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air

Pollutants for Iron and Steel Foundries Area Sources;

129. Reserved;

130. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart BBBBBB: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Source Category: Gasoline Distribution Bulk Terminals, Bulk Plants, and
Pipeline Facilities;

131. Reserved;

132. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart DDDDDD: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Polyvinyl Chloride and Copolymers Production Area Sources;

133. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart EEEEEE: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Primary Copper Smelting Area Sources;

134. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart FFFFFF: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Secondary Copper Smelting Area Sources;

135. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart GGGGGG: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Primary Nonferrous Metals Area Sources—Zinc, Cadmium, and Beryllium;

136. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart HHHHHH: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air

SS-7039 (October 2021) 10 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 56



Pollutants: Paint_Stripping _and Miscellaneous Surface Coating Operations at Area
Sources;

137. Reserved;

138. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart JJJJJJ: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Industrial, Commercial, and Institutional Boilers Area Sources;

139. Reserved;

140. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart LLLLLL: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Acrylic and Modacrylic Fibers Production Area Sources;

141. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart MMMMMM: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Carbon Black Production Area Sources;

142. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart NNNNNN: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Chemical Manufacturing Area Sources: Chromium Compounds;

143. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart OOO0QO: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Flexible Polyurethane Foam Production and Fabrication Area Sources;

144. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart PPPPPP: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Lead Acid Battery Manufacturing Area Sources;

145. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart QO000QQ: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Wood Preserving Area Sources;

146. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart RRRRRR: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Clay Ceramics Manufacturing Area Sources;

147. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart SSSSSS: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Glass Manufacturing Area Sources

148. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart TTTTTT: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Secondary Nonferrous Metals Processing Area Sources;

149. Reserved;

150. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart VVVVVV: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Chemical Manufacturing Area Sources;

151. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart WWWWWW: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Area Source Standards for Plating and Polishing Operations;

152. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart XXXXXX: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants Area Source Standards for Nine Metal Fabrication and Finishing Source

Cateqories;

153. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart YYYYYY: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Area Sources: Ferroalloys Production Facilities;

154. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart ZZZZ77Z: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Area Source Standards for Aluminum, Copper, and Other Nonferrous

Foundries;

155. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart AAAAAAA: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Area Sources: Asphalt Processing and Asphalt Roofing Manufacturing;

156. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart BBBBBBB: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Area Sources: Chemical Preparations Industry;

SS-7039 (October 2021) 11 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 57




157. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart CCCCCCC: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Area Sources: Paints and Allied Products Manufacturing;

158. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart DDDDDDD: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants for Area Sources: Prepared Feeds Manufacturing;

159. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart EEEEEEE: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants: Gold Mine Ore Processing and Production Area Source Category;

160. Reserved;

161. Reserved;

162. 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart HHHHHHH: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutant Emissions for Polyvinyl Chloride and Copolymers Production;

163. Appendix A to Part 63: Test Methods;

164.  Appendix B to Part 63: Sources Defined for Early Reduction Provisions;

165.  Appendix C to Part 63: Determination of the Fraction Biodegraded (Fbio) in a Biological
Treatment Unit;

166. Appendix D to Part 63: Alternative Validation Procedure for EPA Waste and Wastewater
Methods; and

167. Appendix E to Part 63: Monitoring Procedure for Nonthoroughly Mixed Open Biological
Treatment Systems at Kraft Pulp Mills Under Unsafe Sampling Conditions.

(2)

The provisions of the subparts and appendices of 40 CFR Part 61
listed in subparagraph (b) of this paragraph are hereby incorporated by reference as published in the July
1, 2020, edition of the Code of Federal Requlations (CFR), except as provided in subparagraph (a) of this
paragraph. In certain _cases, a different version of the federal requlation is incorporated by reference
which will be specified in subparagraph (b) of this paragraph. In certain cases, a different version of the
federal reqgulation is incorporated by reference which will be specified in subparagraph (b) of this
paragraph.

(a) Any reference contained in 40-CFR-63-Subpart ZZZZ 40 CER Part 61 to the:
1. Administrator shall instead be a reference to the Technical Secretary; and
2. Applicable EPA regional office for-the-State-of Fennessee shall instead be a reference to
the EPA Region IV office.
(b) List of Federal Reqgulations under 40 CFR Part 61:
1. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart A: General provisions;
2. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart B: National Emission Standards for Radon Emissions From
Underground Uranium Mines;
3. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart C: National Emission Standard for Beryllium;
4. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart D: National Emission Standard for Beryllium Rocket Motor
Firing;
5. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart E: National Emission Standard for Mercury;
SS-7039 (October 2021) 12 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 58



40 CFR Part 61 Subpart F: National Emission Standard for Vinyl Chloride;

7. Reserved;

8. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart H: National Emission Standards for Emissions of Radionuclides
Other Than Radon From Department of Energy Facilities;

9. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart |: National Emission Standards for Radionuclide Emissions
From Federal Facilities Other Than Nuclear Regulatory Commission Licensees and Not
Covered by Subpart H;

10. 40 CFER Part 61 Subpart J: National Emission Standard for Equipment Leaks (Fugitive
Emission Sources) of Benzene;

11. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart K: National Emission Standards for Radionuclide Emissions
From Elemental Phosphorus Plants;

12. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart L: National Emission Standard for Benzene Emissions from
Coke By-Product Recovery Plants;

13. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart M: National Emission Standard for Asbestos;

14. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart N: National Emission Standard for Inorganic Arsenic Emissions
From Glass Manufacturing Plants;

15. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart O: National Emission Standard for Inorganic Arsenic Emissions
From Primary Copper Smelters;

16. 40 CFER Part 61 Subpart P: National Emission Standard for Inorganic Arsenic Emissions
From Arsenic Trioxide and Metallic Arsenic Production Facilities;

17. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart Q: National Emission Standards for Radon Emissions From
Department of Energy Facilities;

18. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart R: National Emission Standards for Radon Emissions From
Phosphogypsum Stacks;

19. Reserved;

20. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart T: National Emission Standards for Radon Emissions From the
Disposal of Uranium Mill Tailings;

21. Reserved;

22. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart V: National Emission Standard for Equipment Leaks (Fugitive
Emission Sources);

23. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart W: National Emission Standards for Radon Emissions From
Operating Mill Tailings;

24. Reserved;

25. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart Y: National Emission Standard for Benzene Emissions From
Benzene Storage Vessels;

26. Reserved;

27. Reserved;

28. 40 CFR Part 61 Subpart BB: National Emission Standard for Benzene Emissions From

SS-7039 (October 2021) 13 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 59



Benzene Transfer Operations;

29. Reserved;

30. Reserved;

31. Reserved;

32. 40 CFER Part 61 Subpart FF: National Emission Standard for Benzene Waste Operations;

33. Appendix A to Part 61: National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants,
Compliance Status Information;

34. Appendix B to Part 61: Test Methods;

35. Appendix C to Part 61: Quality Assurance Procedures;

36. Appendix D to Part 61: Methods for Estimating Radionuclide Emissions; and

37. Appendix E to Part 61: Compliance Procedures Methods for Determining Compliance

With Subpatrt I.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Rule 0400-30-38-.02 Paint Stripping, Auto Body Refinishing, and Miscellaneous Surface Coating Operations is
amended by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the follow:

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 14 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 60



Chapter 1200-03-02
Definitions

Amendments

Subparagraph (g) of paragraph (1) of Rule 1200-03-02-.01 General Definitions is amended by deleting it in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

(@)

“Best available control technology (BACT)” means an emission limitation (including a visible
emission standard) based on the maximum degree of reduction for each pollutant subject to
regulation under these rules which would be emitted from any proposed new or modified air
contaminant source which the Technical Secretary, on a case-by-case bases, taking into account
energy, environmental, and economic impacts and other costs, determines is achievable for such
source or modification through application of production processes or available methods,
systems, and techniques, including fuel cleaning or treatment or innovative fuel combustion
techniques for control of such pollutant. In no event shall application of best available control
technology result in emissions of any pollutant which would exceed the emissions allowed by any
applicable standard under Chapters 1200-03-11 0400-30-38 and 1200-03-16 of these rules. If the
Technical Secretary determines that technological or economic limitations on the application of
measurement methodology to a particular class of sources would make the imposition of an
emission standard infeasible, a design, equipment, work practice, or operational standard, or
combination thereof, may be prescribed instead to require the application of best available control
technology. Such standard shall, to the degree possible, set forth the emission reduction
achievable by implementation of such design, equipment, work practice, or operation, and shall
provide for compliance by means which achieve equivalent results.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 15 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 61



Chapter 1200-03-04
Open Burning

Amendments

Part 3 of subparagraph (c) of paragraph (1) of Rule 1200-03-04-.04 Exceptions to Prohibition is amended by
deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

3. All regulated asbestos containing materials have been removed in accordance with Rule
1200-3-11-62 part (2)(b)13 of Rule 0400-30-38-.01; and

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 16 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 62



Chapter 1200-03-05
Visible Emission Regulations

Amendments

Subparagraph (b) of Paragraph (2) of Rule 1200-03-05-.05 Standard for Certain Existing Sources is amended by
deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

(b) The air contaminate source is not regulated under the rules contained in Chapter 1200-03-11
0400-30-38, Chapter 1200-03-16, and Chapters 1200-03-25 and Paragraph paragraph (4) of
Rule 1200-03-09-.01(4).

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 17 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 63



Chapter 1200-03-09
Construction and Operating Permits

Amendments

Subparagraph (d) of paragraph (2) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01 Construction Permits is amended by deleting it in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

(d) “Best available control technology (BACT)” means an emission limitation (including a visible
emission standard) based on the maximum degree of reduction for each pollutant subject to
regulation under these rules which would be emitted from any proposed new or modified air
contaminant source which the Technical Secretary, on a case-by-case basis, taking into account
energy, environmental, and economic impacts and other costs, determines is achievable for such
source or modification through application of production processes or available methods,
systems, and techniques, including fuel cleaning or treatment or innovative fuel combustion
techniques for control of such pollutant. In no event shall application of best available control
technology result in emissions of any pollutant which would exceed the emissions allowed by any
applicable standard under Chapters 1200-03-11 0400-30-38 and 1200-03-16 of these rules. If the
Technical Secretary determines that technological or economic limitations on the application of
measurement methodology to a particular class of sources would make the imposition of an
emission standard infeasible, a design, equipment, work practice, or operational standard, or
combination thereof, may be prescribed instead to require the application of best available control
technology. Such standard shall, to the degree possible, set forth the emission reduction
achievable by implementation of such design, equipment, work practice, or operation, and shall
provide for compliance by means which achieve equivalent results. This definition does not apply
to major sources and major modifications, as defined in subparagraph (4)(b) of this rule, which
are subject to the provisions of paragraph (4) of this rule.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Subpart (i) of part 1 of subparagraph (d) of paragraph (4) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01 Construction Permits is
amended by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

® The source or modification would be a major stationary source or major
modification only if fugitive emissions, to the extent quantifiable, are considered
in calculating the potential to emit of the stationary source or modification and
such source does not belong to any of the categories listed under subpart
(b)1:(i), or any other stationary source category which, as of the (effective date of
this rule) is being regulated under Chapters 1200-03-11 0400-30-38 and 1200-
03-16.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Subitem XXVII of item (IV) of subpart (iv) of part 1 of subparagraph (b) of paragraph (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01
Construction Permits is amended by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

XXVII. Any other stationary source category which, as of August 7,
1980, is being regulated under Chapter 1200-03-16, New Source
Performance Standards or Chapter 1200-03-11 0400-30-38,
Hazardous-Air-Contaminants Emission Standards for Hazardous
Air Pollutants, or Chapter 1200-03-31, Standards For Hazardous
Air Contaminants For Source Categories.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Subitem [l of item (I) of subpart (xi) of part 1 of subparagraph (b) of paragraph (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01
Construction Permits is amended by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

1. The National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
(NESHAP) contained in Chapter 1200-63-11 0400-30-38 and
Chapter 1200-03-31 or;

SS-7039 (October 2021) 18 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 64



Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

ltem (XXVII) of subpart (ii) of part 4 of subparagraph (b) of paragraph (8) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01 Construction
Permits is amended by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

(XXVII) Any other stationary source category which, as of August 7, 1980, is
being regulated under Chapter 1200-03-16, New Source Performance
Standards, or Chapter 1200-03-11 0400-30-38, Hazardous—Air
Contaminants Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants. or
Chapter 1200-03-31, Standards For Hazardous Air Contaminants For
Source Categories, or 40 CFR Part 60 and 61 (July 1, 1993).

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

The first sentence of subparagraph (b) of paragraph (11) of Rule 1200-03-09-.02 Operating Permits is amended
by deleting “Chapter 1200-03-11" and replacing it with “Chapter 0400-30-38” so that as amended the first
sentence of the subparagraph shall read as follows:

Definitions - The following terms are defined as they uniquely apply to this paragraph. All other terms
shall have the meaning given to them in Chapter 1200-03-02, Chapter1200-03-11 Chapter 0400-30-38,
Chapter 1200-03-30 Chapter 1200-03-31, Chapter 1200-03-32 and Chapter 1200-03-20.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Subpart (iii) of part 1 of subparagraph (c) of paragraph (11) of Rule 1200-03-09-.02 Operating Permits is
amended by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

(iii) Any source, including an area source, subject to a standard or other requirement
under section 112 of the Federal Act, Chapter 1200-63-11 0400-30-38, or
Chapter 1200-03-31 except that a source is not required to obtain a permit solely
because it is subject to regulations or requirements under section 112(r) of the
Federal Act or Chapter 1200-03-32;

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Subpart (i) of part 2 of subparagraph (c) of paragraph (11) of Rule 1200-03-09-.02 Operating Permits is amended
by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

M All non-major sources including those subject to Section 112 of the Federal Act
or Chapter 1200-03-11 0400-30-38 or Chapter 1200-03-31 and section 111 of
the Federal Act or Chapter 1200-03-16. If the Administrator promulgates future
regulations which prohibit the exemption of a non-major source from the
requirements of this paragraph—1200-03-09--02(11), such source will be so
permitted by the Technical Secretary. Upon the Administrator’s written
notification to the Technical Secretary that such sources must be permitted
according to the provisions of this paragraph-1208-63-09--02(11}, the Technical
Secretary shall notify the sources that the applications are due within 180 days of
his written notice. The Technical Secretary shall have up to 90 days to
accomplish the notification commencing upon his naotification from the
Administrator.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Section A of subitem IV of item (I) of subpart (ii) of part 5 of subparagraph (f) of paragraph (11) of Rule 1200-03-
09-.02 Operating Permits is amended by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

A. A federally enforceable emissions cap assumed to avoid
classification as a modification under any provision of
Title | of the federal Act. Further, federally enforceable
emission caps assumed to avoid classification as a

SS-7039 (October 2021) 19 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 65



modification under Chapter 1200-03-11 0400-30-38,
Chapter 1200-30-16, Chapter 1200-03-31, paragraph (4)
of Rule 1200-03-09-.01(4) or paragraph (5) of Rule
1200-03-09-.01(5} are included in the criteria of this

section-L200-02-00 0001 B E G0l A

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Subitem V of item (I) of subpart (ii) of part 5 of subparagraph (f) of paragraph (11) of Rule 1200-03-09-.02
Operating Permits is amended by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

V. Are not modifications under Title | of the Federal Act or the
federal regulations promulgated pursuant thereto. Further, the
minor permit modification process may be used only for changes
that are not modifications under Chapter 1200-03-11 0400-30-
38, Chapter 1200-03-31, Chapter 1200-03-16, paragraph (4) of
Rule 1200-03- 09-.01(4) or paragraph (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-
.01(5); and

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Paragraph (1) of Rule 1200-03-09-.04 Exemptions is amended by deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead
the following:

(2) The permit exemptions listed in paragraph (4) of this rule do not apply if an air contaminant source is
subject to a standard or requirement contained in the following, except if the air contaminant source
belongs to a source category listed in paragraph (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-.07, even if the source itself is
not eligible for authorization, or except where specifically stated:

Chapter 1200-03-11{(Hazardeus—aircontaminants) 0400-30-38 (Emission Standards for Hazardous Air

Pollutants);
Chapter 1200-03-18 (Volatile organic compounds);

Chapter 1200-03-19 (Emission standards and monitoring requirements for additional control areas);
Chapter 1200-03-22 (Lead emission standards);
Chapter 1200-03-27 (Nitrogen oxides); and

Paragraph (2) of Rule 1200-03-31-.05(2) (Case-by-case Case-by-case determinations of hazardous air
pollutant requirements).

In addition, the exemption provided for the air contaminant sources in paragraph (4) of this rule does not
exempt the sources from inclusion in determining if a major stationary source or major modification
construction permit is required under paragraphs (4) and (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Part 10 of subparagraph (a) of paragraph (2) of Rule 1200-03-09-.04 Exemptions is amended by deleting it in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

10. “Hazardous air pollutant” means any air contaminant regulated in Chapter 1200-03-11
0400-30-38, or listed in Shapter paragraph (6) of Rule 1200-03-31-.02(&}.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Part 9 of subparagraph (d) of paragraph (4) of Rule 1200-03-09-.04 Exemptions is amended by deleting it in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

9. Any emission unit with the potential to emit radionuclides which will result in a dose to the
most exposed member of the public of less than 0.1 millirem per year. Even though
radionuclide air contaminant sources are regulated under Chapter £200-03-11 0400-30-
38, this exemption is still valid except that recordkeeping and reporting requirements
must be met.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 20 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 66



Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Part 15 of subparagraph (a) of paragraph (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-.04 Exemptions is amended by deleting it in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

15. “Hazardous air pollutant” means any air contaminant regulated in Chapter 1200-63-11;
0400-30-38 or listed in Shapter paragraph (6) of Rule 1200-03-31-.02(6).

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Part 3 of subparagraph (c) of paragraph (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-.04 Exemptions is amended by deleting it in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

3. Any emission unit or activity which is a subset of a process emission source, fuel burning
installation, or incinerator, and which has a potential to emit less than 5 tons per year of a
regulated air pollutant, by annual certification of compliance as required in item
(A1) ()13 of Rule 1200-03-09-.02(1 1)} (eh)A-(i)(H, may, at the discretion of the Technical
Secretary, be considered to meet the monitoring and related recordkeeping and reporting
requirements of subpart (11)(e)1(iii) of Rule 1200-03-09-.021{e}t(i) and part (2)(b)1
of Rule 1200-03-10-.04(2)}{b}2-, and the compliance requirements of subpart (11)(e)3(i) of
Rule 1200-03-09-.02{11)}e)3(i} for that regulated air pollutant except where generally
applicable requirements of the state implementation plan specifically impose monitoring
and related record keeping and reporting requirements, or except where any applicable
procedures and methods are required pursuant to rule Rule 1200-03-10-.04. This
provision shall not relieve any emissions unit or activity from any applicable standard or
requirement under Chapters 4200-03-11 0400-30-38 and 1200-03-31, and subparagraph
(1)(dd) of Rule 1200-03-02-.01(L){d¢).

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Part 28 of subparagraph (f) of paragraph (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-.04 Exemptions is amended by deleting it in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

28. Vacuum cleaning systems used exclusively for industrial, commercial, or residential
housekeeping purposes, except those systems used to collect hazardous air
contaminants regulated by Chapter 1200-03-11 0400-30-38.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 21 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 67



Chapter 1200-03-11
Hazardous Air Contaminants

Repeal

Chapter 1200-03-11 Hazardous Air Contaminants is Repealed.

Chapter 1200-03-11
. .

Table-of Contents

SS-7039 (October 2021) 22 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 68



SS-7039 (October 2021) 23 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 69



SS-7039 (October 2021) 24 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 70



SS-7039 (October 2021) 25 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 71



SS-7039 (October 2021) 26 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 72



SS-7039 (October 2021) 27 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 73



SS-7039 (October 2021) 28 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 74



SS-7039 (October 2021) 29 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 75



SS-7039 (October 2021) 30 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 76



SS-7039 (October 2021) 31 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 77



SS-7039 (October 2021) 32 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 78



SS-7039 (October 2021) 33 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 79



SS-7039 (October 2021) 34 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 80



SS-7039 (October 2021) 35 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 81



SS-7039 (October 2021) 36 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 82



SS-7039 (October 2021) 37 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 83



SS-7039 (October 2021) 38 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 84



b L tor fabricating.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 39 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 85



SS-7039 (October 2021) 40 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 86



SS-7039 (October 2021) 41 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 87



SS-7039 (October 2021) 42 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 88



SS-7039 (October 2021) 43 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 89



SS-7039 (October 2021) 44 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 90



SS-7039 (October 2021) 45 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 91



SS-7039 (October 2021) 46 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 92



SS-7039 (October 2021) 47 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 93



SS-7039 (October 2021) 48 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 94



SS-7039 (October 2021) 49 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 95



SS-7039 (October 2021) 50 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 96



SS-7039 (October 2021) 51 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 97



SS-7039 (October 2021) 52 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 98



_F Ti F - EI_ - W -
tnspection thspection

SS-7039 (October 2021) 53

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 99

RDA 1693



(moldaylyr) Also-lndicate Fugitive Observed
; ;
Number Action-Taken
SS-7039 (October 2021) 54 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 100



SS-7039 (October 2021)
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

55
101

RDA 1693



Zin:
Zip-:

hlr.l-
Zin-:

Zin-

Unit

Prior Llca:
—HOIISE-

Stata:
TAATC
Stata:
=41%13v0
Stata:
TAATC T
Ctata-
TUATC T

GaH | GatHd | Gatl | GatH

\/lLy-
Cihe
\/lLy-
Cihe
\/lLy-
Cit\ve
ity
Pracant Llca:
TeSCHtoSEes

Cihe

RDA 1693

SS-7039 (October 2021)

102

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022



SS-7039 (October 2021) 57 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 103



WASTE SHIPMENT RECORD
GENERATOR
1. Work-site-name-and-mailing Owner's-name Owner's-telephonene:
Sedrees
2. Operator's name and address Operator's telephone no.
3llwast’eelllsp.esalls_lte(wB_S) allnellnalmgﬁ - WDS-phone-no
permitand-number:
PermitNe-

SS-7039 (October 2021) 58 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 104



SS-7039 (October 2021) 59 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 105



SS-7039 (October 2021) 60 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 106



SS-7039 (October 2021) 61 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 107



SS-7039 (October 2021) 62 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 108



SS-7039 (October 2021) 63 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 109



SS-7039 (October 2021) 64 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 110



SS-7039 (October 2021) 65 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 111



SS-7039 (October 2021) 66 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 112



SS-7039 (October 2021) 67 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 113



SS-7039 (October 2021) 68 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 114



SS-7039 (October 2021) 69 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 115



SS-7039 (October 2021) 70 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 116



SS-7039 (October 2021) 71 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 117



SS-7039 (October 2021) 72 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 118



SS-7039 (October 2021) 73 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 119



SS-7039 (October 2021) 74 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 120



260 = Densityof vinylchloride—atone—atmosphere—and—20°C—in

SS-7039 (October 2021) 75 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 121



SS-7039 (October 2021) 76 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 122



SS-7039 (October 2021) 77 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 123



&)

12

20

°C)

(mm- Ha)

HHgy

eC)

~)

S
40
41

416-8
4100
422 /6
4990

Q4

163 8
OS50
171 4

82

EE 2
545

T4
170 3
T
187 5
T O

58 3
20
81

450 O
mESAS o

6
Q7
O

B84

42

O

468 7
SO0

A
106 1

84
o4~
8

487 1
SO

9

I

6

(o]

44

o

EoSASEES
5061

205 0

\S45
71
1

AA AT

2909
214 2
[ o Y

87
©

= =n
75 6

525 Q
L0

a0

o1
=4

688

46
47
L

460
o409

2292 7
[ar=S r s

70 6
IO

Q2 7

\SiSp

567 0
DO

70 293 7 Q2

71

48
49

A
599 g
A A=A~

oo

Q3

243 O
4o

Q9 N
(545

=

4

6833 0O

265 7

(01
a6
=

73

Q7 92

[N

0OOI

ZO0O0+H

4

68657 6
\SiSaansl
68682 1

z=

1
2809 1

277 2
1

74
L
78

TUZL I

102 1

52
oL

Q7
(o]
7

53
2|
e
[

107 2
T~

\SAS oy o

ZOI+ L

=4
76
152

-

=

112 §
IO
118 0O
T1OU
123 Q
T£070
120 8
L JTO
136 1

9

707 3
I
733 2

32301 4
U

Q9

314 1

-

| =

OO L
760 0
LASA~D~

o4k
27 2
23 an

100
TUT

>4

3410

78
O
79
Q
©

57
[
=4
| =

4 "1~

355 1
SASAS AT~

A
Y
1

TOO L

g
©

269 7

142 6
420
149 4
T4

OO I

384 O
ASaur

92
O
Q

400 6
mA~AS OS]

156 4 3

OO

1

I

RDA 1693

SS-7039 (October 2021)

124

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022



SS-7039 (October 2021) 79 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 125



SS-7039 (October 2021) 80 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 126



SS-7039 (October 2021) 81 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 127



SS-7039 (October 2021) 82 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 128



SS-7039 (October 2021) 83 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 129



SS-7039 (October 2021) 84 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 130



SS-7039 (October 2021) 85 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 131



SS-7039 (October 2021) 86 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 132



SS-7039 (October 2021) 87 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 133



SS-7039 (October 2021) 88 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 134



SS-7039 (October 2021) 89 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 135



SS-7039 (October 2021) 90 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 136



SS-7039 (October 2021) 91 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 137



SS-7039 (October 2021) 92 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 138



SS-7039 (October 2021) 93 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 139



SS-7039 (October 2021) 94 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 140



SS-7039 (October 2021) 95 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 141



SS-7039 (October 2021) 96 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 142



SS-7039 (October 2021) 97 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 143



SS-7039 (October 2021) 98 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 144



SS-7039 (October 2021) 99 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 145



SS-7039 (October 2021) 100 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 146



SS-7039 (October 2021) 101 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 147



SS-7039 (October 2021) 102 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 148



SS-7039 (October 2021) 103 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 149



SS-7039 (October 2021) 104 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 150



SS-7039 (October 2021) 105 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 151



SS-7039 (October 2021) 106 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 152



SS-7039 (October 2021) 107 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 153



SS-7039 (October 2021) 108 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 154



SS-7039 (October 2021) 109 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 155



SS-7039 (October 2021) 110 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 156



SS-7039 (October 2021) 111 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 157



SS-7039 (October 2021) 112 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 158



SS-7039 (October 2021) 113 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 159



SS-7039 (October 2021) 114 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 160



SS-7039 (October 2021) 115 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 161



SS-7039 (October 2021) 116 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 162



SS-7039 (October 2021) 117 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 163



SS-7039 (October 2021) 118 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 164



SS-7039 (October 2021) 119 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 165



SS-7039 (October 2021) 120 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 166



SS-7039 (October 2021) 121 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 167



SS-7039 (October 2021) 122 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 168



SS-7039 (October 2021) 123 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 169



SS-7039 (October 2021) 124 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 170



SS-7039 (October 2021) 125 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 171



SS-7039 (October 2021) 126 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 172



SS-7039 (October 2021) 127 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 173



SS-7039 (October 2021) 128 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 174



SS-7039 (October 2021) 129 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 175



Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 130
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 176

RDA 1693



Chapter 1200-03-16
New Source Performance Standards

Amendment

Subparagraph (a) of paragraph (11) of Rule 1200-03-16-.01 General Provisions is amended by deleting in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

(a) Introduction

This paragraph contains requirements for control devices used to comply with applicable rules of
chapters11-and-16 Chapter 0400-30-38 and this chapter. The requirements are placed here for
administrative convenience and only apply to facilities covered by rules referring to this
paragraph.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 131 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 177



Chapter 1200-03-20
Limits on Emissions Due to Malfunctions, Startups, and Shutdowns

Amendment

Paragraph (1) of Rule 1200-03-20-.03 Notice Required When Malfunction Occurs is amended by deleting it in its
entirety and substituting instead the following:

(D) When any air contaminant source malfunctions in such a manner as to cause the emission of air
contaminants in excess of the applicable emission standards contained in Division 1200-03 or any permit
issued thereto, or of sufficient duration to cause damage to property or public health, the owner or
operator of the air contaminant source shall promptly notify the Technical Secretary of such malfunction
and provide a statement giving all pertinent facts, including the estimated duration of the malfunction.
Violations of the visible emission standard (excluding visible emissions caused by hazardous air
pollutants named in Chapter 1200-03-11 0400-30-38) which occur for less than 20 minutes in one day
(midnight to midnight) need not be reported. Prompt notification will be within 24 hours of the malfunction
and shall be provided by telephone to the Division's Nashville office. The Technical Secretary shall be
notified when the malfunction has been corrected. In attainment and unclassified areas if emissions other
than from sources designated as significantly impacting on a nonattainment area in excess of the
standards will not and do not occur over more than a 24-hour period (or will not recur over more than a
24-hour period) and no damage to property and or public health is anticipated, naotification is not required.
Any malfunction that creates an imminent hazard to health must be reported by telephone immediately to
the Division's Nashville office and to the State Civil Defense.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 132 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 178



Chapter 1200-03-21
General Alternate Emission Standards

Amendment

Subparagraph (d) of paragraph (2) of Rule 1200-03-21-.01 General Alternate Emission Standard is amended by
deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

(d) The pollutants involved in the alternate emission standard must be comparable emissions, and no
interpollutant trades are allowed. Air contaminant sources subject to the standards in Chapter
1200-3-11 0400-30-38 cannot apply the alternate emission standard to hazardous air
contaminants. Air contaminant sources subject to emission standards in Chapter 1200-03-16, or
Rule-1200-3-9-.01(4) paragraph (4) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01 or subparagraph (5)(b) of Rule 1200-
03-09-.01¢(5)b} cannot use an alternate emission standard, except for reductions in actual
emissions below the level required in these rules. Such reduction may be used as credit for
existing source. However, all applicable standards and requirements established under Rule
1200-3-9-01(4) paragraph (4) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01, under Chapters 1200-3-11and-1200-3-16
0400-30-38 and 1200-03-16, and according to a lowest-achievement-emission-rate (LAER)
determination under Rule-200-3-9-04(5} paragraph (5) of Rule 1200-03-09-.01 must be complied
with and are not superseded or replaced by the alternate emission standard.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 133 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 179



Chapter 1200-03-26
Administrative Fees Schedule

Amendments

Part 1 of subparagraph (i) of paragraph (2) of Rule 1200-03-26-.02 Construction and Annual Fees is amended by
deleting it in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

1. Each pollutant regulated under ehapter-1200-03-11- HAZARDOUS-AIR-CONTAMINANTS
Chapter 0400-30-38 Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (Excluding

Transitory Asbestos from construction, demolition, and renovation).

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

Subparts (i) and (ii) of part 1 of subparagraph (i) of paragraph (3) of Rule 1200-03-26-.02 Construction and
Annual Fees are amended by deleting them in their entirety and substituting instead the following:

(i)

(ii)

Sources that are subject to federally promulgated hazardous air pollutant
standards that can be imposed under Chapter-1200-03-11,-Chapter-1200-03-31;
or Chapter 0400-30-38 or Chapter 1200-03-31 will place such regulated
emissions in the specific hazardous air pollutant under regulation. If the pollutant
is also in the family of volatile organic compounds or the family of particulates,
the pollutant shall not be placed in that respective family category.

A miscellaneous category of hazardous air pollutants shall be used for hazardous
air pollutants listed at part (2)(i)12. of this rule that do not have an allowable
emission standard under Chapter-1200-03-11,Chapter-1200--03-31,-or Chapter
0400-30-38 or Chapter 1200-03-31. A pollutant placed in this category shall not
be subject to being placed in any other category such as volatile organic
compounds or particulates.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021)
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

134 RDA 1693
180



Chapter 1200-03-31
Case by Case Determinations of Hazardous Air Pollutant Control Requirements

Amendments

Chapter 1200-03-31 Case by Case Determinations of Hazardous Air Pollutant Control Requirements is amended
by deleted in its entirety and substituting instead the following:

Chapter 1200-03-31
Case-by-Case Case-by-Case Determinations of Hazardous Air Pollutant Control Requirements

Table of Contents

1200-30-31-.01 General-Provisions Reserved
1200-30-31-.02 Definitions

1200-30-31-.03 Intent of the Board fer—Case—byCase Determinations—of Hazardous—Air—Pollutant Control

Requirements
1200-30-31-.04 Standard for Existing Sources
1200-30-31-.05 Standard Standards for New Sources
1200-30-31-.06 Opportunity for Early Reductions Schedule
1200-30-31-.07 Residual Risk and Revisions to MACT
1200-30-31-.08 Reserved
1200-30-31-.09 Reserved
1200-30-31-.10 Reserved
1200-30-31-.11 Reserved
1200-30-31-.12 Reserved

1200-30-31-.13 Rerchloroethylene-Air-Emission-Standardsfor-Dry-Cleaning-Facilities Reserved
1200-3-31-.01 General-Provisions[Reserved] Reserved

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.
4200-3-31-62 1200-03-31-.02 Definitions - The following definitions are applicable to this Shapter chapter:

() “Major Source” means any stationary source or group of stationary sources located within a contiguous
area and under common control that emits or has the potential to emit considering controls, in the
aggregate, 10 tons per year or more of any hazardous air pollutant or 25 tons per year of any combination
of hazardous air pollutants. In addition, the provisions of subpart £260-3-9-02 (11)(b)14(i) of Rule 1200-
03-09-.02 are recognized as to the grouping or aggregation of emissions for the purpose of calculating
emission potential as it relates to the applicability thresholds of this definition. Additionally, electric utility
steam generating units will not be regulated as major sources until the United States Environmental
Protection Agency decides that they should be so regulated pursuant to Section 112(n) of the federal
Clean Air Act.

(2) “Area Source” means any stationary source of hazardous air pollutants that is not a major source. Mobile
sources such as vehicles, trains, planes, ships, et cetera are not area sources.

3) “New Source” means a stationary source that emits hazardous air pollutants as they are defined in this
paragraph and is constructed or reconstructed on or after the date that the United States Environmental
Protection Agency approves the major source operating permit program submitted by the State of
Tennessee in accordance with Section 502(d) of the federal Clean Air Act.

(4) “Stationary Source” shall have the meaning given to it in subparagraph 1200-3-2-0% (1)(ddd) of Rule
1200-03-02-.01.

(5) “Existing Source” is any stationary source that emits hazardous air pollutants as they are defined in this
paragraph (6) of this rule and is not a new source.

(6) “Hazardous Air Pollutant” - means any of the following air contaminants:
CAS No. Chemical name
SS-7039 (October 2021) 135 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 181



75070
60355
75058
98862
53963
107028
79061
79107
107131
107051
92671
62533
90040
1332214
71432
92875
98077
100447
92524
117817
542881
75252
106990
156627
133062
63252
75150
56235
463581
120809
133904
57749
7782505
79118
532274
108907
510156
67663
107302
126998
1319773
95487
108394
106445
98828
94757
3547044
334883
132649
96128
84742
106467
91941
111444
542756
62737
111422
121697
64675
119904

SS-7039 (October 2021)
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

Acetaldehyde

Acetamide

Acetonitrile

Acetophenone
2-Acetylaminofluorene
Acrolein

Acrylamide

Acrylic acid

Acrylonitrile

Allyl chloride
4-Aminobiphenyl

Aniline

o-Anisidine

Asbestos

Benzene (including benzene from gasoline)
Benzidine

Benzotrichloride

Benzyl chloride

Biphenyl
Bis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate(DEHP)
Bis(chloromethyl) ether
Bromoform

1,3-Butadiene

Calcium cyanamide

Captan

Carbaryl

Carbon disulfide

Carbon tetrachloride
Carbonyl sulfide

Catechol

Chloramben

Chlordane

Chlorine

Chloroacetic acid
2-Chloroacetophenone
Chlorobenzene
Chlorobenzilate

Chloroform

Chloromethyl methyl ether
Chloroprene

Cresols/Cresylic acid (isomers and mixture)
o-Cresol

m-Cresol

p-Cresol

Cumene

2,4-D, salts and esters

DDE

Diazomethane
Dibenzofurans
1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane
Dibutylphthalate
1,4-Dichlorobenzene(p)
3,3-Dichloro benzidene
Dichloroethyl ether (Bis(2-chloroethyl)ether)
1,3-Dichloropropene
Dichlorvos

Diethanolamine

N,N-Diethyl aniline (N,N-Dimethylaniline)
Diethyl sulfate
3,3-Dimethoxybenzidine

136
182

RDA 1693



60117
119937
79447
68122
57147
131113
77781
534521
51285
121142
123911
122667
106898
106887
140885
100414
51796
75003
106934
107062
107211
151564
75218
96457
75343
50000
76448
118741
87683
77474
67721
822060
680319
110543
302012
7647010
7664393
123319
78591
58899
108316
67561
72435
74839
74873
71556
60344
74884
108101
624839
80626
1634044
101144
75092
101688
101779
91203
98953
92933
100027
79469

SS-7039 (October 2021)
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

Dimethyl aminoazobenzene
3,3'-Dimethyl benzidine
Dimethyl carbamoy! chloride
Dimethyl formamide
1,1-Dimethyl hydrazine
Dimethyl phthalate

Dimethyl sulfate
4,6-Dinitro-o-cresol, and salts
2,4-Dinitrophenol
2,4-Dinitrotoluene
1,4-Dioxane (1,4-Diethyleneoxide)
1,2-Diphenylhydrazine

Epichlorohydrin (1-Chloro-2,3-epoxypropane)

1,2-Epoxybutane

Ethyl acrylate

Ethyl benzene

Ethyl carbamate (Urethane)

Ethyl Chloride (Chloroethane)
Ethylene dibromide (Dibromoethane)
Ethylene dichloride (1,2-Dichlorethane)
Ethylene glycol

Ethylene imine (Aziridine)

Ethylene oxide

Ethylene thiourea

Ethylidene dichloride (1,1-Dichloroethane)
Formaldehyde

Heptachlor

Hexachlorobenzene
Hexachlorobutadiene
Hexachlorocyclopentadiene
Hexachloroethane
Hexamethylene-1,6-diisocyanate
Hexamethylphosphoramide

Hexane

Hydrazine

Hydrochloric acid

Hydrogen fluoride (Hydrofluoric acid)
Hydroquinone

Isophorone

Lindane (all isomers)

Maleic anhydride

Methanol

Methoxychlor

Methyl bromide (Bromomethane)
Methyl chloride (Chloromethane)
Methyl chloroform (1,1,1-Trichloroethane)
Methyl hydrazine

Methyl iodide (lodomethane)

Methyl isobutyl ketone (Hexone)
Methyl isocyanate

Methyl methacrylate

Methyl tert butyl ether

4,4-Methylene bis(2-chloronaniline)
Methylene chloride (Dichloromethane)
Methylene diphenyl diisocyanate (MDI)
4,4'-Methylenedianiline

Naphthalene

Nitrobenzene

4-Nitrobiphenyl

4-Nitrophenol

2-Nitropropane

137
183

RDA 1693



684935 N-Nitroso-N-methylurea

62759 N-Nitrosodimethylamine
59892 N-Nitrosomorpholine
56382 Parathion
82688 Pentachloronitrobenzene (Quintobenzene)
87865 Pentachlorophenol
108952 Phenol
106503 p-Phenylenediamine
75445 Phosgene
7803512 Phosphine
7723140 Phosphorus
85449 Phthalic anhydride
1336363 Polychlorinated biphenyls (Arochlors)
1120714 1,3-Propane sultone
57578 beta-Propiolactone
123386 Propionaldehyde
114261 Propoxur (Baygon)
78875 Propylene dichloride (1,2-Dichloropropane)
75569 Propylene oxide
75558 1,2-Propylenimine (2-Methyl aziridine)
91225 Quinoline
106514 Quinone
100425 Styrene
96093 Styrene oxide
1746016 2,3,7,8-Tetrachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin
79345 1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane
127184 Tetrachoroethylene (Perchloroethylene)
7550450 Titanium tetrachloride
108883 Toluene
95807 2,4-Toluene diamine
584849 2,4-Toluene diisocyanate
95534 o-Toluidine
8001352 Toxaphene (chlorinated camphene)
120821 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene
79005 1,1,2-Trichloroethane
79016 Trichloroethylene
95954 2,4,5-Trichlorophenol
88062 2,4,6-Trichlorophenol
121448 Triethylamine
1582098 Trifluralin
540841 2,2,4-Trimethylpentane
108054 Vinyl acetate
593602 Vinyl bromide
75014 Vinyl chloride
75354 Vinylidene chloride (1,1-Dichloroethylene)
1330207 Xylenes (isomers and mixture)
95476 o-Xylenes
108383 m-Xylenes
106423 p-Xylenes
0 Antimony Compounds
0 Arsenic Compounds (inorganic including arsine)
0 Beryllium Compounds
0 Cadmium Compounds
0 Chromium Compounds
0 Cobalt Compounds
0 Coke Oven Emissions
0 Cyanide compounds?
0 Glycol ethers? ©

1 X'CN where X = H' or any other group where a formal dissociation may occur. For example KCN or Ca(CN),

2Include mono- and di-ethers of ethylene glycol, diethylene glycol, and triethylene glycol R-(OCH,CH>),- OR'.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 138 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 184



Lead Compounds

Manganese Compounds
Mercury Compounds

Fine mineral fibers®

Nickel Compounds

Polycyclic Organic Matter?
Radionuclides (including radon)®
Selenium Compounds

[cNeoloNoNoNoNeNo)

(7 “Federal Clean Air Act” means the federal statutes found at 42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq. as amended by Public
Law No. 101-549 (November 15, 1990).

(8) “MACT” means maximum achievable control technology. It is a ease-by-case case-by-case determination
of what constitutes a maximum achievable reduction of hazardous air pollutants considering the costs of
achieving the emission reduction and any non-air quality health and environmental impacts and energy
requirements. MACT may include but is not limited to: control equipment, work practice standards,
emission standards, process madifications or raw materials substitution and/or reformulation.

(9) “GACT” means generally available control technology. It is a ease-by-case case-by-case determination of
what constitutes reasonable and proper control for hazardous air pollutants from area sources. GACT
may include, but is not limited to: control equipment, work practice standards, emission standards,
process modification or raw materials substitution and/or reformulation.

(20) Reserved.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

1200-3-31--03 1200-03-31-.03 Intent of the Board

For Case by-Case Case-by-Case Determinations of Hazardous Air Pollutant Control Requirements:

Q) The role of the United States Environmental Protection Agency is recognized by the Board as being
essential in the setting of ease-by-case case-by-case determinations of hazardous air pollutant control
requirements. The federal Agency is in the unique position to conduct research and compile national data
bases as to the source by source control levels that are being achieved or proposed in the regulation of
hazardous air pollutants. As the State of Tennessee does not fully possess these abilities, the Technical
Secretary shall avail-himself-of utilize the federal Agency's resources prior to setting a ease-by-case case-
by-case hazardous air pollutant requirement. In addition, the Technical Secretary shall recognize any
federal law, federal regulation, or lawfully promulgated policy of the United States Environmental
Protection Agency pertaining to case-by-ecase case-by-case determinations of hazardous air pollutant
requirements as the minimum acceptable criteria prior to the setting of a ease-by-case case-by-case
hazardous air pollutant requirement under the provisions of this rule.

Where:

n=1,2,or3:

R =alkyl C7 or less; or

R = phenyl or alkyl substituted phenyl;

R’ =H or alkyl C7 or less; or

OR’ consisting of carboxylic acid ester, sulfate, phosphate, nitrate, or sulfonate.

This action deletes each individual compound in a group called the surfactant alcohol ethoxylates and their derivatives (SAED) from
the glycol ethers category in the list of hazardous air pollutants (HAP) established by section 112(b)(1) of the Clean Air Act (CAA).

3 Includes mineral fiber emissions from facilities manufacturing or processing glass, rock, or slag fibers (or other mineral derived fibers) of
average diameter 1 micrometer or less.

“4Includes organic compounds with than one benzene ring, and which have a boiling point greater than or equal to 100°C.
5a type of atom which spontaneously undergoes radioactive decay.

5 The substance ethylene glycol monobutyl ether (EGBE, 2-Butoxyethanol) (Chemical Abstract Service (CAS) Number 111-76-2) is deleted
from the list of hazardous air pollutants established by 42 U.S.C. 7412(b)(1).

SS-7039 (October 2021) 139 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 185



(2)

(3)

The Technical Secretary may consider other applicable criteria in the absence of any data or requirement
of the United States Environmental Protection Agency. In such case, the Technical Secretary shall rely
upon generally accepted engineering principles and any unique aspects of a source category as a whole
that would be a prohibitory factor in the imposition of a requirement for industries in that source category.

To the extent possible, it is the Board's intent to impose MACT and GACT limitations equivalent to that
required by the United States Environmental Protection Agency at the time of the case-by-case case-by-
case determination. Should there be a prudent reason to be more stringent than the federal equivalent
the Technical Secretary may issue a more stringent MACT or GACT requirement. In exercise of the
authority to issue a more stringent requirement, the Technical Secretary shall issue a determination
specifying the rationale employed in the setting of a more stringent requirement. The determination shall
accompany the permit in which the ease-by-case case-by-case determination is declared. As the
declaration of a ease-by-case case-by-case requirement will be specified on a permit, disputes regarding
the imposition of MACT or GACT are to be resolved in the manner prescribed by rule-1200-3-9-05 Rule
1200-03-09-.05. If GACT is done on a permit by rule basis, the Board will view the public hearing process
as the permittee's opportunity to object to the requirements of GACT. However, the permittee may appeal
the applicability of GACT to their operations as to commenced date or emission/production magnitude
applicability thresholds present at their source.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

1200-3-31-.04 1200-03-31-.04 Standard for Existing Sources

(1)

(2)

Major sources will be issued an operating permit pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 1200-3-9-.02
(11) of Rule 1200-03-09-.02 listing their current hazardous air pollutant emission rate on a pelutant-by
pollutant pollutant-by-pollutant basis. These "hollow permits" will remain in effect until one or more of the
following activities occur:

(@) When the United States Environmental Protection Agency promulgates MACT for a source
specific category pursuant to Sections 112(d) or (h) of the federal Clean Air Act, the Technical
Secretary shall specify MACT for all existing major sources in that category as a revision to their
"hollow permit". Upon written notification from the Technical Secretary, the source shall have 180
days to prepare their application for a MACT permit revision and submit it to the Technical
Secretary. The Technical Secretary shall process the application by issuing a permit within 9
months of receipt of a complete application. MACT revisions to hollow permits shall be issued
within 18 months of promulgation. A compliance schedule to attain MACT by a date certain shall
be made part of the permit. The length of the schedule to attain compliance shall be determined
by the complexities of coming into compliance and the Board's intent to be equivalent to the
federal MACT. The Technical Secretary shall provide that the source's compliance schedule is at
least as long as the federal rules allow. In most areas, this should not exceed three years. The
Technical Secretary is authorized to grant up to a one-year extension to comply as long as it does
not conflict with the federal requirements and there is sufficient justification to grant the additional
time.

(b) If the United States Environmental Protection Agency fails to meet the Federal Clean Air Act
schedules prescribed in Section 112(e)(1) and/or (3) for timely promulgation of MACT
requirements thereby invoking the "MACT hammer" provisions at Section 112(j) of the federal
Clean Air Act, the Technical Secretary shall specify MACT for all sources in the source category
in question as a permit revision to their "hollow permit". Sources subject to the missed MACT
standard shall file a complete MACT permit revision application with the Technical Secretary no
later than 18 months after the federally missed deadline for the source category. The Technical
Secretary shall process the MACT permit revision application by issuing a permit within 18
months of his receipt of a complete application.

Area sources that are not exempt from the requirement to obtain a permit pursuant to rule-1200-3-9-.04
Rule 1200-03-09-.04 will be issued an operating permit specifying GACT with an appropriate compliance
schedule to achieve that requirement by a date certain within 18 months of the United States
Environmental Protection Agency's promulgation of a source specific GACT standard if they are in that
source specific category. The date to achieve compliance shall be no less than that allowed by the federal
rule which promulgated GACT for that source category. If a source is not exempted from the requirement
to obtain a permit pursuant to rule-1200-3-9--04 Rule 0400-30-09-.04, it shall be the duty of such area

SS-7039 (October 2021) 140 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 186



source owner or operator to register their annual emissions of hazardous air pollutants with the Technical
Secretary utilizing the forms prescribed by the Technical Secretary. In the interest of efficiency, the
Technical Secretary may bring proposed regulations to the Board that would permit area sources by rule
on a source category specific basis. It is the intent of the Board that such rule would be effective within 18
months of the federal GACT promulgation. The rule will also provide that compliance with GACT shall be
attained no later than that specified by the equivalent federal rule.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

1200-3-31-.05 1200-03-31-.05 Standard Standards for New Sources

(1)

(@)

Major sources shall utilize MACT as prescribed by the Technical Secretary upon start up regardless of
whether or not the United States Environmental Protection Agency has established MACT under Section
112(d) or (h) of the Federal Clean Air Act. MACT shall be prescribed on the source's construction permit
and transferred to the source's operating permit upon start-up startup of the facility.

Area sources that are not exempt from the requirement to obtain a permit in accordance with rule-1200-3-
9-.04 Rule 1200-03-09-.04 shall utilize GACT as prescribed by the Technical Secretary upon start up if
the United States Environmental Protection Agency has established GACT under Section 112(d)(5).
GACT shall be prescribed on the source's construction permit and transferred to the source's operating

permit upon start-up startup of the facility.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

1200-3-31-.06 1200-03-31-.06 Opportunity for Early Reductions Schedule

Q) The owner or operator of an existing source of hazardous air pollutants may be issued an operating
permit allowing 6 six additional years to comply with a future MACT commencing on the compliance date
of that MACT limit if each of the following criteria are satisfied:
€)) The source will utilize control and/or work practices that will result in a 90 per centum or more

reduction in emissions of hazardous air pollutants (95 per centum in the case of hazardous air

pollutants which are particulates).

1. The reduction shall be determined with respect to verifiable and actual emissions in a
base year not earlier than calendar year 1987.

2. If there is evidence that emissions in the base year 1987, or any subsequent base year
are artificially or substantially greater than emissions in other years prior to the
implementation of the early emission reductions, the Technical Secretary shall require the
use of an arithmetic average of the years commencing upon the suspect year and ending
upon the period of time when the person seeking the early reductions schedule files their
plan for the purpose of determining base year emission levels.

3. The Technical Secretary may allow a source to use 1985 or 1986 emission data for the
purpose of determining base year emissions if the source has submitted such data to him
the Technical Secretary in a form that can be used to make the baseline calculations and
further that such information was in his the Technical Secretary’s possession prior to
November 15, 1990.

(2) The early emission reduction must occur prior to the federal proposal of a source category specific MACT
standard to which the source will be subject. Federal proposal will be considered effective when the
United States Environmental Protection Agency publishes the standard in the Federal Register. The
reduction need not actually occur prior to the federal proposal if the source owner or operator has
committed to an enforceable schedule that extends no further than January 1, 1994.

3) A major source operating permit must be issued to the source owner or operator pursuant to the
provisions of paragraph 1200-3-9-02 (11) of Rule 1200-03-09-.02 detailing the schedule to attain the
early emission reductions and the enforceable emission limit that is to be attained. For the purposes of
this subparagraph paragraph, the Technical Secretary shall issue the permit within 9 nine months of a
complete application.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 141 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 187



(4)

The early reductions of less toxic hazardous air pollutants shall not be credited toward the reduction of
highly toxic hazardous air pollutants (such as, but not limited to chlorinated dioxins and furans) that pose
high risks of adverse public health effects associated with exposure to small quantities of such highly
toxic hazardous air pollutants. The Technical Secretary shall use the relative risks of chlorinated dioxins
and furans as a qualitative benchmark in determining whether or not a hazardous air pollutant is highly
toxic.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

1200-3-31-07 1200-03-31-.07 Residual Risk and Revisions to MACT

@)

MACT standards are subject to revision if the United States Environmental Protection Agency determines
that the existing MACT standards are insufficient to protect the public pursuant to the residual risk
provisions of Section 112(f) of the federal Clean Air Act. Upon such finding, the Technical Secretary shall
modify previously set MACT limitations in that source category to conform to the federally promulgated
revised MACT standards within 18 months of such federal promulgation. Said The modification will be a
permit revision to the source's operating permit consistent with the provisions of paragraph 1200-3-9-.02
(11) of Rule 1200-03-09-.02. The Technical Secretary shall prescribe a compliance schedule on the
permit amendment that will specify an expeditious date to attain compliance with the revised MACT
standards. The length of the schedule will be determined by the complexities of coming into compliance
and the Board's desire to be equivalent to any federally revised MACT requirements.

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

1200-3-31--08 1200-03-31-.08 through +200-31-1--12 1200-03-31-.12 Reserved

Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 142 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 188



SS-7039 (October 2021) 143 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 189



SS-7039 (October 2021) 144 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 190



SS-7039 (October 2021) 145 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 191



SS-7039 (October 2021) 146 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 192



SS-7039 (October 2021) 147 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 193



SS-7039 (October 2021) 148 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 194



SS-7039 (October 2021) 149 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 195



SS-7039 (October 2021) 150 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 196



Authority: T.C.A. 88 68-201-101 et seq. and 4-5-201 et seq.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 151 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 197



* If a roll-call vote was necessary, the vote by the Agency on these rulemaking hearing rules was as follows:

Board Member Aye | No Abstain | Absent | Sighature
(if required)

Dr. Ronné Adkins
Commissioner's Designee, Dept. of
Environment and Conservation

Dr. John Benitez
Licensed Physician with experience in health
effects of air pollutants

Dr. Joshua Fu
Involved with Institution of Higher Learning on
air pollution evaluation and control

Mike Haverstick
Working in management in Private
Manufacturing

Dr. Shawn A. Hawkins
Working in field related to Agriculture or
Conservation

Richard Holland
Working for Industry with technical experience

Caitlin Roberts Jennings
Small Generator of Air Pollution representing
Automotive Interests

Dr. Chunrong Jia
Environmental Interests

Ken Moore
Working in Municipal Government

Stephen Moore
Working for Industry with technical experience

Amy Spann, PE
Registered Professional Engineer

Greer Tidwell, Jr.
Conservation Interest

Larry Waters
County Mayor

Jimmy West
Commissioner's Designee, Dept. of Economic
and Community Development

| certify that this is an accurate and complete copy of rulemaking hearing rules, lawfully promulgated and adopted
by the Air Pollution Control Board on 06/08/2022 and is in compliance with the provisions of T.C.A. § 4-5-222.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 152 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 198



| further certify the following:

Notice of Rulemaking Hearing filed with the Department of State on: 10/20/2021
Rulemaking Hearing(s) Conducted on: (add more dates). 12/15/2021
Date:
Signature:

Name of Officer: Michelle W. Owenby

Title of Officer: Technical Secretary

Agency/Board/Commission:  Air Pollution Control Board

Rule Chapter Number(s): 0400-30-38, 1200-03-02, 1200-03-04, 1200-03-05, 1200-03-09, 1200-03-11,

1200-03-16, 1200-03-20, 1200-03-21, 1200-03-26, and 1200-03-31

All rulemaking hearing rules provided for herein have been examined by the Attorney General and Reporter of the
State of Tennessee and are approved as to legality pursuant to the provisions of the Administrative Procedures
Act, Tennessee Code Annotated, Title 4, Chapter 5.

Herbert H. Slatery Il
Attorney General and Reporter

Date

Department of State Use Only

Filed with the Department of State on:

Effective on:

Tre Hargett
Secretary of State

SS-7039 (October 2021) 153 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 199



Public Hearing Comments

One copy of a document that satisfies T.C.A. § 4-5-222 must accompany the filing.

1. Comment:

Response:

The Division of Air Pollution Control (Division), on behalf of Air Pollution Control Board (Board),
received a comment from the Tennessee Chamber of Commerce and Industry (Chamber). The
comment stated that the Chamber understands that the purpose of the proposed amendment is
to incorporate the National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) by
reference to create more efficiency for the Division since these requirements cannot be enforced
unless they are adopted in the state regulations or referenced in permits. However, it was
presented to the Board that the Board would still be required to adopt the standards each year
and thus would have the opportunity to review and consider whether the exact federal standards
are best for Tennessee or whether a variation (equally as stringent) is more appropriate. The
Chamber asked for clarification on how the Division will ensure that any future amendment of the
NESHAP standards will be subject to review and approval of the Board prior to adoption in
Tennessee.

The Division intends to keep Chapter 0400-30-38 current with the comparable federal regulations
by updating Chapter 0400-30-38 on an annual basis. Any future revision to Chapter 0400-30-38
would require a rulemaking hearing notice to be filed with the Office of the Secretary of State and
a rulemaking hearing prior to consideration by the Board.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 154 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 200



Regulatory Flexibility Addendum

Pursuant to T.C.A. 88 4-5-401 through 4-5-404, prior to initiating the rule making process, all agencies shall
conduct a review of whether a proposed rule or rule affects small business.

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

The type or types of small business and an identification and estimate of the number of small businesses
subject to the proposed rule that would bear the cost of, or directly benefit from the proposed rule.

Small businesses are already subject to the National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants
(NESHAP) that the Board is incorporating by reference. It is estimated that less than 250 small
businesses per year are subject to the current NESHAP and likewise subject to this rulemaking.

The projected reporting, recordkeeping, and other administrative costs required for compliance with the
proposed rule, including the type of professional skills necessary for preparation of the report or record.

This rulemaking does not add any additional reporting, recordkeeping, and other administrative costs.
The NESHAP already require reporting and recordkeeping. There is some skill necessary for preparing
reports and records. An employee at a small business with a degree in engineering or environmental
studies would generally prepare the reports or records; however, a college degree is not necessary.

A statement of the probable effect on impacted small businesses and consumers.

This rulemaking will not impose any additional requirements on small businesses currently subject to the
NESHAP.

A description of any less burdensome, less intrusive or less costly alternative methods of achieving the
purpose and objectives of the proposed rule that may exist, and to what extent the alternative means
might be less burdensome to small business.

The Division of Air Pollution Control on behalf of the Board evaluated how the other states in EPA Region
IV were enforcing NESHAP. All states in EPA Region IV other than Tennessee have incorporated the
NESHAP regulations by reference. Also, the EPA has recommended adoption by reference.

A comparison of the proposed rule with any federal or state counterparts.

The other seven states in EPA Region IV have adopted NESHAP regulations by reference. This
rulemaking will have no impact on attracting or detracting economic activity in Tennessee.

Analysis of the effect of the possible exemption of small businesses from all or any part of the
requirements contained in the proposed rule.

There is no exemption available for small businesses from the requirements of the NESHAP since these
regulations are based on the type and amount of air pollutants emitted from a source. The only way for a
small business to no longer be subject to the requirements of the NESHAP would be to eliminate the
emission of air pollutants from the source.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 155 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 201



Impact on Local Governments

Pursuant to T.C.A. 88 4-5-220 and 4-5-228, “On any rule and regulation proposed to be promulgated, the
proposing agency shall state in a simple declarative sentence, without additional comments on the merits for the
policy of the rule or regulation, whether the rule or regulation may have a projected financial impact on local
governments.” The statement shall describe the financial impact in terms of increase in expenditures or decrease

in revenues.”

The Board does not believe this rulemaking will result in an increase in expenditures or decrease in revenues for
local governments.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 156 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 202



Additional Information Required by Joint Government Operations Committee
All agencies, upon filing a rule, must also submit the following pursuant to T.C.A. § 4-5-226(i)(1).

(A) A brief summary of the rule and a description of all relevant changes in previous regulations effectuated by
such rule;

The proposed amendments to Chapter 0400-30-38 will incorporate by reference all National Emission
Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) from 40 C.F.R. Parts 61 and 63. Currently, the requirements
of a NESHAP must be placed in a permit before the State of Tennessee can enforce them. The Tennessee Air
Pollution Control Board (Board) proposes to repeal all of Chapter 1200-03-11 and one rule in Chapter 1200-03-
31, which currently reproduce some, but not all, of the NESHAP regulations. The proposed rule will incorporate
by reference the federal NESHAP regulations and allow the Technical Secretary of the Board to enforce these
federal regulations directly. In addition, current references in other rules to Chapter 1200-03-11 will be revised to
reference to Chapter 0400-30-38.

(B) A citation to and brief description of any federal law or regulation or any state law or regulation mandating
promulgation of such rule or establishing guidelines relevant thereto;

Pursuant to Clean Air Act section 112, Tennessee is required to enforce the NESHAP as part of its federally
authorized air program and incorporating the NESHAP into Chapter 0400-30-38 will streamline permitting and
compliance-related evaluations. According to Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-103 the intent an
purpose of Tennessee Code Annotated Title 68, Chapter 201, Part 1 is to maintain purity of the air resources of
the state consistent with the protection of normal health, general welfare, and physical property of the people,
maximum employment and the full industrial development of the state and for the Board to do so through the
prevention, abatement, and control of air pollution by all practical and economically feasible methods.

(C) Identification of persons, organizations, corporations or governmental entities most directly affected by this
rule, and whether those persons, organizations, corporations or governmental entities urge adoption or
rejection of this rule;

Persons, organizations, corporations, or governmental entities most directly affected by this rule are regulated
facilities that are subject to the NESHAP. The Air Pollution Control Board has not received any indication from
these persons that they object to this rulemaking. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency is a proponent of
this rulemaking.

(D) Identification of any opinions of the attorney general and reporter or any judicial ruling that directly relates to
the rule or the necessity to promulgate the rule;

The Board is not aware any. |

(E) An estimate of the probable increase or decrease in state and local government revenues and expenditures,
if any, resulting from the promulgation of this rule, and assumptions and reasoning upon which the estimate
is based. An agency shall not state that the fiscal impact is minimal if the fiscal impact is more than two
percent (2%) of the agency's annual budget or five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000), whichever is less;

This rulemaking will not increase or decrease state or local government revenues and expenditures. |

(F) Identification of the appropriate agency representative or representatives, possessing substantial knowledge
and understanding of the rule;

Mark A. Reynolds

Division of Air Pollution Control

William R. Snodgrass Tennessee Tower
312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 15th Floor
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

(615) 532-0559
mark.a.reynolds@tn.gov

(G) Identification of the appropriate agency representative or representatives who will explain the rule at a
scheduled meeting of the committees;

SS-7039 (October 2021) 157 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 203


mailto:mark.a.reynolds@tn.gov

Horace Tipton
Legislative Liaison
Office of General Counsel

(H) Office address, telephone number, and email address of the agency representative or representatives who

will explain the rule at a scheduled meeting of the committees; and

Office of General Counsel

Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation
William R. Snodgrass Tennessee Tower

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 2nd Floor

Nashville, Tennessee 37243

(615) 253-5339

Horace.Tipton@tn.gov

(0

Any additional information relevant to the rule proposed for continuation that the committee requests.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

A description of the action proposed, the purpose of the action, the legal authority for the action and the
plan for implementing the action.

The action proposed is to incorporate by reference all National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants (NESHAP) from 40 CFR Parts 61 and 63. The proposed rule will incorporate by reference the
NESHAP regulations and allow the Technical Secretary of the Board to enforce these federal
regulations directly instead of including them in individual permits. The statutory authority for this
rulemaking is Tennessee Code Annotated Title 68, Chapter 201, Part 1. The NESHAP regulations
protect public health by limiting the emissions of air pollution. These rules effectuate the intent of
Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-103 “to maintain purity of the air resources of the state
consistent with the protection of normal health, general welfare and physical property of the people,
maximum employment and the full industrial development of the state” and for the board to do so
“through the prevention, abatement and control of air pollution by all practical and economically feasible
methods.”

A determination that the action is the least-cost method for achieving the stated purpose.

This rulemaking is believed to be the least-cost method for the State to enforce the NESHAP
regulations. The Division of Air Pollution Control (Division) evaluated how the other states in EPA
Region IV were enforcing the NESHAP regulations. The other seven states in EPA Region IV have
incorporated the NESHAP regulations by reference. Also, the EPA has recommended adoption by
reference.

A comparison of the cost-benefit relation of the action to nonaction.

This rulemaking incorporates by reference all federal NESHAP and authorizes the Technical Secretary
to enforce these regulations directly. There will be no additional costs associated with the proposed rule.
Regulated facilities are already required to comply with the most current version of the NESHAP
regardless of whether they are incorporated in a permit, because EPA has authority under Clean Air Act
section 112 to enforce the federal NESHAP regulations in states. If the rules are not promulgated, the
Technical Secretary will not be able to enforce the NESHAP directly in the event that a permit for a
regulated source has not yet been issued or must be revised to incorporate the relevant NESHAP
provisions. Based on this comparison, the benefits of moving forward with this rulemaking outweigh the
costs.”

A determination that the action represents the most efficient allocation of public and private resources.

This action represents the most efficient allocation of public and private resources. The NESHAP
regulations help protect public health by limiting the emissions of air pollution. By making these
changes, the Board will full incorporate the federal regulations so that they can be directly enforced by
the Technical Secretary.

A determination of the effect of the action on competition.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 158 RDA 1693
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 204


mailto:Horace.Tipton@tn.gov

This rulemaking will not affect competition.

(6) A determination of the effect of the action on the cost of living in the geographical area in which the
action would occur.

Cost of living in the geographical area in which the action would occur will not be affected.

(7 A determination of the effect of the action on employment in the geographical area in which the action
would occur.

It is not anticipated that the action will affect employment.

(8) The source of revenue to be used for the action.

The action can be accommodated with existing resources.

(9) A conclusion as to the economic impact upon all persons substantially affected by the action, including

an analysis containing a description as to which persons will bear the costs of the action and which
persons will benefit directly and indirectly from the action.
There will be no additional costs associated with this rulemaking. Regulated facilities are already
required to comply with the most current version of the NESHAP regulations regardless of whether they
are incorporated in a permit, because EPA has authority under Clean Air Act section 112 to enforce the
NESHAP regulations in states. However, this rule will allow the Technical Secretary to enforce the most
current version of the federal requirements even if the provisions of the current version have not been
incorporated into a permit.

SS-7039 (October 2021) 159 RDA 1693

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 205



TN SIP REVISION
MAINTENANCE PLAN UPDATE

for the

Bristol, Tennessee Lead (Pb) Area

¥\ B Environment &
— CONservation

Prepared by the
Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation Air Division

April 12, 2022

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 206



SUMMARY

Through a cover letter dated July 10, 2015, the State of Tennessee submitted a redesignation request and
maintenance plan for the portion of Sullivan County, Tennessee that was designated nonattainment for the
2008 lead national ambient air quality standards (NAAQS). This area is known as the Bristol Tennessee Area.
On July 7, 2016, EPA approved this redesignation request and maintenance plan, and consequently
redesignated the Bristol Tennessee area to attainment for the 2008 lead NAAQS. As discussed below, the
State of Tennessee is submitting this SIP revision to request EPA approval of updates to the maintenance plan
for the Bristol Tennessee Area to remove the lead monitoring requirements and related contingency measure
triggers as stipulated in Requirement 4 of 4 in Chapter 3 and Requirement 2 of 4 in Chapter 6 of the original
SIP revision.

Maintenance Plan Updates

As discussed above, Tennessee is submitting this SIP revision to revise requirement 4 of 4 in Chapter 3 of the
original SIP revision which provided the maintenance plan for the Bristol Tennessee Area. Specifically,
Chapter 3, Requirement 4 of 4 reads:

Chapter 3 - Requirement 4 of 4
A commitment that once redesignated, the state will continue to operate an appropriate monitoring network to
verify the maintenance of the attainment status.

Demonstration

TDAPC commits to continue monitoring lead levels at this site as indicated in Figures 3-1, 3-2, and Table 1. TDAPC
will consult with U.S. EPA Region 4 prior to making changes to the existing monitoring network, should changes
become necessary in the future. TDAPC will continue to quality assure the monitoring data to meet the
requirements of 40 CFR Part 58 and all other federal requirements. TDAPC will enter all data into AQS on a timely
basis in accordance with federal guidelines.

TDAPC is now requesting that this language be revised to read:

Requirement 4 of 4
A commitment that the state will operate an appropriate monitoring network to verify the maintenance of the
attainment status.

Demonstration

TDAPC commits to resume monitoring if monitoring is required by the Pb monitoring regulations in 40 CFR Part 58,
Appendix D, Section 4.5. TDAPC will consult with U.S. EPA Region 4 prior to making changes to the existing
monitoring network, should changes become necessary in the future. TDAPC will continue to quality assure any
monitoring data to meet the requirements of 40 CFR Part 58 and all other federal requirements. TDAPC will enter
any data into AQS on a timely basis in accordance with federal guidelines.

Tennessee is also submitting this SIP revision to revise requirement 2 of 4 in Chapter 6 of the original SIP revision
which provided the maintenance plan for the Bristol Tennessee Area. Specifically, Chapter 6, Requirement 2 of 4
reads:

apc board packet-June-08-2022 207

TN SIP Revision — Maintenance Plan Update for the Bristol, TN Area




Requirement 2 of 4

A commitment to expeditiously enact and implement additional contingency control measures in response to
exceeding specified predetermined levels (triggers) or in the event that future violations of the ambient standard
occur.

Demonstration
Tennessee hereby commits to adopt and expeditiously implement necessary corrective actions in the following
circumstances:

Warning Level Response:

A warning level response shall be prompted whenever a lead 3-month rolling average concentration of 0.135
pg/m3 (90% of the standard) occurs within the maintenance area. A warning level response will consist of a study
to determine whether the lead value indicates a trend toward higher lead values. The study will evaluate whether
the trend, if any, is likely to continue and, if so, the control measures necessary to reverse the trend taking into
consideration ease and timing for implementation as well as economic and social considerations. Implementation
of necessary controls in response to a warning level response trigger will take place as expeditiously as possible,
but in no event later than 12 months from the conclusion of the most recent calendar year.

Should it be determined through the warning level study that action is necessary to reverse the noted trend, the
procedures for control selection and implementation outlined under “action level response” shall be followed.

Action Level Response:

An action level response shall be prompted whenever the 3-month rolling average concentration of 0.143 pg/m3
(95% of the standard) or greater occurs within the maintenance area. A violation of the standard (any 3-month
rolling average over a 36-month rolling average period (3-calendar years plus the preceding 2 months) exceeds
0.15 pg/m3) shall also prompt an action level response. In the event that the action level is triggered and is not
found to be due to an exceptional event, malfunction, or noncompliance with a permit condition or rule
requirement, TDAPC in conjunction with the entity(ies) believed to be responsible for the exceedance will evaluate
additional control measures needed to assure future attainment of the NAAQS for the lead standard. In this case,
measures that can be implemented in a short time will be selected in order to be in place within 18 months from
the close of the calendar year that prompted the action level. TDAPC will also consider the timing of an action level
trigger and determine if additional, significant new regulations not currently included as part of the maintenance
provisions will be implemented in a timely manner and will constitute our response.

TDAPC is now requesting that this language be revised to read:

Chapter 6 - Requirement 2 of 4
A commitment to expeditiously enact and implement additional contingency control measures in response to
future violations of the ambient standard.

Demonstration
If a requirement for a monitor is triggered in the future based on Chapter 3, Requirement 4 of 4, Tennessee hereby
commits to adopt and expeditiously implement necessary corrective actions in the following circumstances:

Warning Level Response:

A warning level response shall be prompted whenever a lead 3-month rolling average concentration of 0.135
ug/m3 (90% of the standard) occurs within the maintenance area. A warning level response will consist of a study
to determine whether the lead value indicates a trend toward higher lead values. The study will evaluate whether
the trend, if any, is likely to continue and, if so, the control measures necessary to reverse the trend taking into
consideration ease and timing for implementation as well as economic and social considerations. Implementation

apc board packet-June-08-2022 208

TN SIP Revision — Maintenance Plan Update for the Bristol, TN Area




of necessary controls in response to a warning level response trigger will take place as expeditiously as possible,
but in no event later than 12 months from the conclusion of the most recent calendar year.

Should it be determined through the warning level study that action is necessary to reverse the noted trend, the
procedures for control selection and implementation outlined under “action level response” shall be followed.

Action Level Response:

An action level response shall be prompted whenever the 3-month rolling average concentration of 0.143 pg/m3
(95% of the standard) or greater occurs within the maintenance area. A violation of the standard (any 3-month
rolling average over a 36-month rolling average period (3-calendar years plus the preceding 2 months) exceeds
0.15 pg/m3) shall also prompt an action level response. In the event that the action level is triggered and is not
found to be due to an exceptional event, malfunction, or noncompliance with a permit condition or rule
requirement, TDAPC in conjunction with the entity(ies) believed to be responsible for the exceedance will evaluate
additional control measures needed to assure future attainment of the NAAQS for the lead standard. In this case,
measures that can be implemented in a short time will be selected in order to be in place within 18 months from
the close of the calendar year that prompted the action level. TDAPC will also consider the timing of an action level
trigger and determine if additional, significant new regulations not currently included as part of the maintenance
provisions will be implemented in a timely manner and will constitute our response.

TECHNICAL SUPPORT FOR REQUEST SIP REVISION

Due to several changes that have happened in the Bristol Tennessee Area, the State of Tennessee does not
believe that it is necessary to continue to conduct ambient air quality monitoring in this Area to demonstrate
continued maintenance of the 2008 lead NAAQS. First, the lead source has shut down and the permit has
been rescinded. Additionally, monitoring trends in the Area have confirmed that the area is continuing to
demonstrate attainment of the NAAQS after the shutdown of the sources. Finally, there has been recent soil
sampling at and around the site that demonstrates that there are not lead soil issues which could be disturbed
and cause subsequent exceedances or violations of the 2008 lead NAAQS. Below, TDAPC hereby presents the
area lead (Pb) monitoring trend, soil sampling and technical demonstration for this maintenance plan update.

Bristol Lead 10-Year Monitoring Data Analysis

The State began monitoring for lead at the Exide site (47-163-3004) on January 1, 2010, to verify NAAQS
compliance as required by 40 CFR Part 58 Subpart G, Appendix D. The source-oriented sampling site is located at
364 Exide Drive, Bristol TN 37620. Lead sampling is conducted on a 1 in 6-day frequency using the federal
equivalent method EQL-0512-201. On November 22, 2010, the Bristol Tennessee Area, surrounding the Exide
facility, was designated nonattainment for the 2008 lead NAAQS based on the current 3-year design value
exceeding the 0.15 microgram per cubic meter (ug/m?3) standard. The former lead source surrendered its air
permits in November 2014 and no other lead source is in the area. On July 7, 2016, the Bristol Tennessee Area was
redesignated to attainment for the 2008 lead NAAQS based on monitoring data at the Exide site. Since that time,
the monitor has demonstrated attainment of the 2008 lead NAAQS. Lead data was acquired on 2/1/2022 from the
EPA’s Air Quality System (AQS) for the previous 10 calendar years. The lead design value data is provided below.

apc board packet-June-08-2022 209

TN SIP Revision — Maintenance Plan Update for the Bristol, TN Area




Bristol Lead Design Values (3 Yr Highest 3-Month Mean)
0.17

[ R R R T R T T T R L LT T LI LR L RL TR T T
0.13

0.11

0.09 o0.08* 008

PRI oo 007
0.07

Lead (pg/m3)

Qe
~.__ 005
0.05 /'b
'\\
0.03 N
Exide Permit Surrender > Q-Ol 0.01 0.01*

0.01 o——o 0 0 0 e
SN D

-0.01
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
<&—TN Pb Sampling =~ «+++++- Pb NAAQS
*Incomplete Design Value

Figure 1: Lead 3-Yr Design Values for the Most Recent 10-yr Period

3-Year Design Value (pg/m3) | 3-Year DV Validity Indicator 3-Year Maximum Month

2012 0.08 N 6
2013 0.08 Y 6
2014 0.07 Y 2
2015 0.05 Y 1
2016 0.01 Y 1
2017 0.01 Y 1
2018 0.00 Y 1
2019 0.00 Y 1
2020 0.00 Y 1
2021 0.01 N 6

Table 1: Lead 3-Yr Design Values for the Most Recent 10-yr Period

Since the source shutdown and surrendered its air permits, 24-hr ambient concentrations of lead, as measured by
the primary sampler, have averaged 0.006 ug/m? with a maximum 24-hr value of 0.077 pg/m?3 (4/30/2015). Three-
year design values that do not include years of battery plant operation (2016-2021) have been at or near zero
concentrations.

Soil Sampling

On November 16 and 17, 2020, a Limited Site Investigation that included soil sampling for lead, was conducted by
Key Engineering Group and Strata Group, of Lexington, Kentucky. Sampling was conducted outside the former lead
battery plant by taking a total of 18 soil samples from depths between 0 to 15.5 feet below ground. Soil samples
were analyzed for lead using Method 6016D and sulfate using Method 9056A by Eurofins Test America of
University Park, lllinois. The analysis concluded that the historical Exide operations did not result in a release to the

apc board packet-June-08-2022 210

TN SIP Revision — Maintenance Plan Update for the Bristol, TN Area




soils outside the building; lead levels were detected below the residential and industrial regional screening levels
(RSLs).

Demonstration

The Area is currently well maintained with respect to the Lead NAAQS and the main and only lead (Pb) emitting
source, the Exide Technologies, has ceased operations and permanently shut down in November 2014. Continued
lead monitoring at this location is not necessary as there is no current existence of any lead emitting source in this
maintenance area. Based on the last 6 years (2016-2021) of lead monitoring data analysis since the shutdown of
the Exide facility, ambient lead concentrations were extremely low ranging between zero and 0.01 ug/m3and the
latter is indicative of a natural background nature. Additionally, particulate soil deposits accumulated over the
years were tested and addressed in a recent 2020 soil testing report as indicated above. This soil testing report
(see attachment for Limited Site Investigation by KEY engineering group — separate file) was conducted in
anticipation of selling the Exide property to a potential buyer. The highest reported lead level among the 14 test
samples is 50 mg/kg, which is well below the EPA-recommended regional screening levels (RSL) of 400 mg/kg
(Residential RSL) and 800 mg/kg (Industrial RSL).

Further, as mentioned above, TDAPC commits to resume monitoring if monitoring is required by the Pb monitoring

regulations in 40 CFR Part 58, Appendix D, Section 4.5. TDAPC will consult with U.S. EPA Region 4 prior to making
changes to the existing monitoring network, should changes become necessary in the future.

apc board packet-June-08-2022 211

TN SIP Revision — Maintenance Plan Update for the Bristol, TN Area




KEY

ENGINEERING
GROUP vr.

A Division of SET Environmental Inc.
735 North Water Street, Suite 510
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202

Phone (414) 224-8300

Fax (414) 224-8383

December 10, 2020

Mr. Frank Crivello
Phoenix Investors
401 East Kilbourn Avenue, Suite 201
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202
Via Email: frank@phoenixinvestors.com

Subject:  Limited Site Investigation
Former Exide Technologies
364 Exide Drive
Bristol, Tennessee
KEY ENGINEERING GROUP, LTD.
File No. 2001-0212-0040
Dear Mr. Crivello:

Key Engineering Group, Ltd. (KEY) has prepared this report to present the results of a Limited Site
Investigation completed at the former Exide Technologies (Exide) property located at 364 Exide Drive,
in Bristol, Tennessee (Site) (Figure 1). The Limited Site Investigation was completed as part of the due
diligence phase for a potential purchase of the property. The main concern of the Phase II was to
determine if the subject site had been impacted significantly with lead due to the long-term use by Exide
and whether those impacts could represent significant liability. A Baseline Environmental Assessment
was not completed at this time due to time constraints. A Phase I Environmental Site Assessment was
completed on December 10, 2020 that identified the follow recognized environmental condition (REC)

related to the former Exide operations:

e Exide Technologies operated at the subject site from 1994 to 2013 for the manufacturing of
batteries. Potential constituents of concern related to Exide based on a review of multiple files
includes lead, sulfuric acid, arsenic, antimony, barium sulfate, sodium hydroxide, virgin and
waste oil, and tetrachloroethylene were used in the manufacturing of batteries. The use of these

products and waste management practice violations are considered a REC.

INVESTIGATION ACTIVITIES

A Limited Site Investigation was completed by KEY between November 16 and 17, 2020. The
investigation was completed onsite and outside of the footprint of the building. Investigation activities
were not completed inside the building since the power to the building was shut down by Exide, hence
limiting access and visibility in the building. Below is a summary of the investigation activities and field
procedures.

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 212


file://///USWHEsv26.setenv.com/Homedirs/TLS/Ledvance%20proposals/Phase%20II%20ESAs/St.%20Mary's%20PA/Phase%20II%20ESA/frank@phoenixinvestors.com

Frank Crivello Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Page 2 Project No. 2001-0212-0040

Investigation Activities

Between November 16 and 17, 2020, KEY provided oversight Strata Group, of Lexington, Kentucky to advance
15 soil borings (GP-1 through GP-15) using a direct push drill rig. Soil boring locations are presented on
Figure 2. The boring locations were selected to evaluate the soil lead and sulfate quality across the Site. The
investigation was limited to lead and sulfate since these are the primary constituents of concern at this time based

on Exide’s historical operations.

The borings were advanced to 5 feet below ground surface (bgs) with the exception of seven borings which were
advanced to refusal. The borings were advanced using a Geoprobe Large Bore Soil Sampler. Soil samples were
collected by driving a steel sampling rod (sampler) with acetate liners to the desired sampling depth using the
hydraulic ram and hammer on the Geoprobe rig. Once the sampler reaches the desired depth, the sampler was
opened by removing a stop pin in the sampler. The sampler was driven an additional 5 feet to push a soil sample
into the sampler, preserving the sample in a 1-inch by 5-foot acetate liner inside the sampler. The acetate sleeves

will allow continuous collection of soil samples from each boring. Boring logs are included in Attachment 1.

KEY described the soil properties and field screened each 2-foot soil interval for organic vapors using a
photoionization detector (PID). KEY selected one to two soil samples per boring for laboratory analysis. The
soil samples were collected from within the upper two feet below grade and the interval located directly above
the soil-bedrock interface. Soil samples were analyzed for lead using Method 6010D and sulfate using Method
9056A by Eurofins TestAmerica (Eurofins) of University Park, Illinois. Soil analytical results are presented in

Table 1. The soil laboratory report is presented in Attachment 2.

On November 17, 2020, KEY collected one water sample from the Storm Water Outfall located on the south of
Exide Drive and one sediment sample from the just outside the Storm Water Outfall. The locations of the samples
are presented on Figure 2. The water sample was submitted for laboratory analysis of lead using Method 6010D,
sulfate using Method 9056A, and pH using Method SM4500 by Eurofins. The sediment sample was submitted
for laboratory analysis of lead using Method 6010D and sulfate using Method 9056A. The sediment and water
analytical results are presented in Tables 2 and 3, respectively. The sediment and water laboratory reports are

presented in Attachments 2 and 3, respectively.
SOIL AND GROUNDWATER STANDARDS

Tennessee does not promulgate standards for any contaminant in any medium except tap water. For screening
purposes, Tennessee uses regional screening values from the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).
Tennessee screens for groundwater contamination by comparing concentrations to federal or state tap water

maximum contaminant levels (MCLs).
INVESTIGATION FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS
Below is a summary of the geology, hydrogeology, field screening results, analytical results, findings, and

conclusions.

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 213



Frank Crivello Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Page 3 Project No. 2001-0212-0040

Geology and Hydrogeology

The geology was generally described as yellowish brown or reddish brown silty clay. Red and gray mottling
were also observed. Refusal was encountered at GP-1 at 15.5 feet, GP-4 at 10 feet, GP-5 at 9.5 feet, GP-7 at 12
feet, GP-9 at 1 foot, GP-11 at 7.5 feet, and GP-13 at 2.5 feet. Based on previous investigations, refusal was
interpreted as bedrock. The field screening results ranged from O to 1.6 parts per million. These field screening

results are at or below background levels. Groundwater was not encountered in the unconsolidated soils.
Soil, and Storm Water Outfall Investigation
Below is a summary of the analytical results, findings, and conclusions.

Soil Analytical Results

A total of 18 soil samples were analyzed for lead and sulfate from depths between 0 to 15.5 feet bgs. A summary
of the soil analytical results is presented in Table 1. Sample locations are presented on Figure 2.

o Lead was detected between 8.9 mg/kg and 50 mg/kg. Lead was detected below the residential and

industrial regional screening levels (RSLs) of 400 milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg) and 800 mg/kg in

the samples. Based on the detected lead concentrations, it does appear that the Exide historical

operations have not resulted in a release to the soils outside the building footprint.

e Sulfate concentrations were detected between 2.4 mg/kg to 75 mg/kg, with the exception of
concentrations detected at 160 mg/kg (GP-4 from 0.5 to 2 feet), 250 mg/kg (GP-13 from 0 to 2 feet),
and 350 mg/kg (GP-8 from 0.5 to 2 feet).

There are no EPA RSLs for sulfate. However, a box plot can be used to evaluate the distribution of a
dataset and determine if outliers exist. A sulfate box plot is presented as Figure 3. Based on the dataset,
the upper and lower outlier limits were calculated at -73 mg/kg and 152 mg/kg. This would mean that

the sulfate concentrations from GP-4, GP-13, and GP-8 are outliers.
Storm Water Outfall Analytical Results

A Storm Water Outfall is located south of Exide Drive. A water sample was collected for total lead, sulfate, and
pH and a sediment sample was collected from just outside the Storm Water Outfall pipe for lead and sulfate. A
summary of the sediment and water analytical results are presented in Tables 1 and 2, respectively. Sample

locations are presented on Figure 2.

o Inthe water sample, total lead was reported below laboratory detection limits at <0.0027 milligrams per
liter (mg/L). Sulfate was detected at 34 mg/L and pH was reported at 7.1. The source of the sulfate is
likely not from a release of sulfuric acid since the pH is neutral.

o Inthe sediment sample, lead was detected below the residential and industrial RSLs at 32 mg/kg. Sulfate
was detected at 20 mg/kg, which is within the upper and lower outlier limits discussed above.

e Based on these concentrations, it does not appear that lead or sulfuric acid have been discharged through
this outfall.

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 214



Frank Crivello Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Page 4 Project No. 2001-0212-0040

FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS

Based on the field observations and analytical results, the following conclusions and recommendations can be

made.

e The geology is generally described as yellowish brown or reddish brown silty clay. Refusal was
encountered between 1 and 15.5 feet bgs. Refusal was interpreted as bedrock based on previous
investigations conducted at the Site.

o The field screening results are at or below background levels.

¢ Groundwater water not encountered in the unconsolidated soils.

e [Lead was detected below the residential and industrial RSLs in the 18 soil samples collected onsite
outside the footprint of the building. It does not appear that there has been a release of lead to subsurface
soils from the historical Exide operations.

e Sulfate concentrations were detected at low levels, with the exception of three samples where the
concentrations were calculated as potential outliers in the dataset. These outlier concentrations ranged
from 160 mg/kg to 350 mg/kg at GP-4, GP-8, and GP-13. There are no EPA RSLs for sulfate. Further
evaluation, including background sampling, may be warranted to determine if these data point locations
may represent a potential release of sulfuric acid.

e The water and sediment analytical results from the Storm Water Outfall located south of Exide Drive

are not indicative of release of lead or sulfuric acid from historical Exide operations.

Sincerely,

KEY ENGINEERING GROUP, LTD.

Towd Scleoun

Toni Schoen
Senior Project Manager

Ctid

Kenneth W. Wein, CHMM

Principal

Attachments

Table 1 Soil and Sediment Analytical Results

Table 2 Stormwater Outfall Analytical Results

Figure 1 Site Location Map

Figure 2 Soil Boring Locations and Groundwater Analytical (2013)
Figure 3 Soil Sulfate Box Plot

Attachment 1 Soil Boring Logs

Attachment 2 Soil and Sediment Laboratory Reports

Attachment 3 Stormwater Outfall Laboratory Report

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 215



o

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

Tables

www.keyengineering.com

216

Key Engineering Group, Ltd.

o




Table 1. Soil and Sediment Analytical Results

Former Exide Technologies, 364 Exide Drive, Bristol, Tennessee

Page 1 of 2

GP-1

Sample ID GP-2 GP-4 GP-5 GP-6 GP-7 GP-8 GP-9 GP-10 GP-11
Residential Industrial
Sample Depth (feet|  Regional Regional 0-2 14155 0.5-2 0.5-2 0-2 8-9.5 0-2 0.5-2 10-12 0.5-2 051 0-2 0-2 6-7.5
bgs) Screening Level | Screening Level
Sample Date 11/16/20 11/16/20 11/16/20 11/16/20 11/16/20 11/16/20 11/16/20 11/16/20 11/16/20 11/16/20 11/16/20 11/17/20 11/17/20 11/17/20
Sample Type Soil Soil Soil Soll Soil Soll Soil Soll Soil Soil Soil Soil Soil Soil
Analyses (mg/kg)
Lead 400 800 25F1 17 26 30 41 43 21 24 23 8.9 27 50 18 23
Sulfate --- --- 20 21 27 160 17 7.7 10 75 24 350 61 6.5 65 29

--- - no standard established

F1 - matrix spike and matrix spike duplicate recovery exceeds control limits

J - Result is less than the reporting limit but greater than or equal to the method detection limit and the concentration is an approximate value.

mg/kg - milligrams per kilogram

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

217




Table 1. Soil and Sediment Analytical Results

Former Exide Technologies, 364 Exide Drive, Bristol, Teni

Storm
Sample ID GP-12 GP-13 GP-14 GP-15 Sewer
Residential Industrial Outfall
Sample Depth (feet Regional Regional 0-2 0-2 0-2 0-2 0-1
bgs) Screening Level | Screening Level
Sample Date 11/17/20 11/17/20 11/17/20 11/17/20 11/17/20
Sample Type Soil Soll Soil Soil Sediment
Analyses (mg/kg)
Lead 400 800 9.6 11 35 27 32
Sulfate 41 250 15 12 20

--- - no standard established

F1 - matrix spike and matrix spike duplicate recovery exceeds

J - Result is less than the reporting limit but greater than or eq

mg/kg - milligrams per kilogram

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

218

Page 2 of 2



Page 1 of 1

Table 2. Storm Sewer Outfall Water Analytical Results

Former Exide Technologies, 364 Exide Drive, Bristol, Tennessee

Maximum
. Storm Sewer

Sample ID Contaminant

Outfall

Level

Analyses
Lead (mg/L) 15,000 <0.0027
Sulfate (mg/L) --- 34
pH (SU) 7.1 HF

Values were compared to US Environmental Protection Agency Regional Screening Levels, November 2020
--- - no standard established

HF - field parameter with a holding time of 15 minutes.

mg/L - milligrams per liter

SU - standard unit

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 219



o

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

Figures

www.keyengineering.com

220

Key Engineering Group, Ltd.

o




N T LW ‘\\‘\\

‘McClellan. %
a kil
oHow‘

2

Project:
2001-0212-0034

Map Source:
United States Geologic Survey

Map Date:
2013

apc_board g

Quadrangle Map:

ackaldtine:JE 55

FIGURE 1
SITE LOCATION MAP
364 EXIDE DRIVE
BRISTOL, TENNESSEE

221

KEY

ENGINEERING
GROUP v

A Division of SET Environmental Inc




- '/
- -
.~
. ”
'/ *
"'
. - -
’¢
. "
!’ *
" *
. "
O -
. -/'
. e -
W-24
\“ W-
\
S LLI-TCA | 72
S, LIDCA | <71
* 1.1-DCE <71
\‘ Chloroethane <7.1
Chloroform <7.1
cis-1 2DCE | 120
Freon 113 | <7.1
TCE 200
Vinyl chloride | 24
-
4
\e -
o @ GP-13 PR
(\ L
.0 4
\o
> {
\ : 1,1,I-TCA <1.0
o) . 1IDCA 13
__," GP-15 . 1,1-DCE <1.0
. Chloroethane | <1.0
- 5
. ®W 3 Chloroform | <1.0
cis-12DCE | 16
.= Freon 113 | <10
A TCE 32
. Vinyl chloride | <1.0
r [ [
0
/ 1,1I-TCA
.
B GP-1 LI-DCA
,I 5 Dao\ w3 \® 11-DCE
‘ 0 0% o0 Chloroethane
./ ° / GP-5 ‘ W-30 Chloroform
P-10 cis-1,2-DCE
Freon 113
W-0 ® TCE
W-23 Vinyl chloride | 13
GP-9 W-2
Exide Plant GP-4 LILI-TCA | <10
W.20 & \ TIDCA | <10 /
GP-Z. W-25 5& 11-DCE <10
. Chloroethane | <1.0
& W2 it 19
cis-1,2-] 3
W-16 Freon 113 | <10
TCE 24
LLI-TCA | <10 W-15 Vinyl chloride | <10
GP-8 . 11-DCA <10 - W.21 Lo 1,1,1-TCA
.
- 1IDCE | <10 - LI-DCA | <10
Chloroethane | <I1.0 ' ‘\ LI-DCE <10
L gend Chloroform | <1.0 GP-7 wW-4 GP-1 o Chioroethane | <1.0
cis-1,2-DCE | 16 Chloroform | <1.0
® Shallow Monitoring Well \. \. Freon 113 8.8 \\ s cis-1,2-DCE | <1.0
. ‘\ TCE 23 \ Freon 113 <10
® Deep Monitoring Well AN N\ Vinyl chloride | 12 e "‘\ TCE <10
. . <
o ] a e \ Vinyl chloride | <1.0
®  Abandoned Monitoring Well NN W-5\& .
N\ /0 \ W-22 Creek 4
2° .7 Property Boundary w-28 & i\
K N
Well ID N .
LLI-TCA | <1.0 | 1,1,1-Trichloroethane ©  Spring for \‘ \‘ W-11 Wet Wﬁﬁg\eﬁ-
1I-DCA_ | <1.0 | 1,1-Dichloroethane Univac R\ KN - - Spring
1,1-DCE <1.0_| 1,1-Dichloroethylene Branch D\ o L Y )
Chloroethane | <1.0 | Chloroethane \ " \ Perennial
: W-8 . 1,1,I-TCA
Chloroforn | <1.0_| Chloroform . A -e T
cis-1,2-DCE 2.0 cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene N e )"}— bl _
Freon 113 | <1.0 | Freon 113 A LI-DCE | <1.0
ICE 12| Trichloroethylene Chloroethane | 1.0
Vinyl chloride | 13| Vinyl chloride Chloroform | 17
Cis-12-DCE | 12 H
All results are in micrograms per liter (ug/L) Ou;fasll X\_/atert W27 R — — ;ren" 0 o Flgu re 2
[ Constituent Concentration above MCL and sedimen / RET - TCE 12 . . .
NA_ Not Analyzed Creek2 Y/ Sample P A ] Soil Boring Locations and
; ; Locations ‘ Chiorocthane | <33 .
@ SoilBoring » O Storfm Sewer kit g e Groundwater Analytlcal (201 3)
Ou; S”d ater a cis-12-DCE | 74
W= v and Sediment Freon 113 | <33
Sample TCE a3
S Vinyl chloride | 20
0 250 500
Feet Map Source: Unisys Bristol Plant Site, Bristol, Tennessee
ee

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

222




Sulfate Box Plot

Soil Sulfate Box Plot

Sulfate
GP-1 0-2 20 Minimum 051
GP-1 14155 21 Quartile 1 (Q1) 12
GP-2 0.5-2 27 Median 24 350 @350
GP-3 1-3 93 Quartile 3 (Q3) 68
GP-4 052 160 Maximum 350 ao0
—  GP-4 8-10 0.51
w5 GPE 02 17 Mean 83 s
52 GP-5 8-9.5 77 Range 349
EX GP6 02 10
S8  GP7 052 75 IarR 56 200
e GP7 1012 24 1QRx15 84 .
U ® GP-8 0.5-2 350 Outlier Lower Limit 73 150
E é” GP-9 0.5-1 61 Outlier Upper Limit 152
£ GP-10 0-2 6.5 100
GP-11 0-2 65 i
GP-11 6-7.5 29 Standard Deviation o1 53 73
GP-12 02 41 Confidence Level (95.0%) 40
GP-13 0-2 250 95% Upper Confidence Interval 103 2
GP-14 02 15 95% Lower Confidence Interval 23 0 —
GP-15 0-2 12 1
SOIL SUFLATE BOX PLOT
FORMER EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES
364 EXIDE DRIVE EN&{E%%?E:IG
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 BRISTOL, TENNESSEEE 223 ]

A Division of SET Environmental Inc.




o

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

Attachment 1

www.keyengineering.com

224

Key Engineering Group, Ltd.

o




OIL BORING LO

g 1 of 1

Facility/Project Name:

Exide Bristol, Tennessee

Facility Street Addr ss:
364 Exide Drive, Bristol, Tennessee

Boring Name:

GP-1

First Name: Mark

Firm: Strata Group, LLC

Boring Drilled By: Name of crew chief (first, last) and Firm

Last Name: Stafford

Date Drilling Started

11/16/2020

Date Drilling Completed

11/16/2020

Drilling Method

Direct Push

Water Level Depth ‘Well Name Final Static Wat r Level Surface Elevation Borehole Diameter
Feet MSL Feet MSL
Local Grid Origin O ( stim ted: 0O) or Boring Location m] Loc 1 Grid Location
State Plane N, E S/C/N Lat © : " 0 N 0 E
1/4 1/4 of S ction ,T N,R E/W Long 0 ' " Feet a S Feet O W
Abandonment Method County: Civil Town/City/or Village:
B i Sullivan Bristol
Sample Soil Prop rties -
- = <}
— a Q£ o0 — = - = =
2 2 E Ef & g~ i - . - » 3 5 =z 2 - 2
£ 5 3 £ & © | Soil/Rock Description And Geological Origin For O o — ) =] S = = o
=, <. ¢ Sz aior Uni @ = A & 2% 3 3 > | g |e
o > = 3 €25 Each Major Unit =) e = a 5 = 2 S |9
= 33 2 &= @ 9 . = = E] El 2 a)
E] =5 m am o = o @» 2 Ry 2 o
“ — = o g 3 - &
| TOPSOIL (CL) - Silty Clay, Brown, Moist
: SILTY CLAY (CL) - Yellowish Brown, Minor
1 Red and Black Mottling, Moist, Trace Fine Gravel 03
2
1GP 60/34 —
— 3 1.5
4
— 5 0.9
6
| SILTY CLAY (CL) - Gray
— 7 0.7
2GP 60/42 —
— g CL
| SILTY CLAY (CL) - Yellowish Brown, Minor
| Red and Black Mottling, Trace Fine Gravel,
| Moist
9 1.6
|10
1 05
12
3GP 60/54 —
— 13 0.5
| 14
— 15 0.6
4Gp 60/20 —
| Boring refusal at 15.5 feet below ground surface.
I hereby certify that the inform tion on this form is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.
Signature EMK Firm

Key Engineering Group, Ltd

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

225




OIL BORING LO g of 1
Facility/Project Name: Facility Street Addr ss: Boring Name:
Exide Bristol, Tennessee 364 Exide Drive, Bristol, Tennessee GP-2
Boring Drilled By: Name of crew chief (first, last) and Firm Date Drilling Started Date Drilling Completed Drilling Method
First Name: Mark Last Name: Stafford
11/16/2020 11/16/2020 Direct Push
Firm: Strata Group, LLC
Water Level Depth ‘Well Name Final Static Wat r Level Surface Elevation Borehole Diameter
Feet MSL Feet MSL
Local Grid Origin O ( stim ted: 0O) or Boring Location m] Loc 1 Grid Location
State Plane N, E S/C/N Lat © : " 0 N 0 E
1/4 1/4 of S ction ,T N,R E/W Long 0 ' " Feet a S Feet O W
Abandonment Method County: Civil Town/City/or Village:
B i Sullivan Bristol
Sample Soil Prop rties -
” . = 2
E 28 Eol2E- g B PN [ R T (e
g5 = = &b © | Soil/Rock Description And Geological Origin For 4] o o 2 K] g - S
s 2 3 R p! g g 3 2 A & 25| S 3 o |e
© [_% = = z £ ZE Each Major Unit 4 < A a 5 © o ‘5>: s |8
S 2 1<) =@ . = = = = 3
5 23 = B m 5 = o5 | 2 g Z g
“ — = o g 3 —- &
| ASPHALT - 4" Thickness PA
| SILTY CLAY (CL) - Yellowish Brown, Minor
| Red, Green, and Black Mottling, Moist, Trace
1 Fine Gravel 04
2
1 GP 60/34 : oL
— 3 0.3
4
— 0.5
s
| End of boring at 5 feet below ground surface.
6
7
8
9
|10
1
12
13
| 14
15
T hereby certify that the inform tion on this form is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.
Signature Firm

EMK

Key Engineering Group, Ltd

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

226




OIL BORING LO g of 1
Facility/Project Name: Facility Street Addr ss: Boring Name:
Exide Bristol, Tennessee 364 Exide Drive, Bristol, Tennessee GP-3
Boring Drilled By: Name of crew chief (first, last) and Firm Date Drilling Started Date Drilling Completed Drilling Method
First Name: Mark Last Name: Stafford
11/16/2020 11/16/2020 Direct Push
Firm: Strata Group, LLC
Water Level Depth ‘Well Name Final Static Wat r Level Surface Elevation Borehole Diameter
Feet MSL Feet MSL
Local Grid Origin O ( stim ted: 0O) or Boring Location m] Loc 1 Grid Location
State Plane N, E S/C/N Lat © : " 0 N 0 E
1/4 1/4 of S ction ,T N,R E/W Long 0 ' " Feet a S Feet O W
Abandonment Method County: Civil Town/City/or Village:
B i Sullivan Bristol
Sample Soil Prop rties -
- =g = g
2 2Z NP g 5 S PSR S T (R
= g5 = = &b © | Soil/Rock Description And Geological Origin For 4] o o 2 K] g - S
s 2 3 R p! g g 3 2 A & 25| S 3 o |e
© [_% = = z £ ZE Each Major Unit 4 < A a 5 © o ‘5>: s |8
S 2 1<) =@ . = = = = 3
5 23 = B m 5 = o5 | 2 g Z g
“ — = o g 3 —- &
| CONCRETE - 4" Thickness PA
| BASE COURSE - 4" Thickness GP
| SILTY CLAY (CL) - Reddish Brown, Moist
1
— 2 12
1 GP 60/34 — e
3
4 0.7
: CLAYEY SILT (ML) - Gray, Trace Gravel ML
5
| End of boring at 5 feet below ground surface.
6
7
8
9
|10
1
12
13
| 14
15
T hereby certify that the inform tion on this form is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.
Signature EMK Firm

Key Engineering Group, Ltd

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

227




of

OIL BORING LO g 1
Facility/Project Name: Facility Street Addr ss: Boring Name:
Exide Bristol, Tennessee 364 Exide Drive, Bristol, Tennessee GP-4
Boring Drilled By: Name of crew chief (first, last) and Firm Date Drilling Started Date Drilling Completed Drilling Method
First Name: Mark Last Name: Stafford
11/16/2020 11/16/2020 Direct Push
Firm: Strata Group, LLC
Water Level Depth ‘Well Name Final Static Wat r Level Surface Elevation Borehole Diameter
Feet MSL Feet MSL
Local Grid Origin O ( stim ted: 0O) or Boring Location m] Loc 1 Grid Location
State Plane N, E S/C/N Lat © : " 0 N 0 E
1/4 1/4 of S ction ,T N,R E/W Long 0 ' " Feet a S Feet O W
Abandonment Method County: Civil Town/City/or Village:
B i Sullivan Bristol
Sample Soil Prop rties -
- =g = g
E 28 Eol2E- g B P [ R T (e
8o 2 = 8 © | Soil/Rock Description And Geological Origin For 6 o o~ ) ‘2 £ B o =
S a < © = = : : 2] = s} = S o - > 2 S
o = = ‘; g £ E 5 Each Major Unit =) a = a g = = ] £ ISR
. EX 2 &z 5 = Z| 2| 2| % g
“ — = o g 3 —- &
| ASPHALT - 4" Thickness PA
| SILTY CLAY (CL) - Yellowish Brown, Red and
| Gray Mottling, Moist
1 0.5
2
1 GP 60/40 —
— 3 0.6
4
5
j cL 0.7
6
— 7 0.4
2GP 60/60 —
8
9 0.3
|10
L Boring refusal at 10 feet below ground surface.
1
12
13
| 14
15
T hereby certify that the inform tion on this form is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.
Signature  EMK Firm

Key Engineering Group, Ltd

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

228




OIL BORING LO g of 1
Facility/Project Name: Facility Street Addr ss: Boring Name:
Exide Bristol, Tennessee 364 Exide Drive, Bristol, Tennessee GP-5
Boring Drilled By: Name of crew chief (first, last) and Firm Date Drilling Started Date Drilling Completed Drilling Method
First Name: Mark Last Name: Stafford
11/16/2020 11/16/2020 Direct Push
Firm: Strata Group, LLC
Water Level Depth ‘Well Name Final Static Wat r Level Surface Elevation Borehole Diameter
Feet MSL Feet MSL
Local Grid Origin O ( stim ted: 0O) or Boring Location m] Loc 1 Grid Location
State Plane N, E S/C/N Lat © : " 0 N 0 E
1/4 1/4 of S ction ,T N,R E/W Long 0 ' " Feet a S Feet O W
Abandonment Method County: Civil Town/City/or Village:
B i Sullivan Bristol
Sample Soil Prop rties -
” - = =
- 22 £ |85 g . - . El s |z -
= 8o ° £ &b © | Soil/Rock Description And Geological Origin For 6 o 2 ) = g = =
S a < © = = : : 2] = s} = S o - > 2 S
o 5= = = z R Each Major Unit =) a = n g = ] E=) ISR
e Sz Z |zf7 . = a sl 5| 5|2 8
2 3 A Am S 3 o | Z g & o4
o = o e A —- &
| CONCRETE - 3" Thickness PA
| SILTY CLAY (CL) - Reddish Brown, Moist
- 0.4
2
1 GP 60/40 —
— 3 0.1
4
— 5 L 0.4
6
— 7 0.7
2GpP 60/60 —
8
~ 9 0.5
: Boring refusal at 9.5 feet below ground surface.
10
1
12
13
| 14
15
T hereby certify that the inform tion on this form is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.
Firm

Signature EMK

Key Engineering Group, Ltd

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

229




of

OIL BORING LO g 1
Facility/Project Name: Facility Street Addr ss: Boring Name:
Exide Bristol, Tennessee 364 Exide Drive, Bristol, Tennessee GP-6
Boring Drilled By: Name of crew chief (first, last) and Firm Date Drilling Started Date Drilling Completed Drilling Method
First Name: Mark Last Name: Stafford
11/16/2020 11/16/2020 Direct Push
Firm: Strata Group, LLC
Water Level Depth ‘Well Name Final Static Wat r Level Surface Elevation Borehole Diameter
Feet MSL Feet MSL
Local Grid Origin O ( stim ted: 0O) or Boring Location m] Loc 1 Grid Location
State Plane N, E S/C/N Lat © : " 0 N 0 E
1/4 1/4 of S ction ,T N,R E/W Long 0 ' " Feet a S Feet O W
Abandonment Method County: Civil Town/City/or Village:
B i Sullivan Bristol
Sample Soil Prop rties -
” . = 2
E 2E RS PN g 5 AR IS - R
i g = S = 8 © | Soil/Rock Description And Geological Origin For 6 ) o~ ) 2E S: o = s o
© [_% = = z £ S 5 Each Major Unit 4 < a E 5 © o ‘5>: s |8
S 2 1<) =@ . = = = = 3
5 23 = B m 5 = o5 | 2 g Z g
“ — = o g 3 —- &
| TOPSOIL (CL) - Silty Clay, Brown, Moist
: SILTY CLAY (CL) - Yellowish Brown, Red and
1 Gray Mottling, Moist 13
— 2 CL
1 GP 60/52 —
— 3 0.4
4
— CLAYEY SILT (ML) - Gray, Trace Sand
— ML 0.4
s
| End of boring at 5 feet below ground surface.
6
7
8
9
|10
1
12
13
| 14
15
T hereby certify that the inform tion on this form is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.
Signature EMK Firm

Key Engineering Group, Ltd

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

230




OIL BORING LO

g

of

Facility/Project Name:
Exide Bristol, Tennessee

Facility Street Addr ss:
364 Exide Drive, Bristol, Tennessee

Boring Name:

GP-7

Boring Drilled By: Name of crew chief (first, last) and Firm
First Name: Mark Last Name: Stafford

Firm: Strata Group, LLC

Date Drilling Started

11/16/2020

11/16/2020

Date Drilling Completed

Drilling Method

Direct Push

Water Level Depth ‘Well Name Final Static Wat r Level Surface Elevation Borehole Diameter
Feet MSL Feet MSL
Local Grid Origin O ( stim ted: 0O) or Boring Location m] Loc 1 Grid Location
State Plane N, E S/C/N Lat © : " 0 N 0 E
1/4 1/4 of S ction ,T N,R E/W Long 0 ' " Feet a S Feet O W
Abandonment Method County: Civil Town/City/or Village:
B i Sullivan Bristol
Sample Soil Prop rties -
- = <}
— a Q£ o0 — = - = =
2 2 E Ef & g~ i - . - » 3 5 =z 2 - 2
£ 5 3 £ & © | Soil/Rock Description And Geological Origin For O o — ) =] S = = o
=, <. ¢ Sz aior Uni @ = A & 2% 3 3 > | g |e
o > = 3 €25 Each Major Unit =) e = a 5 = 2 S |9
= 33 2 &= @ 9 . = = E] El 2 a)
E] =5 m am o = o @» 2 Ry 2 o
“ = = o] g 3 - &
| ASPHALT - 4" Thickness PA
| SILTY CLAY (CL) - Reddish Brown, Red and
| Gray Mottling, Moist, Some Coarse Sand to
ars 1
1 Coarse Grave 03
2
1GP 60/14 —
— 3 0.1
4
— 5 0.1
6
B cL
2GP 60/60 —
8
|10
3GP 60/54 — 1 0
12
| Boring refusal at 12 feet below ground surface.
13
| 14
15
T hereby certify that the inform tion on this form is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.
Firm

Signature EMK

Key Engineering Group, Ltd

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

231




OIL BORING LO g of 1
Facility/Project Name: Facility Street Addr ss: Boring Name:
Exide Bristol, Tennessee 364 Exide Drive, Bristol, Tennessee GP-8
Boring Drilled By: Name of crew chief (first, last) and Firm Date Drilling Started Date Drilling Completed Drilling Method
First Name: Mark Last Name: Stafford
11/16/2020 11/16/2020 Direct Push
Firm: Strata Group, LLC
Water Level Depth ‘Well Name Final Static Wat r Level Surface Elevation Borehole Diameter
Feet MSL Feet MSL
Local Grid Origin O ( stim ted: 0O) or Boring Location m] Loc 1 Grid Location
State Plane N, E S/C/N Lat © : " 0 N 0 E
1/4 1/4 of S ction ,T N,R E/W Long 0 ' " Feet a S Feet O W
Abandonment Method County: Civil Town/City/or Village:
B i Sullivan Bristol
Sample Soil Prop rties -
” . = 2
- 22 £ |85 g " - N El s |z -
i g = S = 8 © | Soil/Rock Description And Geological Origin For 6 ) o~ ) 2E S: o = s o
o [_% s 5 z £ E E Each Major Unit 4 &, 2 e 5 ; 0 2 ‘5>: IS %
5 E] = A m 5 =z 7 2 z Z o
“ — = o g 3 —- &
| ASPHALT - 4" Thickness PA
| SILTY CLAY (CL) - Reddish Brown, Moist,
| Some Coarse Sand to Coarse Gravel
1 0.3
2
1 GP 60/60 : cL
— 3 0.1
4
— 0.1
s
| End of boring at 5 feet below ground surface.
6
7
8
9
|10
1
12
13
| 14
15
T hereby certify that the inform tion on this form is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.
Signature EMK Firm

Key Engineering Group, Ltd

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

232




OIL BORING LO

g 1 of 1

Facility/Project Name:
Exide Bristol, Tennessee

Facility Street Addr ss:
364 Exide Drive, Bristol, Tennessee

Boring Name:

GP-9

First Name: Mark

Firm: Strata Group, LLC

Boring Drilled By: Name of crew chief (first, last) and Firm

Last Name: Stafford

Date Drilling Started

11/16/2020

Date Drilling Completed

11/16/2020

Drilling Method

Direct Push

Water Level Depth ‘Well Name Final Static Wat r Level Surface Elevation Borehole Diameter
Feet MSL Feet MSL
Local Grid Origin O ( stim ted: 0O) or Boring Location m] Loc 1 Grid Location
State Plane N, E S/C/N Lat © : " 0 N 0 E
1/4 1/4 of S ction ,T N,R E/W Long 0 ' " Feet a S Feet O W
Abandonment Method County: Civil Town/City/or Village:
B i Sullivan Bristol
Sample Soil Prop rties -
- = <}
— a Q£ o0 — = - = =
2 2 E Ef & g~ i - . - » 3 5 =z 2 - 2
£ 5 3 £ & © | Soil/Rock Description And Geological Origin For O o — ) =] S = = o
=, <. ¢ Sz aior Uni @ = A & 2% 3 3 > | g |e
o > = 3 €25 Each Major Unit =) e = a 5 = 2 S |9
= 33 2 &= @ 9 . = = E] El 2 a)
E] =5 m am o = o @» 2 Ry 2 o
z o = o g A — &
=
| CONCRETE - 6" Thickness PA
1 GP —
G 6076 | SILTY CLAY (CL) - Reddish Brown, Moist, L
1 Some Coarse Sand to Coarse Gravel
| Boring Refusal at 1 foot below ground surface.
2
3
4
s
6
L7
8
9
|10
1
12
13
| 14
15
T hereby certify that the inform tion on this form is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.
Signature Firm

EMK

Key Engineering Group, Ltd

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

233




OIL BORING LO

g 1 of 1

Facility/Project Name:

Exide Bristol, Tennessee

Facility Street Addr ss:
364 Exide Drive, Bristol, Tennessee

Boring Name:

GP-10

First Name: Mark

Firm: Strata Group, LLC

Boring Drilled By: Name of crew chief (first, last) and Firm

Last Name: Stafford

Date Drilling Started

11/17/2020

Date Drilling Completed

11/17/2020

Drilling Method

Direct Push

Water Level Depth ‘Well Name Final Static Wat r Level Surface Elevation Borehole Diameter
Feet MSL Feet MSL
Local Grid Origin O ( stim ted: 0O) or Boring Location m] Loc 1 Grid Location
State Plane N, E S/C/N Lat © : " 0 N 0 E
1/4 1/4 of S ction ,T N,R E/W Long 0 ' " Feet a S Feet O W
Abandonment Method County: Civil Town/City/or Village:
B i Sullivan Bristol
Sample Soil Prop rties -
- g = <}
— a Q£ o0 — = - = =
B 2E E 28~ - ) - ©n 3 5 z E - ]
£ g 3 £ &b © | Soil/Rock Description And Geological Origin For O o . ) ‘2 S 15 o = o
=, <. ¢ Sz aior Uni @ = A & 2% 3 3 > | g |e
o > = 3 €25 Each Major Unit =) e = a 5 = 2 S |9
= 33 2 &= @ 9 . = = E] El 2 a)
E] =5 m am o = o @» 2 Ry 2 o
Z O =~ o] 3 = — &
=
| SILTY CLAY (CL) - Yellowish Brown, Red
| Mottling, Moist, Some Coarse Sand to Coarse
| Gravel
2
1GP 60/34 : cL
— 3 0.2
4
— 0
s
| End of boring at 5 feet below ground surface.
6
L7
8
9
|10
1
12
13
| 14
15
T hereby certify that the inform tion on this form is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.
Signature EMK Firm

Key Engineering Group, Ltd

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

234




OIL BORING LO

g 1 of 1

Facility/Project Name:

Exide Bristol, Tennessee

Facility Street Addr ss:
364 Exide Drive, Bristol, Tennessee

Boring Name:

GP-11

First Name: Mark

Firm: Strata Group, LLC

Boring Drilled By: Name of crew chief (first, last) and Firm

Last Name: Stafford

Date Drilling Started

11/17/2020

Date Drilling Completed

11/17/2020

Drilling Method

Direct Push

Water Level Depth ‘Well Name Final Static Wat r Level Surface Elevation Borehole Diameter
Feet MSL Feet MSL
Local Grid Origin O ( stim ted: 0O) or Boring Location m] Loc 1 Grid Location
State Plane N, E S/C/N Lat © : " 0 N 0 E
1/4 1/4 of S ction ,T N,R E/W Long 0 ' " Feet a S Feet O W
Abandonment Method County: Civil Town/City/or Village:
B i Sullivan Bristol
Sample Soil Prop rties -
- = <}
— a Q£ o0 — = - = =
2 2 E Ef & g~ i - . - » 3 5 =z 2 - 2
£ 5 3 £ & © | Soil/Rock Description And Geological Origin For O o — ) =] S = = o
=, <. ¢ Sz aior Uni @ = A & 2% 3 3 > | g |e
o > = 3 €25 Each Major Unit =) e = a 5 = 2 S |9
= 33 2 &= @ 9 . = = E] El 2 a)
E] =5 m am o = o @» 2 Ry 2 o
“ = = o] g 3 - &
| COARSE GRAVEL (GW) -2" GW
| SILTY CLAY (CL) - Yellowish Brown, Red
| Mottling, Moist, Trace Coarse Sand
2
1GP 60/22 —
— 3 0.4
| 4 cL
6
2GP 60/24 —
~ 7 0.2
: Boring refusal at 7.5 feet below ground surface.
8
9
|10
1
12
13
| 14
15
T hereby certify that the inform tion on this form is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.
Signature Firm

EMK

Key Engineering Group, Ltd

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

235




SOIL BORING LOG

Page 1 of

Facility/Project Name:
Exide Bristol, Tennessee

Facility Street Address:
364 Exide Drive, Bristol, Tennessee

Boring Name:
GP-12

First Name: Mark

Firm: Strata Group, LLC

Boring Drilled By: Name of crew chief (first, last) and Firm

Last Name: Stafford

11/17/2020

Date Drilling Started

Date Drilling Completed Drilling Method

11/17/2020 Direct Push

Water Level Depth ‘Well Name Final Static Water Level Surface Elevation Borehole Diameter
Feet MSL Feet MSL
Local Grid Origin O (estimated: 0O0) or Boring Location m] Local Grid Location
State Plane N, E S/C/N Lat ' " 0o N 0O E
1/4 1/4 of Section ,T N,R E/W Long ' " Feet a S Feet O W
Abandonment Method County: Civil Town/City/or Village:
B i Sullivan Bristol
Sample Soil Properties -
] 5 B o0 g = > E
T i) g 2Es 3 5 H 2 2| 2| % £
E g g ot = 5 8 | Soil/Rock Description And Geological Origin For 4] o S ) ‘2 S B £ S £
Z o 3 ] g0 P & e 3 2 A & 2% | 3 3 S |3
2= =5 z S £% Each Major Unit 2 ! £ a 2| 3 = z | ]|
Rl S 2 >3 2 i G} ) -] 5 =] S a |8
3 £ 8 m =y S z sn| Z g Z o4
32 o § = = &
| SILTY CLAY (CL) - Reddish Brown, Red
| Mottling, Moist, Some Fine to Coarse Gravel
- 0.4
2
1 GP 60/50 : cL
— 3 0.6
4
— 0.5
s
| End of boring at 5 feet below ground surface.
6
L7
8
9
|10
1
12
13
| 14
15
T hereby certify that the information on this form is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.
Firm

Signature EMK

Key Engineering Group, Ltd

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

236




SOIL BORING LOG

Page 1 of

Facility/Project Name:
Exide Bristol, Tennessee

Facility Street Address:
364 Exide Drive, Bristol, Tennessee

Boring Name:
GP-13

First Name: Mark

Firm: Strata Group, LLC

Boring Drilled By: Name of crew chief (first, last) and Firm

Last Name: Stafford

11/17/2020

Date Drilling Started

Date Drilling Completed Drilling Method

11/17/2020 Direct Push

Water Level Depth ‘Well Name Final Static Water Level Surface Elevation Borehole Diameter
Feet MSL Feet MSL
Local Grid Origin O (estimated: 0O0) or Boring Location m] Local Grid Location
State Plane N, E S/C/N Lat ' " 0o N 0O E
1/4 1/4 of Section ,T N,R E/W Long ' " Feet a S Feet O W
Abandonment Method County: Civil Town/City/or Village:
B i Sullivan Bristol
Sample Soil Properties -
= | & |BE @ : < El. 2] |2
T 2E | R L o ” = ) g £ g E| 2 £
& £ ° £ & 2 | Soil/Rock Description And Geological Origin For O o s g 2 <5 S = = £
5 8 < 8 © ol . . 7] = a = s o - > 213
2 a5 3 = g 5 Each Major Unit =] = = Ja) 55 5} =) = a |9
EE 2 2 &3 = £ 3 = £=| 5 E 2 |~ g
> 53 =) aa o z ISl z Ry ] o
“ 32 3 N Z
| SILTY CLAY (CL) - Reddish Brown, Red
| Mottling, Moist, Some Fine to Coarse Gravel
1
1GP 60/24 — CL 0.7
2
: Boring refusal at 2.5 feet below ground surface.
3
4
s
6
L7
8
9
|10
1
12
13
| 14
15
T hereby certify that the information on this form is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.
Firm

Signature EMK

Key Engineering Group, Ltd

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

237




SOIL BORING LOG Page 1 of 1

Facility/Project Name: Facility Street Address: Boring Name:
Exide Bristol, Tennessee 364 Exide Drive, Bristol, Tennessee GP-14
Boring Drilled By: Name of crew chief (first, last) and Firm Date Drilling Started Date Drilling Completed Drilling Method
First Name: Mark Last Name: Stafford
11/17/2020 11/17/2020 Direct Push
Firm: Strata Group, LLC
Water Level Depth ‘Well Name Final Static Water Level Surface Elevation Borehole Diameter
Feet MSL Feet MSL
Local Grid Origin O (estimated: 0O0) or Boring Location m] Local Grid Location
State Plane N, E S/C/N Lat © : " 0 N 0 E
1/4 1/4 of Section T N,R E/W Long 0 ' " Feet O S Feet O W
Abandonment Method County: Civil Town/City/or Village:
B i Sullivan Bristol
Sample Soil Properties -
” =g = =
- 43 g |BE. g - T oz | 2] %] % :
E g g S £ & 8 | Soil/Rock Description And Geological Origin For 6 o & g ‘2 £ g £ = £
= Q 3 ] = & & -] A = % B ] = 2|8
25 = 8 z R Each Major Unit z = A a g g vt o B s |S
Ela S o ST @ 5] c] ) £ & 5 = S - =)
3 £ 8 m =y S 3 sn| g Z o4
= o} e = &
| TOPSOIL (CL) - Silty Clay, Brown, Moist
: SILTY CLAY (CL) - Yellowish Brown, Moist
1 0.5
2
1GP 60/52 — CL
— 3 0.9
4
— 1
s
| End of boring at 5 feet below ground surface.
6
7
8
9
|10
1
12
13
| 14
15

T hereby certify that the information on this form is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

Signature Firm
EMK Key Engineering Group, Ltd

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 238



SOIL BORING LOG Page 1 of 1
Facility/Project Name: Facility Street Address: Boring Name:
Exide Bristol, Tennessee 364 Exide Drive, Bristol, Tennessee GP-15
Boring Drilled By: Name of crew chief (first, last) and Firm Date Drilling Started Date Drilling Completed Drilling Method
First Name: Mark Last Name: Stafford
11/17/2020 11/17/2020 Direct Push
Firm: Strata Group, LLC
Water Level Depth ‘Well Name Final Static Water Level Surface Elevation Borehole Diameter
Feet MSL Feet MSL
Local Grid Origin O (estimated: 0O0) or Boring Location m] Local Grid Location
State Plane N, E S/CIN Lat ' " 0o N 0O E
1/4 1/4 of Section ,T N,R E/W Long ' " Feet O S Feet O W
Abandonment Method County: Civil Town/City/or Village:
B i Sullivan Bristol
Sample Soil Properties -
” =g = =
- 43 g |BE. g - T oz | 2] %] % :
E g g S £ & 8 | Soil/Rock Description And Geological Origin For 6 o & g ‘2 £ g £ = £
= Q <3 O = & & -] A & Z Bp O = 2|8
25 = 8 z R Each Major Unit z = A a g g vt o B s |S
EE R 2 g5 2 = 3 z £5| 5 E g2 | a8
3 £ 8 m =y S z sn| g Z o4
= o] e = &
| SILTY CLAY (CL) - Brown to Light Brown,
| Moist, Some Fine to Coarse Gravel
1 0.3
2
1 GP 60/34 : oL
— 3 0.5
4
— 0.8
s
| End of boring at 5 feet below ground surface.
6
7
8
9
|10
1
12
13
| 14
15
T hereby certify that the information on this form is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.
Firm

Signature EMK

Key Engineering Group, Ltd

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

239




o

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

Attachment 2

www.keyengineering.com

240

Key Engineering Group, Ltd.

o




- LINKS e

rReview your project
results through

Total Access

Have a Question?

@Ask
The
Expert \

7
Visit us at:
www. eurofapeliboanen fagketJunesba-2

&> eurofins

22

Environment Testing
America

ANALYTICAL REPORT

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
2417 Bond Street

University Park, IL 60484

Tel: (708)534-5200

Laboratory Job ID: 500-191255-1
Client Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

For:

Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
735 North Water Street
Suite 510

Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202

Attn: Toni Schoen

St Judeld

Authorized for release hy:
11/25/2020 3:56:00 PM

Sandie Fredrick, Project Manager Il
(920)261-1660
sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com

The test results in this report meet all 2003 NELAC, 2009 TNI, and 2016 TNI requirements for
accredited parameters, exceptions are noted in this report. This report may not be reproduced
except in full, and with written approval from the laboratory. For questions please contact the
Project Manager at the e-mail address or telephone number listed on this page.

This report has been electronically signed and authorized by the signatory. Electronic signature is
intended to be the legally binding equivalent of a traditionally handwritten signature.

Results relate only to the itgmp tested and the sample(s) as received by the laboratory.


https://secure.testamericainc.com/TotalAccess/login.aspx
http://www.testamericainc.com/services-we-offer/ask-the-expert
http://www.eurofinsus.com/Env
mailto:sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Laboratory Job ID: 500-191255-1

Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040
Table of Contents
Cover Page . ..o 1
Tableof Contents . . ... ... . e 2
Case Narrative . . . ... 3
Detection Summary . . ... i e 4
Method Summary . ... . . 7
Sample Summary . ... 8
ClientSample Results . . .. ... .. . i 9
DefiNitioNS . . .. .. 29
QC ASSOCIAtiON . . . .o 30
QC Sample ResuUlts . . . ... .. 34
Chronicle . . ... . 36
Certification Summary . . ... 43
Chainof Custody . . ... .. e 44
Receipt Checklists . . . ... ... . . 52

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

242
Page 2 of 52 11/25/2020



Case Narrative
Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Job ID: 500-191255-1
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1
Laboratory: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
Narrative
Job Narrative
500-191255-1
Comments

No additional comments.

Receipt
The samples were received on 11/18/2020 10:15 AM; the samples arrived in good condition, and where required, properly preserved and
on ice. The temperature of the cooler at receipt was 2.5° C.

Metals
Method 6010D: The following sample was diluted due to the abundance of non-target analytes: GP-14 (0-2) (500-191255-19). Elevated
reporting limits (RLs) are provided.

No additional analytical or quality issues were noted, other than those described above or in the Definitions/Glossary page.

General Chemistry
No analytical or quality issues were noted, other than those described in the Definitions/Glossary page.

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

243
Page 3 of 52 11/25/2020



Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Detection Summary

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-1 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-1
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac E Method Prep Type
Lead 25 F1 0.58 0.27 mg/Kg 1 x 6010D Total/NA
Sulfate 20 23 1.1 mg/Kg 1 1t 9056A Total/NA

Client Sample ID: GP-1 (14-15.5) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-2
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac E Method Prep Type
Lead 17 0.63 0.29 mg/Kg 1 x 6010D Total/NA
Sulfate 21 24 1.2 mg/Kg 1 1t 9056A Total/NA

Client Sample ID: GP-2 (0.5-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-3
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac E Method Prep Type
Lead 26 0.58 0.27 mg/Kg 1 % 6010D Total/NA
Sulfate 27 24 1.1 mg/Kg 1 3 9056A Total/NA

Client Sample ID: GP-3 (1-3) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-4
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac E Method Prep Type
Lead 20 0.55 0.25 mg/Kg 1 3 6010D Total/NA
Sulfate 93 24 1.2 mg/Kg 1 3 9056A Total/NA

Client Sample ID: GP-4 (0.5-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-5
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac E Method Prep Type
Lead 30 0.53 0.25 mg/Kg 1 3 6010D Total/NA
Sulfate 160 12 5.5 mg/Kg 5 1 9056A Total/NA

Client Sample ID: GP-4 (8-10) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-6
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac E Method Prep Type
Lead 22 0.62 0.29 mg/Kg 1 3 6010D Total/NA

Client Sample ID: GP-5 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-7
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac E Method Prep Type
Lead 41 0.66 0.30 mg/Kg 1 3 6010D Total/NA
Sulfate 17 26 1.2 mg/Kg 1 3 9056A Total/NA

Client Sample ID: GP-5 (8-9.5) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-8
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac D Method Prep Type
Lead 43 0.60 0.28 mg/Kg 1 3 6010D Total/NA
Sulfate 7.7 26 1.2 mg/Kg 1 %t 9056A Total/NA

Client Sample ID: GP-6 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-9
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac D Method Prep Type
Lead 21 0.59 0.27 mg/Kg 1 3 6010D Total/NA
Sulfate 10 24 1.2 mg/Kg 1 % 9056A Total/NA

Client Sample ID: GP-7 (0.5-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-10
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac E Method Prep Type
Lead 24 0.55 0.25 mg/Kg 1 # 6010D Total/NA

7Sulfate 75 24 1.1 mg/Kg 1 xt 9056A Total/NA

This Detection Summary does not include radiochemical test results.

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

244
Page 4 of 52

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/25/2020



Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Detection Summary

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-7 (10-12) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-11
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac E Method Prep Type
Lead 23 0.66 0.31 mg/Kg 1 x 6010D Total/NA
Sulfate 24 J 2.7 1.3 mg/Kg 1 xt 9056A Total/NA

Client Sample ID: GP-8 (0.5-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-12
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac E Method Prep Type
Lead 8.9 0.50 0.23 mg/Kg 1 x 6010D Total/NA
Sulfate 350 1 5.3 mg/Kg 5 3 9056A Total/NA

Client Sample ID: GP-9 (0.5-1) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-13
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac E Method Prep Type
Lead 27 0.50 0.23 mg/Kg 1 % 6010D Total/NA
Sulfate 61 22 1.1 mg/Kg 1 3 9056A Total/NA

Client Sample ID: GP-10 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-14
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac E Method Prep Type
Lead 50 0.54 0.25 mg/Kg 1 3 6010D Total/NA
Sulfate 6.5 24 1.1 mg/Kg 1 3 9056A Total/NA

Client Sample ID: GP-11 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-15
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac E Method Prep Type
Lead 18 0.53 0.25 mg/Kg 1 3 6010D Total/NA
Sulfate 65 22 1.0 mg/Kg 1 3 9056A Total/NA

Client Sample ID: GP-11 (6-7.5) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-16
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac E Method Prep Type
Lead 23 0.55 0.25 mg/Kg 1 3 6010D Total/NA
Sulfate 29 23 1.1 mg/Kg 1 3 9056A Total/NA

Client Sample ID: GP-12 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-17
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac E Method Prep Type
Lead 9.6 0.54 0.25 mg/Kg 1 3 6010D Total/NA
Sulfate 41 22 1.0 mg/Kg 1 3 9056A Total/NA

Client Sample ID: GP-13 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-18
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac D Method Prep Type
Lead 1 0.59 0.27 mg/Kg 1 3 6010D Total/NA
Sulfate 250 1 5.3 mg/Kg 5 1 9056A Total/NA

Client Sample ID: GP-14 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-19
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac D Method Prep Type
Lead 35 25 1.2 mg/Kg 5 % 6010D Total/NA
Sulfate 15 23 1.1 mg/Kg 1 % 9056A Total/NA

Client Sample ID: GP-15 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-20
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac E Method Prep Type
Lead 27 0.51 0.24 mg/Kg 1 % 6010D Total/NA

This Detection Summary does not include radiochemical test results.

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

245
Page 5 of 52

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/25/2020



Detection Summary
Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-15 (0-2) (Continued)

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-20

Dil Fac D Method Prep Type

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit
Sulfate 12 2.2 1.1 mg/Kg

This Detection Summary does not include radiochemical test results.

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 246
Page 6 of 52

1 1 9056A Total/NA

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/25/2020



Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Method Summary

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Method Method Description Protocol Laboratory
6010D Metals (ICP) SW846 TAL CHI
9056A Anions, lon Chromatography SW846 TAL CHI
Moisture Percent Moisture EPA TAL CHI
300_Prep Anions, lon Chromatography, 10% Wt/Vol MCAWW TAL CHI
3050B Preparation, Metals SW846 TAL CHI

Protocol References:
EPA = US Environmental Protection Agency

MCAWW = "Methods For Chemical Analysis Of Water And Wastes", EPA-600/4-79-020, March 1983 And Subsequent Revisions.

SW846 = "Test Methods For Evaluating Solid Waste, Physical/Chemical Methods", Third Edition, November 1986 And Its Updates.

Laboratory References:

TAL CHI = Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago, 2417 Bond Street, University Park, IL 60484, TEL (708)534-5200

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

247
Page 7 of 52

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/25/2020



Sample Summary
Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Job ID: 500-191255-1

Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Matrix Collected Received Asset ID
500-191255-1 GP-1 (0-2) Solid 11/16/20 12:00 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-2 GP-1 (14-15.5) Solid 11/16/20 12:20 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-3 GP-2 (0.5-2) Solid 11/16/20 13:00 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-4 GP-3 (1-3) Solid 11/16/20 13:30 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-5 GP-4 (0.5-2) Solid 11/16/20 14:20 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-6 GP-4 (8-10) Solid 11/16/20 14:30 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-7 GP-5 (0-2) Solid 11/16/20 15:00 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-8 GP-5 (8-9.5) Solid 11/16/20 15:10 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-9 GP-6 (0-2) Solid 11/16/20 15:30 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-10 GP-7 (0.5-2) Solid 11/16/20 16:20 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-11 GP-7 (10-12) Solid 11/16/20 16:30 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-12 GP-8 (0.5-2) Solid 11/16/20 16:50 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-13 GP-9 (0.5-1) Solid 11/16/20 17:10 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-14 GP-10 (0-2) Solid 11/17/20 08:40 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-15 GP-11 (0-2) Solid 11/17/20 09:00 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-16 GP-11 (6-7.5) Solid 11/17/20 09:10 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-17 GP-12 (0-2) Solid 11/17/20 10:20 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-18 GP-13 (0-2) Solid 11/17/20 10:40 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-19 GP-14 (0-2) Solid 11/17/20 11:00 11/18/20 10:15
500-191255-20 GP-15 (0-2) Solid 11/17/20 11:30 11/18/20 10:15

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

248
Page 8 of 52 11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-1 (0-2)
Date Collected: 11/16/20 12:00
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-1
Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 82.3

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)
Analyte Result Qualifier

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

249
Page 9 of 52

RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 25 F1 0.58 0.27 mg/Kg wt 11/20/20 18:46  11/23/20 11:17 1
General Chemistry
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 20 23 1.1 mg/Kg wt 11/20/20 11:35 11/20/20 19:10 1

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-1 (14-15.5)
Date Collected: 11/16/20 12:20
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-2
Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 77.9

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)
Analyte Result Qualifier

RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 17 0.63 0.29 mg/Kg % 11/20/20 18:46  11/23/20 11:32 1
General Chemistry
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 21 24 1.2 mg/Kg w 11/20/20 11:35 11/20/20 19:22 1
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 250

Page 10 of 52

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-2 (0.5-2)
Date Collected: 11/16/20 13:00
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-3
Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 82.6

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)
Analyte Result Qualifier

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

251
Page 11 of 52

RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 26 0.58 0.27 mg/Kg wt 11/20/20 18:46  11/23/20 11:35 1
General Chemistry
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 27 24 1.1 mg/Kg wt 11/20/20 11:35 11/20/20 19:35 1

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-3 (1-3)
Date Collected: 11/16/20 13:30
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-4
Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 80.4

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)
Analyte Result Qualifier

RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 20 0.55 0.25 mg/Kg w2 11/20/20 18:46 11/23/20 11:39 1
General Chemistry
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 93 2.4 1.2 mg/Kg w 11/20/20 11:35 11/20/20 19:48 1
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 252

Page 12 of 52

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-4 (0.5-2)
Date Collected: 11/16/20 14:20
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-5
Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 80.2

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 30 0.53 0.25 mg/Kg wt 11/20/20 18:46  11/23/20 11:42 1
General Chemistry
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 160 12 5.5 mg/Kg wt 11/20/20 11:35 11/21/20 15:51 5
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 253

Page 13 of 52

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-4 (8-10)
Date Collected: 11/16/20 14:30
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-6
Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 74.3

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)
Analyte Result Qualifier

RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 22 0.62 0.29 mg/Kg % 11/20/20 18:46  11/23/20 11:51 1
General Chemistry
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate <1.2 25 1.2 mg/Kg w 11/20/20 11:35 11/20/20 20:39 1
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 254

Page 14 of 52

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-5 (0-2)
Date Collected: 11/16/20 15:00
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-7

Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 71.7

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)
Analyte Result Qualifier

RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 4 0.66 0.30 mg/Kg % 11/20/20 18:46 11/23/20 11:55 1
General Chemistry
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 17 26 1.2 mg/Kg %t 11/20/20 11:35 11/20/20 20:51 1
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 255

Page 15 of 52

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-5 (8-9.5)
Date Collected: 11/16/20 15:10
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-8
Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 77.1

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)
Analyte Result Qualifier

RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 43 0.60 0.28 mg/Kg w2 11/20/20 18:46 11/23/20 11:58 1
General Chemistry
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 7.7 26 1.2 mg/Kg w 11/20/20 11:35 11/20/20 21:04 1
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 256

Page 16 of 52

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-6 (0-2)
Date Collected: 11/16/20 15:30
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-9
Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 81.6

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 21 0.59 0.27 mg/Kg wt 11/20/20 18:46  11/23/20 12:01 1
General Chemistry
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 10 24 1.2 mg/Kg o 11/23/20 14:10 11/23/20 22:10 1
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 257

Page 17 of 52

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-7 (0.5-2)
Date Collected: 11/16/20 16:20
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-10

Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 82.1

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 24 0.55 0.25 mg/Kg wt 11/20/20 18:46  11/23/20 12:04 1
General Chemistry
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 75 24 1.1 mg/Kg o 11/23/20 14:10 11/23/20 22:24 1
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 258

Page 18 of 52

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-7 (10-12)
Date Collected: 11/16/20 16:30
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-11

Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 72.9

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 23 0.66 0.31 mg/Kg wt 11/20/20 18:46  11/23/20 12:07 1
General Chemistry
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 24 J 2.7 1.3 mg/Kg wt 11/23/20 14:10 11/23/20 23:05 1
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 259

Page 19 of 52

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-8 (0.5-2)
Date Collected: 11/16/20 16:50
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-12

Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 84.7

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 8.9 0.50 0.23 mg/Kg wt 11/20/20 18:46  11/23/20 12:10 1
General Chemistry
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 350 11 5.3 mg/Kg wt 11/23/20 14:10 11/24/20 16:03 5
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 260

Page 20 of 52

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-9 (0.5-1)
Date Collected: 11/16/20 17:10
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-13

Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 86.5

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

261
Page 21 of 52

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 27 0.50 0.23 mg/Kg wt 11/20/20 18:46  11/23/20 12:13 1
General Chemistry

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 61 2.2 1.1 mg/Kg wt 11/23/20 14:10  11/23/20 23:32 1

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-10 (0-2)
Date Collected: 11/17/20 08:40
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-14

Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 82.2

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 50 0.54 0.25 mg/Kg wt 11/20/20 18:46  11/23/20 12:16 1
General Chemistry
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 6.5 24 1.1 mg/Kg wt 11/23/20 14:10 11/23/20 23:46 1
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 262

Page 22 of 52

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-11 (0-2)
Date Collected: 11/17/20 09:00
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-15

Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 86.7

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

263
Page 23 of 52

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 18 0.53 0.25 mg/Kg wt 11/20/20 18:46  11/23/20 12:19 1
General Chemistry

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 65 22 1.0 mg/Kg wt 11/23/20 14:10 11/23/20 23:59 1

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-11 (6-7.5)
Date Collected: 11/17/20 09:10
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-16

Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 80.3

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 23 0.55 0.25 mg/Kg wt 11/20/20 18:46  11/23/20 12:29 1
General Chemistry
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 29 23 1.1 mg/Kg wt 11/23/20 14:10 11/24/20 00:13 1
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 264

Page 24 of 52

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-12 (0-2)
Date Collected: 11/17/20 10:20
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-17

Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 85.7

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 9.6 0.54 0.25 mg/Kg wt 11/20/20 18:46  11/23/20 12:32 1
General Chemistry
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 41 2.2 1.0 mg/Kg wt 11/23/20 14:10 11/24/20 00:26 1
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 265

Page 25 of 52

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-13 (0-2)
Date Collected: 11/17/20 10:40
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-18

Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 84.5

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 1" 0.59 0.27 mg/Kg wt 11/20/20 18:46  11/23/20 12:35 1
General Chemistry
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 250 11 5.3 mg/Kg wt 11/23/20 14:10 11/24/20 16:16 5
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 266

Page 26 of 52

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-14 (0-2)
Date Collected: 11/17/20 11:00
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-19

Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 84.1

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

267
Page 27 of 52

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 35 25 1.2 mg/Kg wt 11/20/20 18:46  11/24/20 10:45 5
General Chemistry

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 15 23 1.1 mg/Kg wt 11/23/20 14:10 11/24/20 00:54 1

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/25/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-15 (0-2)
Date Collected: 11/17/20 11:30
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-20

Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 86.6

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 27 0.51 0.24 mg/Kg wt 11/20/20 18:46  11/23/20 12:42 1
General Chemistry
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 12 2.2 1.1 mg/Kg wt 11/23/20 14:10  11/24/20 02:02 1
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 268

Page 28 of 52

11/25/2020



Definitions/Glossary

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Job ID: 500-191255-1
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Qualifiers

Metals

Qualifier Qualifier Description

F1 MS and/or MSD recovery exceeds control limits.

General Chemistry

Qualifier Qualifier Description
J Result is less than the RL but greater than or equal to the MDL and the concentration is an approximate value.
Glossary
Abbreviation These commonly used abbreviations may or may not be present in this report.
<] Listed under the "D" column to designate that the result is reported on a dry weight basis
%R Percent Recovery
CFL Contains Free Liquid
CFU Colony Forming Unit
CNF Contains No Free Liquid
DER Duplicate Error Ratio (normalized absolute difference)
Dil Fac Dilution Factor
DL Detection Limit (DoD/DOE)
DL, RA, RE, IN Indicates a Dilution, Re-analysis, Re-extraction, or additional Initial metals/anion analysis of the sample
DLC Decision Level Concentration (Radiochemistry)
EDL Estimated Detection Limit (Dioxin)
LOD Limit of Detection (DoD/DOE)
LOQ Limit of Quantitation (DoD/DOE)
MCL EPA recommended "Maximum Contaminant Level"
MDA Minimum Detectable Activity (Radiochemistry)
MDC Minimum Detectable Concentration (Radiochemistry)
MDL Method Detection Limit
ML Minimum Level (Dioxin)
MPN Most Probable Number
MQL Method Quantitation Limit
NC Not Calculated
ND Not Detected at the reporting limit (or MDL or EDL if shown)
NEG Negative / Absent
POS Positive / Present
PQL Practical Quantitation Limit
PRES Presumptive
QC Quality Control
RER Relative Error Ratio (Radiochemistry)
RL Reporting Limit or Requested Limit (Radiochemistry)
RPD Relative Percent Difference, a measure of the relative difference between two points
TEF Toxicity Equivalent Factor (Dioxin)
TEQ Toxicity Equivalent Quotient (Dioxin)
TNTC Too Numerous To Count
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 269

Page 29 of 52 11/25/2020



QC Association Summary
Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Job ID: 500-191255-1

Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

270
Page 30 of 52

Metals

Prep Batch: 573379
Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191255-1 GP-1(0-2) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-2 GP-1 (14-15.5) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-3 GP-2 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-4 GP-3 (1-3) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-5 GP-4 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-6 GP-4 (8-10) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-7 GP-5 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-8 GP-5 (8-9.5) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-9 GP-6 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-10 GP-7 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-11 GP-7 (10-12) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-12 GP-8 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-13 GP-9 (0.5-1) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-14 GP-10 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-15 GP-11 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-16 GP-11 (6-7.5) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-17 GP-12 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-18 GP-13 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-19 GP-14 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-20 GP-15 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 3050B
MB 500-573379/1-A Method Blank Total/NA Solid 3050B
LCS 500-573379/2-A Lab Control Sample Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-1 MS GP-1(0-2) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-1 MSD GP-1(0-2) Total/NA Solid 3050B
500-191255-1 DU GP-1(0-2) Total/NA Solid 3050B

Analysis Batch: 573639
Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191255-1 GP-1(0-2) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-2 GP-1 (14-15.5) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-3 GP-2 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-4 GP-3 (1-3) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-5 GP-4 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-6 GP-4 (8-10) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-7 GP-5 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-8 GP-5 (8-9.5) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-9 GP-6 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-10 GP-7 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-11 GP-7 (10-12) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-12 GP-8 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-13 GP-9 (0.5-1) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-14 GP-10 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-15 GP-11 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-16 GP-11 (6-7.5) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-17 GP-12 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-18 GP-13 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-20 GP-15 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
MB 500-573379/1-A Method Blank Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
LCS 500-573379/2-A Lab Control Sample Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-1 MS GP-1(0-2) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
500-191255-1 MSD GP-1(0-2) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/25/2020



QC Association Summary

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Job ID: 500-191255-1

Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040
Metals (Continued)
Analysis Batch: 573639 (Continued)

Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191255-1 DU GP-1 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
Analysis Batch: 573861
Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191255-19 GP-14 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 6010D 573379
General Chemistry
Prep Batch: 573285
Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191255-1 GP-1 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-2 GP-1 (14-15.5) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-3 GP-2 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-4 GP-3 (1-3) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-5 GP-4 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-6 GP-4 (8-10) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-7 GP-5 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-8 GP-5 (8-9.5) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
MB 500-573285/1-A Method Blank Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
LCS 500-573285/2-A Lab Control Sample Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
Analysis Batch: 573321
Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191255-1 GP-1 (0-2) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-2 GP-1 (14-15.5) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-3 GP-2 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-4 GP-3 (1-3) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-5 GP-4 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-6 GP-4 (8-10) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-7 GP-5 (0-2) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-8 GP-5 (8-9.5) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-9 GP-6 (0-2) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-10 GP-7 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-11 GP-7 (10-12) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-12 GP-8 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-13 GP-9 (0.5-1) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-14 GP-10 (0-2) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-15 GP-11 (0-2) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-16 GP-11 (6-7.5) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-17 GP-12 (0-2) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-18 GP-13 (0-2) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-19 GP-14 (0-2) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-20 GP-15 (0-2) Total/NA Solid Moisture
500-191255-1 DU GP-1 (0-2) Total/NA Solid Moisture
Analysis Batch: 573343
Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191255-1 GP-1 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573285
500-191255-2 GP-1 (14-15.5) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573285
500-191255-3 GP-2 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573285
500-191255-4 GP-3 (1-3) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573285

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

271
Page 31 of 52

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/25/2020



QC Association Summary
Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Job ID: 500-191255-1

Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

General Chemistry (Continued)
Analysis Batch: 573343 (Continued)

Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191255-6 GP-4 (8-10) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573285
500-191255-7 GP-5 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573285
500-191255-8 GP-5 (8-9.5) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573285
MB 500-573285/1-A Method Blank Total/NA Solid 9056A 573285
LCS 500-573285/2-A Lab Control Sample Total/NA Solid 9056A 573285
Analysis Batch: 573419
Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191255-5 GP-4 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573285
MB 500-573285/1-A Method Blank Total/NA Solid 9056A 573285 n
LCS 500-573285/2-A Lab Control Sample Total/NA Solid 9056A 573285
Prep Batch: 573648
Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191255-9 GP-6 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-10 GP-7 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-11 GP-7 (10-12) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-12 GP-8 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-13 GP-9 (0.5-1) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-14 GP-10 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-15 GP-11 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-16 GP-11 (6-7.5) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-17 GP-12 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-18 GP-13 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-19 GP-14 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-20 GP-15 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
MB 500-573648/1-A Method Blank Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
LCS 500-573648/2-A Lab Control Sample Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-19 MS GP-14 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
500-191255-19 MSD GP-14 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
Analysis Batch: 573666
Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191255-9 GP-6 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648
500-191255-10 GP-7 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648
500-191255-11 GP-7 (10-12) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648
500-191255-13 GP-9 (0.5-1) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648
500-191255-14 GP-10 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648
500-191255-15 GP-11 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648
500-191255-16 GP-11 (6-7.5) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648
500-191255-17 GP-12 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648
500-191255-19 GP-14 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648
500-191255-20 GP-15 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648
MB 500-573648/1-A Method Blank Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648
LCS 500-573648/2-A Lab Control Sample Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648
500-191255-19 MS GP-14 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648
500-191255-19 MSD GP-14 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648
Analysis Batch: 573871
Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191255-12 GP-8 (0.5-2) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

272
Page 32 of 52

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/25/2020



QC Association Summary
Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Job ID: 500-191255-1
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

General Chemistry (Continued)
Analysis Batch: 573871 (Continued)

Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191255-18 GP-13 (0-2) Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648
MB 500-573648/1-A Method Blank Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648
LCS 500-573648/2-A Lab Control Sample Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 273
Page 33 of 52 11/25/2020



QC Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)

7Lab Sample ID: MB 500-573379/1-A
Matrix: Solid
Analysis Batch: 573639

Client Sample ID: Method Blank
Prep Type: Total/NA
Prep Batch: 573379

MB MB
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead <0.23 0.50 0.23 mg/Kg ~ 11/20/20 18:46 11/23/20 11:00 1
Lab Sample ID: LCS 500-573379/2-A Client Sample ID: Lab Control Sample
Matrix: Solid Prep Type: Total/NA
Analysis Batch: 573639 Prep Batch: 573379
Spike LCS LCS %Rec.
Analyte Added Result Qualifier Unit D %Rec Limits
Lead 10.0 9.08 mg/Kg B 91  80-120
Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-1 MS Client Sample ID: GP-1 (0-2)
Matrix: Solid Prep Type: Total/NA
Analysis Batch: 573639 Prep Batch: 573379
Sample Sample Spike MS MS %Rec.
Analyte Result Qualifier Added Result Qualifier Unit D %Rec Limits
Lead 25 F1 10.7 35.1 mg/Kg 2 93 75-125
Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-1 MSD Client Sample ID: GP-1 (0-2)
Matrix: Solid Prep Type: Total/NA
Analysis Batch: 573639 Prep Batch: 573379
Sample Sample Spike MSD MSD %Rec. RPD
Analyte Result Qualifier Added Result Qualifier Unit D %Rec Limits RPD Limit
Lead 25 F1 10.8 33.1 F1 mg/Kg X 72 75-125 6 20
Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-1 DU Client Sample ID: GP-1 (0-2)
Matrix: Solid Prep Type: Total/NA
Analysis Batch: 573639 Prep Batch: 573379
Sample Sample DU DU RPD
Analyte Result Qualifier Result Qualifier Unit D RPD Limit
Lead 25 F1 24.6 mg/Kg 3 3 20
Method: 9056A - Anions, lon Chromatography
Lab Sample ID: MB 500-573285/1-A Client Sample ID: Method Blank
Matrix: Solid Prep Type: Total/NA
Analysis Batch: 573343 Prep Batch: 573285
MB MB
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate <0.95 2.0 0.95 mg/Kg ~ 11/20/20 11:35  11/20/20 15:21 1
Lab Sample ID: MB 500-573285/1-A Client Sample ID: Method Blank
Matrix: Solid Prep Type: Total/NA
Analysis Batch: 573419 Prep Batch: 573285
MB MB
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate <0.95 2.0 0.95 mg/Kg © 11/20/20 11:35  11/21/20 14:35 1

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

274

Page 34 of 52

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/25/2020



QC Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Method: 9056A - Anions, lon Chromatography (Continued)

Lab Sample ID: LCS 500-573285/2-A
Matrix: Solid
Analysis Batch: 573343

Client Sample ID: Lab Control Sample
Prep Type: Total/NA
Prep Batch: 573285

Spike LCS LCS %Rec.
Analyte Added Result Qualifier Unit D %Rec Limits
Sulfate 50.0 52.5 mg/Kg 105 80-120
Lab Sample ID: LCS 500-573285/2-A Client Sample ID: Lab Control Sample
Matrix: Solid Prep Type: Total/NA
Analysis Batch: 573419 Prep Batch: 573285
Spike LCS LCS %Rec.
Analyte Added Result Qualifier Unit D %Rec Limits
Sulfate 50.0 53.5 mg/Kg 107 80-120
Lab Sample ID: MB 500-573648/1-A Client Sample ID: Method Blank
Matrix: Solid Prep Type: Total/NA
Analysis Batch: 573666 Prep Batch: 573648
MB MB
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate <0.95 2.0 0.95 mg/Kg © 11/23/20 14:10 11/23/20 21:30 1
Lab Sample ID: MB 500-573648/1-A Client Sample ID: Method Blank
Matrix: Solid Prep Type: Total/NA
Analysis Batch: 573871 Prep Batch: 573648
MB MB
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate <0.95 2.0 0.95 mg/Kg © 11/23/20 14:10 11/24/20 15:38 1
Lab Sample ID: LCS 500-573648/2-A Client Sample ID: Lab Control Sample
Matrix: Solid Prep Type: Total/NA
Analysis Batch: 573666 Prep Batch: 573648
Spike LCS LCS %Rec.
Analyte Added Result Qualifier Unit D %Rec Limits
Sulfate 50.0 52.7 mg/Kg 105 80-120
Lab Sample ID: LCS 500-573648/2-A Client Sample ID: Lab Control Sample
Matrix: Solid Prep Type: Total/NA
Analysis Batch: 573871 Prep Batch: 573648
Spike LCS LCS %Rec.
Analyte Added Result Qualifier Unit D %Rec Limits
Sulfate 50.0 51.5 mg/Kg B 103 80-120
Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-19 MS Client Sample ID: GP-14 (0-2)
Matrix: Solid Prep Type: Total/NA
Analysis Batch: 573666 Prep Batch: 573648
Sample Sample Spike MS MS %Rec.
Analyte Result Qualifier Added Result Qualifier Unit D %Rec Limits
Sulfate 15 29.0 415 mg/Kg % 91 75.125
Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-19 MSD Client Sample ID: GP-14 (0-2)
Matrix: Solid Prep Type: Total/NA
Analysis Batch: 573666 Prep Batch: 573648
Sample Sample Spike MSD MSD %Rec. RPD
Analyte Result Qualifier Added Result Qualifier Unit D %Rec Limits RPD Limit
Sulfate 15 29.0 40.5 mg/Kg % 88 75.125 2 20

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

275

Page 35 of 52

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/25/2020



Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.

Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Lab Chronicle

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-1 (0-2)

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-1

Date Collected: 11/16/20 12:00 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number or Analyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-1 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-1
Date Collected: 11/16/20 12:00 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 82.3
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 11:17 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573285 11/20/20 11:35 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 1 573343 11/20/20 19:10 EAT TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-1 (14-15.5) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-2
Date Collected: 11/16/20 12:20 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-1 (14-15.5) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-2
Date Collected: 11/16/20 12:20 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 77.9
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number or Analyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 11:32 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573285 11/20/20 11:35 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 1 573343 11/20/20 19:22 EAT TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-2 (0.5-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-3
Date Collected: 11/16/20 13:00 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-2 (0.5-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-3
Date Collected: 11/16/20 13:00 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 82.6
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 11:35 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573285 11/20/20 11:35 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 1 573343 11/20/20 19:35 EAT TAL CHI

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

276

Page 36 of 52

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/25/2020



Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.

Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Lab Chronicle

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-3 (1-3)

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-4

Date Collected: 11/16/20 13:30 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number or Analyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-3 (1-3) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-4
Date Collected: 11/16/20 13:30 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 80.4
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 11:39 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573285 11/20/20 11:35 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 1 573343 11/20/20 19:48 EAT TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-4 (0.5-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-5
Date Collected: 11/16/20 14:20 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-4 (0.5-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-5
Date Collected: 11/16/20 14:20 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 80.2
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number or Analyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 11:42 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573285 11/20/20 11:35 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 5 573419 11/21/20 15:51 EAT TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-4 (8-10) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-6
Date Collected: 11/16/20 14:30 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-4 (8-10) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-6
Date Collected: 11/16/20 14:30 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 74.3
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 11:51 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573285 11/20/20 11:35 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 1 573343 11/20/20 20:39 EAT TAL CHI
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 277

Page 37 of 52

11/25/2020



Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.

Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Lab Chronicle

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-5 (0-2)

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-7

Date Collected: 11/16/20 15:00 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number or Analyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-5 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-7
Date Collected: 11/16/20 15:00 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 71.7
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 11:55 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573285 11/20/20 11:35 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 1 573343 11/20/20 20:51 EAT TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-5 (8-9.5) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-8
Date Collected: 11/16/20 15:10 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-5 (8-9.5) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-8
Date Collected: 11/16/20 15:10 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 77.1
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number or Analyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 11:58 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573285 11/20/20 11:35 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 1 573343 11/20/20 21:04 EAT TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-6 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-9
Date Collected: 11/16/20 15:30 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-6 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-9
Date Collected: 11/16/20 15:30 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 81.6
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 12:01 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573648 11/23/20 14:10 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 1 573666 11/23/20 22:10 EAT TAL CHI
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 278

Page 38 of 52

11/25/2020



Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Lab Chronicle

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-7 (0.5-2)
Date Collected: 11/16/20 16:20
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-10
Matrix: Solid

Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number or Analyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-7 (0.5-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-10
Date Collected: 11/16/20 16:20 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 82.1
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 12:04 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573648 11/23/20 14:10 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 1 573666 11/23/20 22:24 EAT TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-7 (10-12) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-11
Date Collected: 11/16/20 16:30 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-7 (10-12) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-11
Date Collected: 11/16/20 16:30 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 72.9
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number or Analyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 12:07 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573648 11/23/20 14:10 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 1 573666 11/23/20 23:05 EAT TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-8 (0.5-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-12
Date Collected: 11/16/20 16:50 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-8 (0.5-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-12
Date Collected: 11/16/20 16:50 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 84.7
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 12:10 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573648 11/23/20 14:10 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 5 573871 11/24/20 16:03 EAT TAL CHI
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 279

Page 39 of 52

11/25/2020



Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Lab Chronicle

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-9 (0.5-1)
Date Collected: 11/16/20 17:10
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-13
Matrix: Solid

Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number or Analyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-9 (0.5-1) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-13
Date Collected: 11/16/20 17:10 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 86.5
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 12:13 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573648 11/23/20 14:10 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 1 573666 11/23/20 23:32 EAT TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-10 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-14
Date Collected: 11/17/20 08:40 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-10 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-14
Date Collected: 11/17/20 08:40 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 82.2
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number or Analyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 12:16 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573648 11/23/20 14:10 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 1 573666 11/23/20 23:46 EAT TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-11 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-15
Date Collected: 11/17/20 09:00 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-11 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-15
Date Collected: 11/17/20 09:00 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 86.7
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 12:19 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573648 11/23/20 14:10 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 1 573666 11/23/20 23:59 EAT TAL CHI
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 280

Page 40 of 52

11/25/2020



Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Lab Chronicle

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Client Sample ID: GP-11 (6-7.5)
Date Collected: 11/17/20 09:10
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-16
Matrix: Solid

Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number or Analyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-11 (6-7.5) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-16
Date Collected: 11/17/20 09:10 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 80.3
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 12:29 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573648 11/23/20 14:10 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 1 573666 11/24/20 00:13 EAT TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-12 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-17
Date Collected: 11/17/20 10:20 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-12 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-17
Date Collected: 11/17/20 10:20 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 85.7
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number or Analyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 12:32 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573648 11/23/20 14:10 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 1 573666 11/24/20 00:26 EAT TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-13 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-18
Date Collected: 11/17/20 10:40 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-13 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-18
Date Collected: 11/17/20 10:40 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 84.5
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 12:35 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573648 11/23/20 14:10 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 5 573871 11/24/20 16:16 EAT TAL CHI

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

281
Page 41 of 52

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/25/2020



Lab Chronicle

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Job ID: 500-191255-1
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040
Client Sample ID: GP-14 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-19
Date Collected: 11/17/20 11:00 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared

Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number or Analyzed Analyst Lab

Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-14 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-19
Date Collected: 11/17/20 11:00 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 84.1
B Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared

Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab

Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI

Total/NA Analysis 6010D 5 573861 11/24/20 10:45 EEN TAL CHI

Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573648 11/23/20 14:10 EAT TAL CHI
7TotaI/NA Analysis 9056A 1 573666 11/24/20 00:54 EAT TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-15 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-20
Date Collected: 11/17/20 11:30 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared

Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab

Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573321 11/20/20 13:43 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: GP-15 (0-2) Lab Sample ID: 500-191255-20
Date Collected: 11/17/20 11:30 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 86.6
K Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared

Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number or Analyzed Analyst Lab

Total/NA Prep 3050B 573379 11/20/20 18:46 BDE TAL CHI

Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573639 11/23/20 12:42 EEN TAL CHI

Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573648 11/23/20 14:10 EAT TAL CHI
7TotaI/NA Analysis 9056A 1 573666 11/24/20 02:02 EAT TAL CHI

Laboratory References:
TAL CHI = Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago, 2417 Bond Street, University Park, IL 60484, TEL (708)534-5200

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 282
Page 42 of 52 11/25/2020



Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Accreditation/Certification Summary
Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.

Job ID: 500-191255-1

Laboratory: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
All accreditations/certifications held by this laboratory are listed. Not all accreditations/certifications are applicable to this report.

Authority Program Identification Number  Expiration Date
California State 2903 04-30-20 *
Georgia State N/A 04-30-20 *
Georgia (DW) State 939 04-30-21
Hawaii State NA 04-30-20 *
lllinois NELAP IL0O0035 04-29-21
Indiana State C-IL-02 06-29-21
lowa State 082 05-01-20 *
Kentucky (UST) State Al # 108083 04-30-20 *
Kentucky (WW) State KY90023 12-31-20
Louisiana NELAP 02046 06-30-21
Mississippi State NA 04-30-20 *
New York NELAP 12019 04-01-21
North Carolina (WW/SW) State 291 12-31-20
North Dakota State R-194 04-29-21
Oklahoma State 8908 08-31-21
South Carolina State 77001003 04-29-21
USDA US Federal Programs P330-18-00018 02-11-21
Wisconsin State 999580010 08-31-21
Wyoming State 8TMS-Q 04-30-20 *

* Accreditation/Certification renewal pending - accreditation/certification considered valid.
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 283

Page 43 of 52 11/25/2020



Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
2417 Bond Street

University Park, IL 60484
Phone (708) 534-5200 Fax (708) 534-5211

Chain of Custody Record

< eurofins

Page 44 of 52

Sampler: 4 Lab PM: Car COC No:
Client Information /. £ pT7 e NS le ) Fredrick, Sandie 500-87202-39248.1
Client Contact: Phone: E-Mail: Page:
Toni Schoen sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com Page 1 of X &
Company: 500-191255 coc Job #7 - !
Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Analysis Reque <D (ﬁ / /Z(S
Address: Due Date Requested: Preservation Codes:
735 North Water Street Suite 510 A-HCL M- Hexans
City TAT Requested (days): B - NaOH N - None
IMilwaukee C - Zn Acetate O - AsNa02
State, Zip: 1 D - Nitric Acid P - Na204S
Wi, 53202 E - NaHSO4 Q- Na2S03
Pho’ne. == F - MeOH R - Na25203
5 N -~ T - - 4
414-225-0591(Tel) Purchase Order Requested 2 X 5 76 ] Ao Asd T Tem Dadecanydrate
Email: WO #: I-ice U - Acetone
i i J - Dl Water V- MCAA
;sr;"e‘:'e:a%::eyengmee””g-com Project #: £ §’ K-EDTA W-pH4-5 .
Exide Bristol tsos-psenooze: 2 0O 1=0 2\ L= 0270 |s0018288 1. -] R Z- other (specify)
Site: , SSOW#: 2 S Jother:
364 fgde Drive, Bristo) TN “HEE 2
Sample | Matrix 21238 £
Type (we=water, 8_ - | o §
Sample | (C=comp,| owameir, €188 S
Sampile Identification Sampie Date Time G=grab) |er=tssue. a-ar) JiEfa ] 8 | 8 | & e Special Instructions/Note:
: — i3 Preservation Code: N NN X ———
( GP-1(0-2) H/H?l}o 200 | & Solid K
AH CP-1(i4-i5-5) 1220 Sold X[ x[x
3 GP*Q((LS#R) i3oe Solid ¥ | % x
¢l6P-3(i-3> 1330 Sole X x| #
- ) .
J16P-u(c.5-3) TG Sold XX |X
/Q 6?“‘“{'%‘50) {430 Solid ¥ % %
7168-5(0-2) (500 Sold * XX
6F-5(2-9-5) isie Solid XA X
G fP-6(0-2) i530 Solid * x| X
[969P-7 0.5~ | b0 Solid XXX
. 3 2 .
o 6P-T7(ic-12) 3 1630 Solid %[ x | %
Possible Hazard Identification Sample Disposal ( A fee ma)% assessed if samples are retained longer than 1 month)
- Non-Hazard Flammable l:jSkin Irritant L Poison B /X’} Unknown Radiological Return To Client Disposal By Lab Archive For Months
Deliverable Requested: I, I, Ill, IV, Other (specify) Special Instructions/QC Requirements:
:”:Pty‘ :itdielinquishecf)ﬁl __ IDate: _ ITime: _ . ]Method of Shpment:
elinquished by. ate/Time: : ompany, ecefie: D i Coi
f——— ififp0p0 600 ¥e e /s W
Relinquished by: * Date/Time: Company Rec v/ V Daté/Time! Company
Relinquished by: Date/Time: Company Receved by: Date/Time: \ Company
Custody Seals Intact: |Custody Seal No.: Cooler Temperature(s) °C and Other Remarks. / 07 f Z )
A Yegocd oy chke.‘t June.08.2022 284 (/ N4 J
- - -

7 Ver: 01/162019.1/25/2020



Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
2417 Bond Street

University Park, Il 60484

Phone (708) 534-5200 Fax (708) 534-5211

Chain of Custody Record

% eurofins

U Enviroranant Teshng
U frmerica

Sampler: - Lab PM: Carrier Tracking No(s): COC No:
Client Information [ Kol (603 e s Fredrick, Sandie 500-87202-39248.2
Client Contact: Phone- E-Mail: Page: )
Toni Schoen sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com Page 2 of ¥ ]
Company: Job, e {
Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Analysis Requested "/9/25
Address: Due Date Requested: ~{Preservation Codes:
735 North Water Street Suite 510 A-HCL M- Hexane
City: TAT Requested (days): B - NaOH N - None
Milwaukee C - Zn Acetate O - AsNa02
State, Zip: D - Nitric Acid P - Na204S
E - NaHSO4 Q- Na2803
z:l' 53202 =T F- MZOH R- szszos
one: : G - Amchl S - H2S04
414-225-0591(Tel) Purchase Order Requested 2 R 3 ,7 é "7 5 H- ASCZ,;L Acd  T- TSP Dodecahydrate
Email: WO #: g ~]l-Ice U - Acetone
tschoen@keyengineering.com g @ }J- DI Water V- MCAA
Project Name: Project #. £ 2 E:ESXA y_'o‘:rl fipeafy)
Exide Bristol 400a-0820826- 200 1-0X 1 L —004 O |s0018288 skd] o ¥
Ste: -y N - SSOWH#: g 3 3 {other:
364 (x;Ae Dol Relstol TN 318l 2 . s
Sample | Matrix §' § 3 g é ]
- =3
=COMP, | o=wasterol, EREE R
Sample identification Sample Date Time ) G=grab) | er-tissue, a-ar) 1‘_‘3[ 4818 § :§ Special Instructions/Note:
e —— — < | Preservation Code: N_PBRIN —
GP-2(0.5-2) [1fibfoo g5 | & | soi Kx X
EP-9(0-5-1) Helizie [ | s Xy X
6P-10(0=- 3D (th1lplosgo] | | sow X[ x [
§P-11(0-25 0900 s | T TX[x[X
SP-1((-1.5) 0310 Solid XX |x
Of-13({0-2) 040 sae | | [XTX]X
6P-13(0-2) [oY40 Sols XXX
69'“/(0'2\ flod Solid X| XX
6 E-15(0-3) v /130 soig x| x|
“Sofite.
—~Seiie
Possible Hazard Identification Sample Disposal ( A fee may be assessed if samples are retained longer than 1 month)
Non-Hazard Flammable Skin Irritant - Poison B w Unknown DRadiologicaI Return To Client Disposal By Lab Archive For Months
Deliverable Requested: [, 11, Ill, IV, Other (specify) Special Instructions/QC Requirements:
Empty Kit Relincﬁshed by: B lDate: ITime: P P IMethod of Shipment:
Relinquished by: Date/Time: Company/ Recgivey y D ime: Comp:
i ae— Whijzexe [boo " kew /TP Joe =18/ 0 /)5 RL
T

Page 45 of 52

Relinquished by: Date/Time Company ¢ 1 v, Date/Time: * Compan
q % \,..Ré/j Y pany
Relinquished by: Date/Time: Company Received by: Date/Time: Company
Custody Seals Intact: [Custody Seal No.: Cooler Temperature(s) “C and Other Remarks:
A YegeA _ ~lune-08-2022 285

Ver: 01162013 1/25/2020



Fredrick, Sandie

From: Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Sent: Wednesday, November 18, 2020 6:04 PM

To: Kintz, Robin

Cc: Fredrick, Sandie

Subject: FW: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. -
Exide Bristol

Attachments: COC 500-191261 (202011181118).pdf; COC 500-191260 (202011181113).pdf; COC

500-191255 (202011181126).pdf

Importance: High
EXTERNAL EMAIL* |
Can the samples from these 3 COCs still be quick turned with data due Nov 25?

From: Fredrick, Sandie <Sandra.Fredrick@Eurofinset.com>

Sent: Wednesday, November 18, 2020 8:48 AM

To: Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Cc: Evan Kotlowski <ekotlowski@keyengineering.com>

Subject: RE: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. - Exide Bristol

Hi Toni,
Fastest the lab can squeeze in right now for these is 5 day TAT. Cost x1.30

If arrival today, the due date would be next Wednesday the 25™ COB.

Thanks,
Sandie

[ Please note our adjusted hours for Thanksgiving » |

Please let us know if we met your expectations by rating the service you received from TestAmerica on this project by
visiting our website at: Project Feedback

We are thankful for your business and hope that you have a wonderful day!

Sandie Fredrick
Project Manager

Eurofins TestAmerica
2417 Bond Street
University Park, IL 60484 USA

Phone: 920-261-1660
1

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 286
Page 46 of 52 11/25/2020



E-mail: sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com

www.EurofinsUS.com | www. TestAmericainc.com | Facebook | Linkedin

From: Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Sent: Wednesday, November 18, 2020 5:33 AM

To: Fredrick, Sandie <Sandra.Fredrick@Eurofinset.com>

Cc: Evan Kotlowski <ekotlowski@keyengineering.com>

Subject: RE: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. - Exide Bristol

| EXTERNAL EMAIL* |

We shipped ~23 lead and sulfate samples to University Park yesterday. Can you let me know the cost and availability for
3 day and 5 day TAT? When would results be received given the holiday.

Thank you.

From: Fredrick, Sandie <Sandra.Fredrick@Eurofinset.com>

Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 3:59 PM

To: Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Cc: Esselman, Bernie <Bernie.Esselman@Eurofinset.com>; Hobart, Paul <Paul.Hobart@Eurofinset.com>; Evan Kotlowski
<ekotlowski@keyengineering.com>

Subject: RE: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. - Exide Bristol

Hi Toni,
Order is in for arrival to Evan by Friday at the hotel. (COC and order attached)

Happy Tuesday!
Sandie

Please let us know if we met your expectations by rating the service you received from TestAmerica on this project by
visiting our website at: Project Feedback

We are thankful for your business and hope that you have a wonderful day!

Sandie Fredrick
Project Manager

Eurofins TestAmerica
2417 Bond Street
University Park, IL 60484 USA

Phone: 920-261-1660
E-mail: sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com

2

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 287
Page 47 of 52 11/25/2020



www.EurofinsUS.com | www.TestAmericainc.com | Facebook | Linkedin

From: Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 2:48 PM

To: Fredrick, Sandie <Sandra.Fredrick@Eurofinset.com>

Cc: Esselman, Bernie <Bernie.Esselman@Eurofinset.com>; Hobart, Paul <Paul.Hobart@Eurofinset.com>; Evan Kotlowski
<ekotlowski@keyengineering.com>

Subject: RE: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. - Exide Bristol

| EXTERNAL EMAIL* |

Sandie:

Please ship containers:
e 30 soil lead and sulfate
e 12 water lead and sulfate
e 4 1L ambers, no preservative
e COCs and coolers

Hampton Inn

GUEST: Evan Kotlowski
3299 West State Street
Bristol, TN 37620

We need the containers there by the end of Friday this week.

Project No. 1903-0624-0020

From: Fredrick, Sandie <Sandra.Fredrick@Eurofinset.com>

Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 2:34 PM

To: Hobart, Paul <Paul.Hobart@Eurofinset.com>; Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Cc: Esselman, Bernie <Bernie.Esselman@Eurofinset.com>

Subject: RE: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. - Exide Bristol

Thanks Paul!

Hey Toni — let me know where, when and who to for containers if they are needed quickly.
Thanks and happy Tuesday!

Sandie

Please note our adjusted hours for Thanksgiving »

3

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 288
Page 48 of 52 11/25/2020



Please let us know if we met your expectations by rating the service you received from TestAmerica on this project by
visiting our website at: Project Feedback

We are thankful for your business and hope that you have a wonderful day!

Sandie Fredrick
Project Manager

Eurofins TestAmerica
2417 Bond Street
University Park, IL 60484 USA

Phone: 920-261-1660
E-mail: sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com

www.EurofinsUS.com | www.TestAmericainc.com | Facebook | Linkedin

From: Hobart, Paul <Paul.Hobart@Eurofinset.com>

Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 2:30 PM

To: Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Cc: Esselman, Bernie <Bernie.Esselman@Eurofinset.com>; Fredrick, Sandie <Sandra.Fredrick@Eurofinset.com>
Subject: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. - Exide Bristol

Ms. Schoen:

Attached is the price quotation you requested for your Exide Bristol. We appreciate the opportunity to work
with you on this project. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or require additional
information.

Thank you,

Paul Hobart
Manager of Client Relations Managers

Paul Hobart
Client Relations Manager

TestAmerica Laboratories, Inc.
Phone: 617-312-8660

E-mail; Paul.Hobart@FEurofinset.com
www.eurofinsus.com/env

Reference: [500-565099]
Attachments: 1

4

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 289
Page 49 of 52 11/25/2020



Please let us know if we met your expectations by rating the service you received from
Eurofins TestAmerica on this project by visiting our website at: Project Feedback

* WARNING - EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of Eurofins TestAmerica. Do not click any links or
open any attachments unless you trust the sender and know that the content is safe!

* WARNING - EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of Eurofins TestAmerica. Do not click any links or
open any attachments unless you trust the sender and know that the content is safe!

* WARNING - EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of Eurofins TestAmerica. Do not click any links or
open any attachments unless you trust the sender and know that the content is safe!

5

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 290
Page 50 of 52 11/25/2020



500-191255 Wyay,

R R
o \ T

el M

i
'

W

!
!
m
v
|’
)
b
“

Ll 980/68Y/STEI8 LT/TT OVSEITSA ™

UM

i

T ]

"EHOINY3IAO ALIHOIHd Gevb €501 GYER it

/§0S:01 AON 8} - 03M o xm_.__,m"_..

11/25/2020

h

M,r Wy TR | [ [l I8 L |18

fm _ __, L |

ww _ k { U X | | )

m 28@40X3 1 “ .u , 2

xapad |IGHNARENRERTOTNE

{ CT e : - I -vw =

.,.m. - Z02L6- 2%

0028 - §§5 o)

LOLEYSY09 I MHYd >._._...Em>_z= a

(A 133418 ONOS 1152 -
o cm<o_=u <o_mm_>_<hwmh szoz:u K

: \ 7 NP at

o . ‘. ERR , . u;wnummmumuﬁféw i

.. - “Laayis 3l g

B v T

eopowyisay |

3u smm... juswuolaug ) .
Suljoano g

31 FHT2 £X0 0621 v

5947

Parng i
‘

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022



Login Sample Receipt Checklist

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Job Number: 500-191255-1

Login Number: 191255 List Source: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
List Number: 1
Creator: James, Jeff A

Question Answer Comment
Radioactivity wasn't checked or is </= background as measured by a survey True

meter.

The cooler's custody seal, if present, is intact. True

Sample custody seals, if present, are intact. True

The cooler or samples do not appear to have been compromised or True

tampered with.

Samples were received on ice. True

Cooler Temperature is acceptable. True

Cooler Temperature is recorded. True 2.5
COC is present. True

COC is filled out in ink and legible. True

COC is filled out with all pertinent information. True

Is the Field Sampler's name present on COC? True

There are no discrepancies between the containers received and the COC.  True
Samples are received within Holding Time (excluding tests with immediate True

HTs)

Sample containers have legible labels. True
Containers are not broken or leaking. True
Sample collection date/times are provided. True
Appropriate sample containers are used. True
Sample bottles are completely filled. True
Sample Preservation Verified. True
There is sufficient vol. for all requested analyses, incl. any requested True
MS/MSDs

Containers requiring zero headspace have no headspace or bubble is N/A
<6mm (1/4").

Multiphasic samples are not present. True
Samples do not require splitting or compositing. True
Residual Chlorine Checked. N/A
Eurofins TestAmeartcagdGhidage08-2022 292

Page 52 of 52 11/25/2020



- LINKS e

rReview your project
results through

Total Access

Have a Question?

@Ask
The
Expert \

7
Visit us at:
www. eurofapeliboanen fagketJunesba-2

&> eurofins

22

Environment Testing
America

ANALYTICAL REPORT

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
2417 Bond Street

University Park, IL 60484

Tel: (708)534-5200

Laboratory Job ID: 500-191261-1
Client Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

For:

Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
735 North Water Street
Suite 510

Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202

Attn: Toni Schoen

St Judeld

Authorized for release hy:
12/1/2020 1:58:17 PM

Sandie Fredrick, Project Manager Il
(920)261-1660
sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com

The test results in this report meet all 2003 NELAC, 2009 TNI, and 2016 TNI requirements for
accredited parameters, exceptions are noted in this report. This report may not be reproduced
except in full, and with written approval from the laboratory. For questions please contact the
Project Manager at the e-mail address or telephone number listed on this page.

This report has been electronically signed and authorized by the signatory. Electronic signature is
intended to be the legally binding equivalent of a traditionally handwritten signature.

Results relate only to the itgg}js tested and the sample(s) as received by the laboratory.


https://secure.testamericainc.com/TotalAccess/login.aspx
http://www.testamericainc.com/services-we-offer/ask-the-expert
http://www.eurofinsus.com/Env
mailto:sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Laboratory Job ID: 500-191261-1

Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040
Table of Contents
Cover Page . ..o 1
Tableof Contents . . ... ... . . e 2
Case Narrative . . . ... . 3
Detection Summary . . ... 4
Method Summary . ... . . S
Sample Summary . ... 6
ClientSample Results . . . ... .. . i 7
DefiNitioNs . . .. .. 8
QC ASSOCIAtiON . . . .o 9
QC Sample ResuUlts . . . ... .. . 10
Chronicle . .. ... e 11
Certification Summary . . ... e 12
Chainof Custody . . ... .. . e 13
Receipt Checklists . . . ... ... . 20

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

294
Page 2 of 20 12/1/2020



Case Narrative
Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Job ID: 500-191261-1
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191261-1
Laboratory: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
Narrative
Job Narrative
500-191261-1
Comments

No additional comments.

Receipt
The sample was received on 11/18/2020 10:15 AM; the sample arrived in good condition, and where required, properly preserved and on
ice. The temperature of the cooler at receipt was 2.5° C.

Metals
No analytical or quality issues were noted, other than those described in the Definitions/Glossary page.

General Chemistry
No analytical or quality issues were noted, other than those described in the Definitions/Glossary page.

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 Eurofins TestAmericz?L,zChica o)

295
Page 3 of 20 /1/2020



Detection Summary

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191261-1

Client Sample ID: Storm Sewer Outfall

Lab Sample ID: 500-191261-1

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit Dil Fac D Method Prep Type
Lead 32 0.59 0.27 mg/Kg 1 x 6010D Total/NA
Sulfate 20 2.7 1.3 mg/Kg 1 1t 9056A Total/NA

This Detection Summary does not include radiochemical test results.

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

296
Page 4 of 20

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

12/1/2020



Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Method Summary

Job ID: 500-191261-1

Method Method Description Protocol Laboratory
6010D Metals (ICP) SW846 TAL CHI
9056A Anions, lon Chromatography SW846 TAL CHI
Moisture Percent Moisture EPA TAL CHI
300_Prep Anions, lon Chromatography, 10% Wt/Vol MCAWW TAL CHI
3050B Preparation, Metals SW846 TAL CHI

Protocol References:
EPA = US Environmental Protection Agency

MCAWW = "Methods For Chemical Analysis Of Water And Wastes", EPA-600/4-79-020, March 1983 And Subsequent Revisions.

SW846 = "Test Methods For Evaluating Solid Waste, Physical/Chemical Methods", Third Edition, November 1986 And Its Updates.

Laboratory References:

TAL CHI = Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago, 2417 Bond Street, University Park, IL 60484, TEL (708)534-5200

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

297
Page 5 of 20

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

12/1/2020



Sample Summary

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Job ID: 500-191261-1
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Matrix Collected Received Asset ID
500-191261-1 Storm Sewer Outfall Solid 11/17/20 12:30 11/18/20 10:15

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 298
Page 6 of 20 12/1/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191261-1

Client Sample ID: Storm Sewer Outfall
Date Collected: 11/17/20 12:30
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191261-1
Matrix: Solid
Percent Solids: 71.4

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)
Analyte Result Qualifier

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

299
Page 7 of 20

RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead 32 0.59 0.27 mg/Kg xt 11/30/20 06:33  11/30/20 20:34 1
General Chemistry
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 20 2.7 1.3 mg/Kg wt 11/23/20 14:10 11/23/20 21:57 1

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

12/1/2020



Definitions/Glossary

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191261-1

Glossary

Abbreviation

These commonly used abbreviations may or may not be present in this report.

o

%R
CFL
CFU
CNF
DER
Dil Fac
DL
DL, RA, RE, IN
DLC
EDL
LOD
LOQ
MCL
MDA
MDC
MDL
ML
MPN
MQL
NC
ND
NEG
POS
PQL
PRES
QcC
RER
RL
RPD
TEF
TEQ
TNTC

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

Listed under the "D" column to designate that the result is reported on a dry weight basis

Percent Recovery

Contains Free Liquid

Colony Forming Unit

Contains No Free Liquid

Duplicate Error Ratio (normalized absolute difference)
Dilution Factor

Detection Limit (DoD/DOE)

Indicates a Dilution, Re-analysis, Re-extraction, or additional Initial metals/anion analysis of the sample

Decision Level Concentration (Radiochemistry)
Estimated Detection Limit (Dioxin)

Limit of Detection (DoD/DOE)

Limit of Quantitation (DoD/DOE)

EPA recommended "Maximum Contaminant Level"
Minimum Detectable Activity (Radiochemistry)
Minimum Detectable Concentration (Radiochemistry)
Method Detection Limit

Minimum Level (Dioxin)

Most Probable Number

Method Quantitation Limit

Not Calculated

Not Detected at the reporting limit (or MDL or EDL if shown)
Negative / Absent

Positive / Present

Practical Quantitation Limit

Presumptive

Quality Control

Relative Error Ratio (Radiochemistry)

Reporting Limit or Requested Limit (Radiochemistry)
Relative Percent Difference, a measure of the relative difference between two points
Toxicity Equivalent Factor (Dioxin)

Toxicity Equivalent Quotient (Dioxin)

Too Numerous To Count

300
Page 8 of 20

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

12/1/2020



Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

QC Association Summary

Job ID: 500-191261-1

Metals

Prep Batch: 574410

Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191261-1 Storm Sewer Outfall Total/NA Solid 3050B
MB 500-574410/1-A Method Blank Total/NA Solid 3050B
LCS 500-574410/2-A Lab Control Sample Total/NA Solid 3050B
Analysis Batch: 574687
Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191261-1 Storm Sewer Outfall Total/NA Solid 6010D 574410
MB 500-574410/1-A Method Blank Total/NA Solid 6010D 574410
LCS 500-574410/2-A Lab Control Sample Total/NA Solid 6010D 574410
General Chemistry
Analysis Batch: 573073
Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191261-1 Storm Sewer Outfall Total/NA Solid Moisture
Prep Batch: 573648
Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191261-1 Storm Sewer Outfall Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
MB 500-573648/1-A Method Blank Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
LCS 500-573648/2-A Lab Control Sample Total/NA Solid 300_Prep
Analysis Batch: 573666
Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191261-1 Storm Sewer Outfall Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648
MB 500-573648/1-A Method Blank Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648
LCS 500-573648/2-A Lab Control Sample Total/NA Solid 9056A 573648

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

301
Page 9 of 20

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

12/1/2020



QC Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191261-1

Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)

7Lab Sample ID: MB 500-574410/1-A
Matrix: Solid
Analysis Batch: 574687

Client Sample ID: Method Blank
Prep Type: Total/NA
Prep Batch: 574410

MB MB

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac

Lead <0.23 0.50 0.23 mg/Kg ~ 11/30/20 06:33 11/30/20 19:09 1

Lab Sample ID: LCS 500-574410/2-A Client Sample ID: Lab Control Sample

Matrix: Solid Prep Type: Total/NA

Analysis Batch: 574687 Prep Batch: 574410
Spike LCS LCS %Rec.

Analyte Added Result Qualifier Unit D %Rec Limits

Lead 10.0 9.64 mg/Kg N 96  80-120

Method: 9056A - Anions, lon Chromatography

Lab Sample ID: MB 500-573648/1-A Client Sample ID: Method Blank

Matrix: Solid Prep Type: Total/NA

Analysis Batch: 573666 Prep Batch: 573648

MB MB

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac

Sulfate <0.95 2.0 0.95 mg/Kg © 11/23/20 14:10  11/23/20 21:30 1

Lab Sample ID: LCS 500-573648/2-A Client Sample ID: Lab Control Sample

Matrix: Solid Prep Type: Total/NA

Analysis Batch: 573666 Prep Batch: 573648
Spike LCS LCS %Rec.

Analyte Added Result Qualifier Unit D %Rec Limits

Sulfate 50.0 52.7 mg/Kg 105 80-120

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 302

Page 10 of 20

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

12/1/2020



Lab Chronicle

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191261-1

Client Sample ID: Storm Sewer Outfall

Lab Sample ID: 500-191261-1

Date Collected: 11/17/20 12:30 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number or Analyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Analysis Moisture 1 573073 11/19/20 11:02 LWN TAL CHI
Client Sample ID: Storm Sewer Outfall Lab Sample ID: 500-191261-1
Date Collected: 11/17/20 12:30 Matrix: Solid
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15 Percent Solids: 71.4
Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared
Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number orAnalyzed Analyst Lab
Total/NA Prep 3050B 574410 11/30/20 06:33 LMN TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 574687 11/30/20 20:34 EEN TAL CHI
Total/NA Prep 300_Prep 573648 11/23/20 14:10 EAT TAL CHI
Total/NA Analysis 9056A 1 573666 11/23/20 21:57 EAT TAL CHI

Laboratory References:

TAL CHI = Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago, 2417 Bond Street, University Park, IL 60484, TEL (708)534-5200

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 303

Page 11 of 20

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

12/1/2020



Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Accreditation/Certification Summary
Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.

Job ID: 500-191261-1

Laboratory: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
All accreditations/certifications held by this laboratory are listed. Not all accreditations/certifications are applicable to this report.

Authority Program Identification Number  Expiration Date
California State 2903 04-30-20 *
Georgia State N/A 04-30-20 *
Georgia (DW) State 939 04-30-21
Hawaii State NA 04-30-20 *
lllinois NELAP IL0O0035 04-29-21
Indiana State C-IL-02 06-29-21
lowa State 082 05-01-20 *
Kentucky (UST) State Al # 108083 04-30-20 *
Kentucky (WW) State KY90023 12-31-20
Louisiana NELAP 02046 06-30-21
Mississippi State NA 04-30-20 *
New York NELAP 12019 04-01-21
North Carolina (WW/SW) State 291 12-31-20
North Dakota State R-194 04-29-21
Oklahoma State 8908 08-31-21
South Carolina State 77001003 04-29-21
USDA US Federal Programs P330-18-00018 02-11-21
Wisconsin State 999580010 08-31-21
Wyoming State 8TMS-Q 04-30-20 *

* Accreditation/Certification renewal pending - accreditation/certification considered valid.
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 304
Page 12 of 20 12/1/2020



Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
2417 Bond Street

University Park, IL 60484
Phone (708) 534-5200 Fax (708) 534-5211

Chain of Custody Record

&% eurofins

I

aPCDoard - pPacRerIue=Uc=2U2z2

Page 13 of 20

Sampler: : @ Lab PM: COC No:
Client Information / K ot } WS ke, Fredrick, Sandie 500-87202-39248.3
Client Contact: Phane: E-Mall: 500-191261 coc Page:
Toni Schoen sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com Page 8ofS / o F i
Company . Job # —
Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Analysis Requested 56 / / P4 b/
Address: Due Date Requested: Preservation Codes:
735 North Water Street Suite 510 A-HCL M- Hexane
City: TAT Requested (days): B - NaOH N - None
Milwaukee C - Zn Acetate O - AsNa02
State, Zip: D - Nitric Acid P - Na204S
E - NaHSO4 Q- Na2s03
WI. 53202 - ) F - MeOH R - Na25203
Phone: PO #: ) 3 4 B : G - Amchior $ - H2504
414-225-0591(Tel) Purchase Order Requested . 7 Yy H - Ascorbic Acid T - TSP Dodecahydrate
Email: WO # f . {1-lce U - Acetone
tschoen@keyengineering.com ° w1 - Dl Water V- MCAA
@4y g g : 2 g | K-EDTA W -pH 4-5
Project Name: . Project # t3 E1L.e0pA Z - other (specify)
Exide Bristol 496306246020 Qoo -0 1 2~0d5 ) |50018288 P ® g
- - -3 3 ] .
Site: e ' ', SSOW#: 2 & 3 {Other:
36Y ixide Drve. Beistol, TN HE HE %
. A% 3 s ‘2
Sample | Matrix § $13(2 -g
Type {w=water, iﬁ: 23 8, - | 2
Sample |(C=comp,| omvemeer, |2 P& 8|8 g ]
Sample Identification Sample Date Time G=grab) | pr=Tissue, A=air) a% al3 |88 - Special Instructions/Note:
7 —— < Preservation Code: N BNIN I e —
Sewte Outfail ii)3e 130 | 6 Solid X|X]X
7
wSolide
~Salid=
~Sotic
~Selid.
~8alid
~Salid.
Sotic
“Hater
“Water
~Wates
Possible Hazard Identification Sample Disposal ( A fee may be,assessed if samples are retained longer than 1 month)
Non-Hazard Flammable Skin Irritant - Poison B %Unknown DRadiologica/ Return To Client Disposal By Lab ir‘IArch/ve For Months
Deliverable Requested: |, 1}, ill, IV, Other (specify) Special Instructions/QC Requirements:
Empty Kit Relinquisheii‘tif _ IDate: ‘Time: e IMethod of Shipment
Relinquished by. Date/Time: Company i 3 Datefimg;, Compay
Relinquished by: Date/Time: Company / ate/Time: Company
Relinquished by Date/Time. Company Received by: Date/Time: Company
/ .
Custody Seals Intact: JCustody Seal No.: Cooler Temperature(s) °C and Other Remarks: — .
A Yes A No _ 0’?‘/ 7.2'15
S0T N— Ver: 01/16/2019

12/1/2020



Fredrick, Sandie

From: Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Sent: Wednesday, November 18, 2020 6:04 PM

To: Kintz, Robin

Cc: Fredrick, Sandie

Subject: FW: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. -
Exide Bristol

Attachments: COC 500-191261 (202011181118).pdf; COC 500-191260 (202011181113).pdf; COC

500-191255 (202011181126).pdf

Importance: High
EXTERNAL EMAIL* |
Can the samples from these 3 COCs still be quick turned with data due Nov 25?

From: Fredrick, Sandie <Sandra.Fredrick@Eurofinset.com>

Sent: Wednesday, November 18, 2020 8:48 AM

To: Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Cc: Evan Kotlowski <ekotlowski@keyengineering.com>

Subject: RE: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. - Exide Bristol

Hi Toni,
Fastest the lab can squeeze in right now for these is 5 day TAT. Cost x1.30

If arrival today, the due date would be next Wednesday the 25™ COB.

Thanks,
Sandie

[ Please note our adjusted hours for Thanksgiving » |

Please let us know if we met your expectations by rating the service you received from TestAmerica on this project by
visiting our website at: Project Feedback

We are thankful for your business and hope that you have a wonderful day!

Sandie Fredrick
Project Manager

Eurofins TestAmerica
2417 Bond Street
University Park, IL 60484 USA

Phone: 920-261-1660
1

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 306
Page 14 of 20 12/1/2020



E-mail: sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com

www.EurofinsUS.com | www. TestAmericainc.com | Facebook | Linkedin

From: Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Sent: Wednesday, November 18, 2020 5:33 AM

To: Fredrick, Sandie <Sandra.Fredrick@Eurofinset.com>

Cc: Evan Kotlowski <ekotlowski@keyengineering.com>

Subject: RE: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. - Exide Bristol

| EXTERNAL EMAIL* |

We shipped ~23 lead and sulfate samples to University Park yesterday. Can you let me know the cost and availability for
3 day and 5 day TAT? When would results be received given the holiday.

Thank you.

From: Fredrick, Sandie <Sandra.Fredrick@Eurofinset.com>

Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 3:59 PM

To: Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Cc: Esselman, Bernie <Bernie.Esselman@Eurofinset.com>; Hobart, Paul <Paul.Hobart@Eurofinset.com>; Evan Kotlowski
<ekotlowski@keyengineering.com>

Subject: RE: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. - Exide Bristol

Hi Toni,
Order is in for arrival to Evan by Friday at the hotel. (COC and order attached)

Happy Tuesday!
Sandie

Please let us know if we met your expectations by rating the service you received from TestAmerica on this project by
visiting our website at: Project Feedback

We are thankful for your business and hope that you have a wonderful day!

Sandie Fredrick
Project Manager

Eurofins TestAmerica
2417 Bond Street
University Park, IL 60484 USA

Phone: 920-261-1660
E-mail: sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com

2

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 307
Page 15 of 20 12/1/2020



www.EurofinsUS.com | www.TestAmericainc.com | Facebook | Linkedin

From: Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 2:48 PM

To: Fredrick, Sandie <Sandra.Fredrick@Eurofinset.com>

Cc: Esselman, Bernie <Bernie.Esselman@Eurofinset.com>; Hobart, Paul <Paul.Hobart@Eurofinset.com>; Evan Kotlowski
<ekotlowski@keyengineering.com>

Subject: RE: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. - Exide Bristol

| EXTERNAL EMAIL* |

Sandie:

Please ship containers:
e 30 soil lead and sulfate
e 12 water lead and sulfate
e 4 1L ambers, no preservative
e COCs and coolers

Hampton Inn

GUEST: Evan Kotlowski
3299 West State Street
Bristol, TN 37620

We need the containers there by the end of Friday this week.

Project No. 1903-0624-0020

From: Fredrick, Sandie <Sandra.Fredrick@Eurofinset.com>

Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 2:34 PM

To: Hobart, Paul <Paul.Hobart@Eurofinset.com>; Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Cc: Esselman, Bernie <Bernie.Esselman@Eurofinset.com>

Subject: RE: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. - Exide Bristol

Thanks Paul!

Hey Toni — let me know where, when and who to for containers if they are needed quickly.
Thanks and happy Tuesday!

Sandie

Please note our adjusted hours for Thanksgiving »

3

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 308
Page 16 of 20 12/1/2020



Please let us know if we met your expectations by rating the service you received from TestAmerica on this project by
visiting our website at: Project Feedback

We are thankful for your business and hope that you have a wonderful day!

Sandie Fredrick
Project Manager

Eurofins TestAmerica
2417 Bond Street
University Park, IL 60484 USA

Phone: 920-261-1660
E-mail: sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com

www.EurofinsUS.com | www.TestAmericainc.com | Facebook | Linkedin

From: Hobart, Paul <Paul.Hobart@Eurofinset.com>

Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 2:30 PM

To: Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Cc: Esselman, Bernie <Bernie.Esselman@Eurofinset.com>; Fredrick, Sandie <Sandra.Fredrick@Eurofinset.com>
Subject: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. - Exide Bristol

Ms. Schoen:

Attached is the price quotation you requested for your Exide Bristol. We appreciate the opportunity to work
with you on this project. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or require additional
information.

Thank you,

Paul Hobart
Manager of Client Relations Managers

Paul Hobart
Client Relations Manager

TestAmerica Laboratories, Inc.
Phone: 617-312-8660

E-mail; Paul.Hobart@FEurofinset.com
www.eurofinsus.com/env

Reference: [500-565099]
Attachments: 1

4

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 309
Page 17 of 20 12/1/2020



Please let us know if we met your expectations by rating the service you received from
Eurofins TestAmerica on this project by visiting our website at: Project Feedback

* WARNING - EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of Eurofins TestAmerica. Do not click any links or
open any attachments unless you trust the sender and know that the content is safe!

* WARNING - EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of Eurofins TestAmerica. Do not click any links or
open any attachments unless you trust the sender and know that the content is safe!

* WARNING - EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of Eurofins TestAmerica. Do not click any links or
open any attachments unless you trust the sender and know that the content is safe!

5

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 310
Page 18 of 20 12/1/2020



500-191261 Wayt

i

,w,_um __ I _g. T W_ q [ i a‘_ I

,.u.w _ k it ¢ _w

|~ 3seutxz - 34 N
RELER] | L_ T I ,,
{ R . I -ywy -
o s 20278— 0098 430
v 0029 - &g {902)

a LOLEYBY09 TI NHYd >.=m=m==z=
e 133418 ONOS L14Z -

: oag_:u <o_mm_>_<5m.n SNIJ0HN3

: D Lol
T g ‘.. e f NA/.WW mmm&.muﬁféw 18 -
wu“_ ‘r\f.n ENCIETL 3
R s [T s 45

%Q@Dﬁm«

34 RIT2 EXP 06721 »

Bzt 8 1544,

M o

‘G2t £e0b e G

s Y0P YN

w_@_zs_a ALIHOId
. §OE:01 AON 81 - Cam

eopBwyysa) | -

3unssy juswuosiaug . .
SU1JoIno &%

12/1/2020

~
t

xmuou_ !

317

Page 19 of 20

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022



Login Sample Receipt Checklist

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Job Number: 500-191261-1

Login Number: 191261 List Source: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
List Number: 1
Creator: James, Jeff A

Question Answer Comment
Radioactivity wasn't checked or is </= background as measured by a survey True

meter.

The cooler's custody seal, if present, is intact. True

Sample custody seals, if present, are intact. True

The cooler or samples do not appear to have been compromised or True

tampered with.

Samples were received on ice. True

Cooler Temperature is acceptable. True

Cooler Temperature is recorded. True 2.5
COC is present. True

COC is filled out in ink and legible. True

COC is filled out with all pertinent information. True

Is the Field Sampler's name present on COC? True

There are no discrepancies between the containers received and the COC.  True
Samples are received within Holding Time (excluding tests with immediate True

HTs)

Sample containers have legible labels. True
Containers are not broken or leaking. True
Sample collection date/times are provided. True
Appropriate sample containers are used. True
Sample bottles are completely filled. True
Sample Preservation Verified. True
There is sufficient vol. for all requested analyses, incl. any requested True
MS/MSDs

Containers requiring zero headspace have no headspace or bubble is N/A
<6mm (1/4").

Multiphasic samples are not present. True
Samples do not require splitting or compositing. True
Residual Chlorine Checked. N/A

Eurofins TestAmeartcagdGhidage08-2022 312
Page 20 of 20 12/1/2020



o

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

Attachment 3

www.keyengineering.com

313

Key Engineering Group, Ltd.

o




- LINKS e

rReview your project
results through

Total Access

Have a Question?

@Ask
The
Expert \

7
Visit us at:
www. eurofapeliboanen fagketJunesba-2

&> eurofins

22

Environment Testing
America

ANALYTICAL REPORT

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
2417 Bond Street

University Park, IL 60484

Tel: (708)534-5200

Laboratory Job ID: 500-191260-1
Client Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

For:

Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
735 North Water Street
Suite 510

Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202

Attn: Toni Schoen

St Judeld

Authorized for release hy:
11/30/2020 10:12:41 AM

Sandie Fredrick, Project Manager Il
(920)261-1660
sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com

The test results in this report meet all 2003 NELAC, 2009 TNI, and 2016 TNI requirements for
accredited parameters, exceptions are noted in this report. This report may not be reproduced
except in full, and with written approval from the laboratory. For questions please contact the
Project Manager at the e-mail address or telephone number listed on this page.

This report has been electronically signed and authorized by the signatory. Electronic signature is
intended to be the legally binding equivalent of a traditionally handwritten signature.

Results relate only to the itglms tested and the sample(s) as received by the laboratory.


https://secure.testamericainc.com/TotalAccess/login.aspx
http://www.testamericainc.com/services-we-offer/ask-the-expert
http://www.eurofinsus.com/Env
mailto:sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Laboratory Job ID: 500-191260-1

Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040
Table of Contents
Cover Page . ..o 1
Tableof Contents . . ... ... . e 2
Case Narrative . . . ... 3
Detection Summary . . ... i e 4
Method Summary . ... . . S
Sample Summary . ... 6
ClientSample Results . . .. ... .. . i 7
DefiNitioNS . . .. .. 8
QC ASSOCIAtiON . . . .o 9
QC Sample ResuUlts . . . ... .. 10
Chronicle . . ... . 11
Certification Summary . . ... 12
Chainof Custody . . ... .. e 13
Receipt Checklists . . . ... ... . . 20

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

315
Page 2 of 20 11/30/2020



Case Narrative
Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Job ID: 500-191260-1
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191260-1

Laboratory: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

Narrative

Job Narrative
500-191260-1

Comments
No additional comments.

Receipt
The sample was received on 11/18/2020 10:15 AM; the sample arrived in good condition, and where required, properly preserved and on
ice. The temperature of the cooler at receipt was 2.5° C.

Metals

Method 6010D: The interference check standard solution (ICSA) associated with Analytical batch 500-573528 had results for Lead above
the reporting limit (RL). Associated samples Storm Sewer Outfall (500-191260-1) were non-detects for Lead, therefore the data has been
reported.

No additional analytical or quality issues were noted, other than those described above or in the Definitions/Glossary page.

General Chemistry
No analytical or quality issues were noted, other than those described in the Definitions/Glossary page.

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

316
Page 3 of 20 11/30/2020



Detection Summary

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191260-1

Client Sample ID: Storm Sewer Outfall

Lab Sample ID: 500-191260-1

Analyte Result Qualifier RL

MDL Unit Dil Fac D Method Prep Type
Sulfate 34 1.0 0.48 mg/L 5 9056A Total/NA
pH 7.1 HF 0.2 0.2 SU 1 SM 4500 H+ B Total/NA

This Detection Summary does not include radiochemical test results.

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

317
Page 4 of 20

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/30/2020



Method Summary

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Job ID: 500-191260-1
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Method Method Description Protocol Laboratory

6010D Metals (ICP) SW846 TAL CHI

9056A Anions, lon Chromatography SW846 TAL CHI

SM 4500 H+ B pH SM TAL CHI
3010A Preparation, Total Metals SW846 TAL CHI

Protocol References:
SM = "Standard Methods For The Examination Of Water And Wastewater"
SW846 = "Test Methods For Evaluating Solid Waste, Physical/Chemical Methods", Third Edition, November 1986 And Its Updates.

Laboratory References:
TAL CHI = Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago, 2417 Bond Street, University Park, IL 60484, TEL (708)534-5200

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 318
Page 5 of 20 11/30/2020



Sample Summary

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Job ID: 500-191260-1
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Matrix Collected Received Asset ID
500-191260-1 Storm Sewer Outfall Water 11/17/20 12:40 11/18/20 10:15

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 319
Page 6 of 20 11/30/2020



Client Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191260-1

Client Sample ID: Storm Sewer Outfall
Date Collected: 11/17/20 12:40
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15

Lab Sample ID: 500-191260-1

Matrix: Water

7Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

320
Page 7 of 20

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Lead <0.0027 * 0.0050 0.0027 mg/L "~ 11/20/20 06:07 11/20/20 23:13 1
General Chemistry

Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
Sulfate 34 1.0 0.48 mg/L N 11/24/20 19:52 5
pH 71 HF 0.2 0.2 SU 11/27/20 16:36 1

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/30/2020



Definitions/Glossary

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191260-1

Qualifiers

Metals
Qualifier

Qualifier Description

A

ICV,CCV,ICB,CCB, ISA, ISB, CRI, CRA, DLCK or MRL standard: Instrument related QC is outside acceptance limits.

General Chemistry

Qualifier Qualifier Description
HF Field parameter with a holding time of 15 minutes. Test performed by laboratory at client's request.
Glossary

Abbreviation

These commonly used abbreviations may or may not be present in this report.

jol

%R
CFL
CFU
CNF
DER
Dil Fac
DL
DL, RA, RE, IN
DLC
EDL
LOD
LOQ
MCL
MDA
MDC
MDL
ML
MPN
MQL
NC
ND
NEG
POS
PQL
PRES
QC
RER
RL
RPD
TEF
TEQ
TNTC

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

Listed under the "D" column to designate that the result is reported on a dry weight basis

Percent Recovery

Contains Free Liquid

Colony Forming Unit

Contains No Free Liquid

Duplicate Error Ratio (normalized absolute difference)
Dilution Factor

Detection Limit (DoD/DOE)

Indicates a Dilution, Re-analysis, Re-extraction, or additional Initial metals/anion analysis of the sample

Decision Level Concentration (Radiochemistry)
Estimated Detection Limit (Dioxin)

Limit of Detection (DoD/DOE)

Limit of Quantitation (DoD/DOE)

EPA recommended "Maximum Contaminant Level"
Minimum Detectable Activity (Radiochemistry)
Minimum Detectable Concentration (Radiochemistry)
Method Detection Limit

Minimum Level (Dioxin)

Most Probable Number

Method Quantitation Limit

Not Calculated

Not Detected at the reporting limit (or MDL or EDL if shown)
Negative / Absent

Positive / Present

Practical Quantitation Limit

Presumptive

Quality Control

Relative Error Ratio (Radiochemistry)

Reporting Limit or Requested Limit (Radiochemistry)
Relative Percent Difference, a measure of the relative difference between two points
Toxicity Equivalent Factor (Dioxin)

Toxicity Equivalent Quotient (Dioxin)

Too Numerous To Count

321
Page 8 of 20

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/30/2020



QC Association Summary

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191260-1

Metals
Prep Batch: 573196
Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191260-1 Storm Sewer Outfall Total/NA Water 3010A
MB 500-573196/1-A Method Blank Total/NA Water 3010A
LCS 500-573196/2-A Lab Control Sample Total/NA Water 3010A
Analysis Batch: 573528
Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191260-1 Storm Sewer Outfall Total/NA Water 6010D 573196
MB 500-573196/1-A Method Blank Total/NA Water 6010D 573196
LCS 500-573196/2-A Lab Control Sample Total/NA Water 6010D 573196
General Chemistry
Analysis Batch: 573871
Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191260-1 Storm Sewer Oultfall Total/NA Water 9056A
MB 500-573871/7 Method Blank Total/NA Water 9056A
LCS 500-573871/8 Lab Control Sample Total/NA Water 9056A
Analysis Batch: 574466
Lab Sample ID Client Sample ID Prep Type Matrix Method Prep Batch
500-191260-1 Storm Sewer Outfall Total/NA Water SM 4500 H+ B
LCS 500-574466/2 Lab Control Sample Total/NA Water SM 4500 H+ B
LCSD 500-574466/3 Lab Control Sample Dup Total/NA Water SM 4500 H+ B
500-191260-1 DU Storm Sewer Outfall Total/NA Water SM 4500 H+ B

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022

322
Page 9 of 20

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

11/30/2020



QC Sample Results

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Job ID: 500-191260-1

Method: 6010D - Metals (ICP)

7Lab Sample ID: MB 500-573196/1-A
Matrix: Water
Analysis Batch: 573528

Client Sample ID: Method Blank
Prep Type: Total/NA
Prep Batch: 573196

MB MB
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
| Lead <0.0027 * 0.0050 0.0027 mg/L ~ 11/20/20 06:07 11/20/20 21:37 1
Lab Sample ID: LCS 500-573196/2-A Client Sample ID: Lab Control Sample
Matrix: Water Prep Type: Total/NA
Analysis Batch: 573528 Prep Batch: 573196
Spike LCS LCS %Rec.
Analyte Added Result Qualifier Unit D %Rec Limits
| Lead 0.100 0.0981 * mg/L 98  80-120
Method: 9056A - Anions, lon Chromatography
Lab Sample ID: MB 500-573871/7 Client Sample ID: Method Blank
Matrix: Water Prep Type: Total/NA
Analysis Batch: 573871
MB MB
Analyte Result Qualifier RL MDL Unit D Prepared Analyzed Dil Fac
| Sulfate <0.095 0.20 0.095 mg/L N 11/24/20 16:29 1
Lab Sample ID: LCS 500-573871/8 Client Sample ID: Lab Control Sample
Matrix: Water Prep Type: Total/NA
Analysis Batch: 573871
Spike LCS LCS %Rec.
Analyte Added Result Qualifier Unit D %Rec Limits
| Sulfate 5.00 5.16 mg/L 103 80-120
Method: SM 4500 H+ B - pH
Lab Sample ID: 500-191260-1 DU Client Sample ID: Storm Sewer Outfall
Matrix: Water Prep Type: Total/NA
Analysis Batch: 574466
Sample Sample DU DU RPD
Analyte Result Qualifier Result Qualifier Unit D RPD Limit
| pH 71 HF 7.1 su B 0.4
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 323

Page 10 of 20

11/30/2020



Lab Chronicle

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Job ID: 500-191260-1
Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040
Client Sample ID: Storm Sewer Outfall Lab Sample ID: 500-191260-1
Date Collected: 11/17/20 12:40 Matrix: Water
Date Received: 11/18/20 10:15
K Batch Batch Dilution Batch Prepared

Prep Type Type Method Run Factor Number or Analyzed Analyst Lab

Total/NA Prep 3010A 573196 11/20/20 06:07 LMN TAL CHI

Total/NA Analysis 6010D 1 573528 11/20/20 23:13 JJB TAL CHI

Total/NA Analysis 9056A 5 573871 11/24/20 19:52 EAT TAL CHI

Total/NA Analysis SM 4500 H+ B 1 574466 11/27/20 16:36 SMO TAL CHI

Laboratory References:
TAL CHI = Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago, 2417 Bond Street, University Park, IL 60484, TEL (708)534-5200

Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 324
Page 11 of 20 11/30/2020



Project/Site: Exide Bristol - 2001-0212-0040

Accreditation/Certification Summary
Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd.

Job ID: 500-191260-1

Laboratory: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
All accreditations/certifications held by this laboratory are listed. Not all accreditations/certifications are applicable to this report.

Authority Program Identification Number  Expiration Date
California State 2903 04-30-20 *
Georgia State N/A 04-30-20 *
Georgia (DW) State 939 04-30-21
Hawaii State NA 04-30-20 *
lllinois NELAP IL0O0035 04-29-21
Indiana State C-IL-02 06-29-21
lowa State 082 05-01-20 *
Kentucky (UST) State Al # 108083 04-30-20 *
Kentucky (WW) State KY90023 12-31-20
Louisiana NELAP 02046 06-30-21
Mississippi State NA 04-30-20 *
New York NELAP 12019 04-01-21
North Carolina (WW/SW) State 291 12-31-20
North Dakota State R-194 04-29-21
Oklahoma State 8908 08-31-21
South Carolina State 77001003 04-29-21
USDA US Federal Programs P330-18-00018 02-11-21
Wisconsin State 999580010 08-31-21
Wyoming State 8TMS-Q 04-30-20 *

* Accreditation/Certification renewal pending - accreditation/certification considered valid.
Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 325

Page 12 of 20 11/30/2020



Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
2417 Bond Street

University Park, IL 60484

Phone (708) 534-5200 Fax (708) 534-5211

Chain of Custody Record

&% eurofins ¢ g

e S

Sampler: / . - Lab PM. Car COC No:
Client information [ Kol lowsk, Fredrick, Sandie 500191260 coe 500-87202-39248.5
Client Contact. Phone: E-Maik: Page.
Toni Schoen sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com Pagesebs /[ of /
Company: Job #,
Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Analysis Requested ‘QSD -7 i /2'(0,0
Address: Due Date Requested: Preservation Codes:
735 North Water Street Suite 510 A-HCL M- Hexane
City TAT Requested (days): B - NaOH N - None
Milwaukee C - Zn Acetate O - AsNaO2
State, Zp: D - Nitric Acid P - Na204S
WI. 53202 E - NaHSO4 Q-Na2s03
= Sl L
3 g - Amchlor -
414-225-0591(Tel) Purchase Order Requested 22 > 76 6 " H-Ascorbic Acid T - TSP Dodecahydrate
Email: WO #: E < 5 I-Ice U - Acetone
tschoen@keyengineering.com oF "] J - DI Water V- MCAA
Project Na%be' — 2 Project #: ;é’ \“.) § K-EDTA W-pH4-5
3 3 > -1 . . fi
Exide Bristol 2001-0212-0040  |s0018288 S X g L-EDA 2~ other specify)
- B
Site: . N s SSOW#: £l < 8 JOther:
364 Lecde Dryve, Brishl TN HiE HiR %
s k-2 = - .
Sample Matrix g E g.':‘l, «é
Type (w=water, if‘_: <4 (@ 3
S=sokld, - -
Sample [(C=comp,| ommstwor |2 13 3
Sample Identification Sample Date Time | G=grab) | ar-risue, a=ai) iL f 8|8 2 Special Instructions/Note:
- e : T Preservation Code: D IN R ——
Sewe ¢ Outfa|| 170140 & | wae XX
—ates
Possible Hazard Identification Sample Disposal ( A fee may pg assessed if samples are retained longer than 1 month)
Non-Hazard Flammable Skin Irritant -~ Poison B % Unknown [:Radio/ogical Return To Client Disposal By Lab Archive For Months
Deliverable Requested: |, Il, Ill, IV, Other (specify) Special Instructions/QC Requirements:
Empty Kit Relinquished by: IDate: lTime: ) IMemod of Shipment:
Reli ished by: Date/Time: i Compan: i y D. ime; [Ci
R 1712030 1600 g 7 WTB—Zo 10T 2
Relinquished by: Date/Time. Company / Date/Time: Company
Relinquished by: Date/Time: Company Received by: Date/Time: Company
Va -
Custody Seals intact: |Custody Seal No.: Cooler Temperature(s) °C and Other Remarks: (P? . { "?2— S5
-
A Yeasps éb QNSM = Lkatdiaa08.2022 226 )

Page 13 of 20

Ver: 01/1()/20111/30/2020



Fredrick, Sandie

From: Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Sent: Wednesday, November 18, 2020 6:04 PM

To: Kintz, Robin

Cc: Fredrick, Sandie

Subject: FW: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. -
Exide Bristol

Attachments: COC 500-191261 (202011181118).pdf; COC 500-191260 (202011181113).pdf; COC

500-191255 (202011181126).pdf

Importance: High
EXTERNAL EMAIL* |
Can the samples from these 3 COCs still be quick turned with data due Nov 25?

From: Fredrick, Sandie <Sandra.Fredrick@Eurofinset.com>

Sent: Wednesday, November 18, 2020 8:48 AM

To: Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Cc: Evan Kotlowski <ekotlowski@keyengineering.com>

Subject: RE: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. - Exide Bristol

Hi Toni,
Fastest the lab can squeeze in right now for these is 5 day TAT. Cost x1.30

If arrival today, the due date would be next Wednesday the 25™ COB.

Thanks,
Sandie

[ Please note our adjusted hours for Thanksgiving » |

Please let us know if we met your expectations by rating the service you received from TestAmerica on this project by
visiting our website at: Project Feedback

We are thankful for your business and hope that you have a wonderful day!

Sandie Fredrick
Project Manager

Eurofins TestAmerica
2417 Bond Street
University Park, IL 60484 USA

Phone: 920-261-1660
1

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 327
Page 14 of 20 11/30/2020



E-mail: sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com

www.EurofinsUS.com | www. TestAmericainc.com | Facebook | Linkedin

From: Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Sent: Wednesday, November 18, 2020 5:33 AM

To: Fredrick, Sandie <Sandra.Fredrick@Eurofinset.com>

Cc: Evan Kotlowski <ekotlowski@keyengineering.com>

Subject: RE: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. - Exide Bristol

| EXTERNAL EMAIL* |

We shipped ~23 lead and sulfate samples to University Park yesterday. Can you let me know the cost and availability for
3 day and 5 day TAT? When would results be received given the holiday.

Thank you.

From: Fredrick, Sandie <Sandra.Fredrick@Eurofinset.com>

Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 3:59 PM

To: Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Cc: Esselman, Bernie <Bernie.Esselman@Eurofinset.com>; Hobart, Paul <Paul.Hobart@Eurofinset.com>; Evan Kotlowski
<ekotlowski@keyengineering.com>

Subject: RE: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. - Exide Bristol

Hi Toni,
Order is in for arrival to Evan by Friday at the hotel. (COC and order attached)

Happy Tuesday!
Sandie

Please let us know if we met your expectations by rating the service you received from TestAmerica on this project by
visiting our website at: Project Feedback

We are thankful for your business and hope that you have a wonderful day!

Sandie Fredrick
Project Manager

Eurofins TestAmerica
2417 Bond Street
University Park, IL 60484 USA

Phone: 920-261-1660
E-mail: sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com

2

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 328
Page 15 of 20 11/30/2020



www.EurofinsUS.com | www.TestAmericainc.com | Facebook | Linkedin

From: Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 2:48 PM

To: Fredrick, Sandie <Sandra.Fredrick@Eurofinset.com>

Cc: Esselman, Bernie <Bernie.Esselman@Eurofinset.com>; Hobart, Paul <Paul.Hobart@Eurofinset.com>; Evan Kotlowski
<ekotlowski@keyengineering.com>

Subject: RE: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. - Exide Bristol

| EXTERNAL EMAIL* |

Sandie:

Please ship containers:
e 30 soil lead and sulfate
e 12 water lead and sulfate
e 4 1L ambers, no preservative
e COCs and coolers

Hampton Inn

GUEST: Evan Kotlowski
3299 West State Street
Bristol, TN 37620

We need the containers there by the end of Friday this week.

Project No. 1903-0624-0020

From: Fredrick, Sandie <Sandra.Fredrick@Eurofinset.com>

Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 2:34 PM

To: Hobart, Paul <Paul.Hobart@Eurofinset.com>; Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Cc: Esselman, Bernie <Bernie.Esselman@Eurofinset.com>

Subject: RE: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. - Exide Bristol

Thanks Paul!

Hey Toni — let me know where, when and who to for containers if they are needed quickly.
Thanks and happy Tuesday!

Sandie

Please note our adjusted hours for Thanksgiving »

3

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 329
Page 16 of 20 11/30/2020



Please let us know if we met your expectations by rating the service you received from TestAmerica on this project by
visiting our website at: Project Feedback

We are thankful for your business and hope that you have a wonderful day!

Sandie Fredrick
Project Manager

Eurofins TestAmerica
2417 Bond Street
University Park, IL 60484 USA

Phone: 920-261-1660
E-mail: sandra.fredrick@eurofinset.com

www.EurofinsUS.com | www.TestAmericainc.com | Facebook | Linkedin

From: Hobart, Paul <Paul.Hobart@Eurofinset.com>

Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 2:30 PM

To: Toni Schoen <tschoen@keyengineering.com>

Cc: Esselman, Bernie <Bernie.Esselman@Eurofinset.com>; Fredrick, Sandie <Sandra.Fredrick@Eurofinset.com>
Subject: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago - Quote #50018287 - Key Engineering Group, Ltd. - Exide Bristol

Ms. Schoen:

Attached is the price quotation you requested for your Exide Bristol. We appreciate the opportunity to work
with you on this project. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or require additional
information.

Thank you,

Paul Hobart
Manager of Client Relations Managers

Paul Hobart
Client Relations Manager

TestAmerica Laboratories, Inc.
Phone: 617-312-8660

E-mail; Paul.Hobart@FEurofinset.com
www.eurofinsus.com/env

Reference: [500-565099]
Attachments: 1

4

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 330
Page 17 of 20 11/30/2020



Please let us know if we met your expectations by rating the service you received from
Eurofins TestAmerica on this project by visiting our website at: Project Feedback

* WARNING - EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of Eurofins TestAmerica. Do not click any links or
open any attachments unless you trust the sender and know that the content is safe!

* WARNING - EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of Eurofins TestAmerica. Do not click any links or
open any attachments unless you trust the sender and know that the content is safe!

* WARNING - EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of Eurofins TestAmerica. Do not click any links or
open any attachments unless you trust the sender and know that the content is safe!

5

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 331
Page 18 of 20 11/30/2020



500-191260 Wayk

. a \ ) v,,mfw.‘ . 8948/085E/9r898 L1717 Suuausu‘ .‘
ﬁ v .
,ﬁ c sn- J_ 1 < o
W%goc L 4.—- —u <z
I mg_zﬁz AIMOId 24P ES0p m.gm i ,,M
 §0E:0) AON 81 — G3M T ey
WW _., | _g. Ay _: H | | _.__ s 1A mh
i L
_ 3881dX A " L
wamau_ | .L. v, ,_3. ht i S
3 th , LITETTERS
o - F02[6- 1008 J90 4,
P 002989 B0r)
3 LOLEYSY09 I MHYd >h_mmm>_z= ‘ ,. m
» 133HLS ONOE 152 *
) cw<o_=o <u_mms_<._.wm_. wz_u_omzm K
d 7 N W/ . . .at
T ‘ T R ‘o u:q.w mmmmmuﬁf.am g - "
S g | SR
“ .- - 02A0NT1 m;.cn_ d1HS . 4£96-998 Aomm aHd: QH NIDINO -
3 m ’ ,v. i ,~ .: -
g BOLIBWY}SA) - :

3unsa) juswuoliaug

Fan 5 1594,
.

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022



Login Sample Receipt Checklist

Client: Key Engineering Group, Ltd. Job Number: 500-191260-1

Login Number: 191260 List Source: Eurofins TestAmerica, Chicago
List Number: 1
Creator: James, Jeff A

Question Answer Comment
Radioactivity wasn't checked or is </= background as measured by a survey True

meter.

The cooler's custody seal, if present, is intact. True

Sample custody seals, if present, are intact. True

The cooler or samples do not appear to have been compromised or True

tampered with.

Samples were received on ice. True

Cooler Temperature is acceptable. True

Cooler Temperature is recorded. True 2.5
COC is present. True

COC is filled out in ink and legible. True

COC is filled out with all pertinent information. True

Is the Field Sampler's name present on COC? True

There are no discrepancies between the containers received and the COC.  True
Samples are received within Holding Time (excluding tests with immediate True

HTs)

Sample containers have legible labels. True
Containers are not broken or leaking. True
Sample collection date/times are provided. True
Appropriate sample containers are used. True
Sample bottles are completely filled. True
Sample Preservation Verified. True
There is sufficient vol. for all requested analyses, incl. any requested True
MS/MSDs

Containers requiring zero headspace have no headspace or bubble is N/A
<6mm (1/4").

Multiphasic samples are not present. True
Samples do not require splitting or compositing. True
Residual Chlorine Checked. N/A
Eurofins TestAmeartcagdGhidage08-2022 333

Page 20 of 20 11/30/2020



Summary of Board Orders 22-005 through 22-008: Certificate of Exemption (COE)
Renewal

The Tennessee Air Quality Act (contained in Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA) 88 68-
201-115(a)) allows local governments to adopt regulations that are not less stringent
than those of the State. Specifically, Tennessee Code Annotated 88 68-201-115(a)
states:

“(a) Any municipality or county in this state may enact, by ordinance or resolution
respectively, air pollution control regulations not less stringent than the standards
adopted for the state pursuant to this part...”

Additionally, Tennessee Code Annotated 88 68-201-115(b)(3) states:

"(3) The certificate of exemption shall be granted if the board determines that:
(A) The municipality or county has enacted provisions for the control of air
pollution not less stringent than this part;

(B) The enactments referenced in subdivision (b)(3)(A) are being, or will
be, adequately enforced; and

(C) The granting of the certificate will not interfere with the state's goal of
maintaining the purity of the air resources of the state;"

These provisions in the Tennessee Code Annotated allow the Tennessee Air Pollution
Control Board to grant a Certificate of Exemption (COE) to local jurisdictions for
exemption from State supervision.

Therefore, these petitions with supporting information are being presented to allow
entities an exemption from State supervision. These entities, referred to here as “Local
Programs”, are permitted through the Certificate of Exemption to conduct the regulatory
requirements typically conducted by the State Air Pollution Control Division. The
exemption can be for a duration up to two years (TCA 88 68-201-115(c)(1)). Also
Tennessee Code Annotated 88 68-201-115(b)(6) limits the exemption to the language
and areas of authority specifically stated in the exemption.

There are four “Local Programs” in Tennessee:

Davidson County
Hamilton County
Knox County
Shelby County

O O0OO0Oo

Each of the current Certificate of Exemption expires on June 30", 2022. The new
certificates, as proposed, are effective for the period July 1, 2022 through June 30,
2024. To renew the certificates, the Local Programs have petitioned the Technical
Secretary, on behalf of the Air Board, for renewal of the existing certificates. Each of
the Local Programs has completed a ‘Petition’ for renewal of the certificate for the Air

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 334



Board’s consideration. Additionally, the Division requested additional information for the
Board and the Division’s review. This supplemental information is made available
electronically in conjunction with the Board Packet for the June 8", 2022 meeting of the
Air Pollution Control Board. This information may be found at: Certificate of Exemption
2022 - June 8, 2022 (tn.gov).

The Technical Secretary is recommending renewal of each of the Certificates of
Exemption as outlined in the respective Board Orders.

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 335


https://www.tn.gov/content/tn/environment/program-areas/apc-air-pollution-control-home/apc/apc-board/certificate-of-exemption-2022.html
https://www.tn.gov/content/tn/environment/program-areas/apc-air-pollution-control-home/apc/apc-board/certificate-of-exemption-2022.html
https://www.tn.gov/content/tn/environment/program-areas/apc-air-pollution-control-home/apc/apc-board/certificate-of-exemption-2022.html

TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION
BUREAU OF ENVIRONMENT
DIVISION OF AIR POLLUTION CONTROL

IN THE MATTER OF: )

)
Metropolitan Government of ) Board Order No. 22-005
Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee )

CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION

BOARD ORDER

1.
Under the authority of Tennessee Code Annotated, section 68-201-115(a), a petition to
renew the Davidson County Certificate of Exemption was filed on July 29, 2021, with the
Tennessee Division of Air Pollution Control by the Metro Public Health Department for the City
of Nashville, the County of Davidson and all included municipalities.
The terms in Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-115(b)(3) state that:
"(3) The certificate of exemption shall be granted if the board determines that:
(A) The municipality or county has enacted provisions for the control of air
pollution not less stringent than this part;
(B) The enactments referenced in subdivision (b)(3)(A) are being, or will be,
adequately enforced; and
(C) The granting of the certificate will not interfere with the state's goal of
maintaining the purity of the air resources of the state;"
1.
In accordance with Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-115(b)(3), the Metro

Public Health Department does enforce regulations and/or ordinances for the control of air

pollution that are not less stringent than the State's. Therefore, the Air Pollution Control Board

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 336



of the State of Tennessee does hereby grant a Certificate of Exemption to Davidson County and
all included municipalities for a two (2) year period. The certificate goes into effect on July 1,
2022, and expires on June 30, 2024 as authorized by Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-
115(c). During this period, Davidson County and all included municipalities shall be exempt
from the provisions of the Tennessee Air Quality Act with respect to the power and authority to
enforce the following as set forth in the ordinances, regulations or other rules where indicated
below:
Ambient air quality standards;
Open burning regulations;
Visible emissions standards;
Non-process emission limitations;
Process emission limitations;
Fugitive dust regulations;
Permitting requirements:
Construction permits:
New source review (Growth Policy);
PSD authority; and
Minor source permits;
Operating Permits:
Initial and renewal; and
Federally enforceable;
Part 70 operating permits
Asbestos demolition and renovation projects
National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants and Maximum Achievable
Control Technology Standards, as set forth in TN Chapters 1200-3-11 & 31 (as adopted
from 40 CFR Parts 61 and 63) and other standards and regulations for hazardous air

pollutants (including authority to determine Maximum Achievable Control Technology
Standards) and authority to incorporate them into permits to comply with all provisions

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 337



of Section 112 of the Federal Clean Air Act and enforcement of these standards and
regulations;

Methods of sampling, testing and analysis;
Enforcement and Compliance provisions:

Instituting, or causing to be instituted in a court of competent jurisdiction, legal
proceedings to compel compliance with an order, final order, determination, rule,
regulation, or ordinance of the local Board, the Director of the Metro Public
Health Department of Nashville and Davidson County, or of any included
governmental entity;

Obtaining compliance with air pollution control rules and regulations by
conference, conciliation, persuasion, issuance of formal notices of violation and
prosecution thereof; including when appropriate, holding hearings and issuing
orders to assess civil penalties for each violation where each day of violation is a
separate offense, and providing hearings for administrative review through a local
Board of civil penalties, orders and permits, and including, when appropriate,
judicial proceedings or referral to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency or
district attorney general for prosecution;

Determining that any order, final order, determination, rule, regulation or
ordinance of the local Board, the Director of the Metro Public Health Department
or Nashville and Davidson County, or of any included governmental entity has
been violated, that such violation constitutes a public nuisance, and instituting
legal proceedings to abate a public nuisance on behalf of a municipality or a
county;

Control of emissions of particulate matter, including PM10 and PM2.5;

Control of emissions of carbon monoxide;

Control of emissions of the precursors of ozone, including volatile organic compounds
and nitrogen oxides;

Control of emissions of sulfur oxides, emissions of sulfuric acid and sulfur trioxide
(combined);

Control of emissions of lead;
Control of greenhouse gases;

Emergency episode regulations, including emergency stop orders;

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 338



New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) as set forth in TN Chapter 1200-3-16 and
Emission Guidelines in 40 CFR Part 60, after adoption as local laws, as listed below:

General provisions;

Fossil fuel-fired steam generating units of more than 250 million Btu/hr heat input
rate which commenced construction after August 17, 1971;

Electric utility steam generating units of more than 250 million Btu/hr heat input
rate which commenced construction after September 18, 1978;

Industrial-Commercial-Institutional Steam Generating Units;
Incinerators;

Municipal Waste Combustors;
Hospital/Medical/Infectious Waste Incinerators;
Portland cement plants;

Nitric acid plants;

Sulfuric acid plants;

Asphalt concrete plants (hot mix asphalt facilities);
Petroleum refineries;

Storage vessels for petroleum liquids;

Secondary lead smelters;

Secondary brass and bronze ingot production plants;

Primary emissions from basic oxygen process furnaces for which construction
commenced after January 20, 1983;

S

Sewage treatment plants;
Primary copper smelters;
Primary zinc smelters;

Primary aluminum reduction plants;

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 339



Phosphate fertilizer industry for:

Wet process phosphoric acid plants;

Super phosphoric acid plants;

Diammonium phosphate plants;

Triple superphosphate plants;

Granular triple superphosphate storage facilities;
Coal preparation plants;
Ferroalloy production facilities;

Steel plants: Electric arc furnaces constructed after October 21, 1974 and on or
before August 17, 1983;

Steel plants: Electric arc furnaces and argon-oxygen decarburization vessels
constructed after August 7, 1983;

Kraft pulp mills;

Glass manufacturing plants;

Grain elevators;

Surface coating of metal furniture;
Stationary gas turbines;

Lime manufacturing plants;

Lead-acid battery manufacturing plants;
Metallic mineral processing plants;
Automobile and light-duty truck surface coating operations;
Phosphate rock plants;

Ammonium sulfate manufacture;

Graphic arts industry: publication rotogravure printing

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 340



Pressure sensitive tape & label surface coating operations;
Industrial surface coating: large appliances;

Metal coil surface coating;

Asphalt processing and asphalt roofing manufacture;

Equipment leaks of VOC in the synthetic organic chemicals manufacturing
industry;

Beverage can surface coating industry;

Bulk-gasoline terminals;

Rubber tire manufacturing industry;

VOC emissions from the polymer manufacturing industry;
Flexible vinyl & urethane coating and printing;
Equipment leaks of VOC in petroleum refineries;
Synthetic fiber production facilities;

VOC emissions from the synthetic organic chemical manufacturing industry
(SOCMI) air oxidation unit processes;

Petroleum dry cleaners;
Equipment leaks of VOC from onshore: natural gas processing plants;
Onshore natural gas processing: SO2 emissions;

VOC emissions from the synthetic organic chemical manufacturing industry
(SOCMI) distillation operations;

Non-metallic mineral processing plants;
Wool fiberglass insulation manufacturing plants;
VOC emissions from petroleum refinery wastewater systems;

VOC emissions from the synthetic organic chemical manufacturing industry
(SOCMI) reactor processes;

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 341



Magnetic tape coating facilities;

Industrial surface coating: plastic parts for business machines;

Calciners and dryers in mineral industries;

Polymeric coating of supporting substrates facilities;

Municipal solid waste landfills;

Small municipal waste combustors;

Commercial and industrial solid waste incineration units for which construction is
commenced after November 30, 1999, or for which modification or reconstruction

is commenced on or after June 1, 2001;

Commercial and industrial solid waste incineration units that commenced
construction on or before November 30, 1999;

Other solid waste incineration units;

Coal-fired electric steam generating units;

Stationary compression ignition internal combustion engines;
Stationary spark ignition internal combustion engines;
Stationary combustion turbines;

Administrative procedures, including emissions credit banking and emissions trading
policy statements;

Monitoring, recording and reporting of source emissions;
Regulation of malfunctions, start-ups and shutdowns;
Alternate emissions limitations;
General policies or plans:
Ozone attainment and maintenance plans (SIP);
Program operating procedures;

Carbon monoxide maintenance plan (SIP);

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 342



Particulate matter control plan (PM2.5);

System of permits and/or certificates and emission fees including the Title V permit
program;

Scheduling and collecting of fees for review of plans and specifications, issuance or
renewal of permits or certificates (including Title V permit fees), inspection of air
pollutant sources, including building demolition and renovation, and computer and
research time;

Developing and recommending a comprehensive air pollution control program, reviewing
such program, and recommending changes as may be deemed appropriate;

Requiring the furnishing of information from persons causing, or who may be about to
cause air pollution;

Entering in or upon private or public property for the purpose of inspecting and
investigating any air contaminant sources;

Receiving, budgeting, receipting for and administering such monies as are appropriated
or granted for carrying out the program of the local Board;

Collecting and disseminating information relative to air pollution; encouraging voluntary
cooperation in preserving and resorting a reasonable degree of air purity; and advising,
consulting and cooperating with other agencies, persons or groups in matters pertaining
to air pollution;

Handling correspondence, keeping records, preparing reports and performing such duties
as are necessary or authorized;

Granting and denying petitions for variances after first submitting the variance to the
Metropolitan Board of Health for approval,

Regulation of infectious waste incinerators;

Good engineering practice stack height requirements;
Light duty vehicle inspection and maintenance program;
Transportation conformity rule requirements; and

Confidentiality determinations.

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 343



Approved by the following members of the Air Pollution Control Board of the State of
Tennessee and entered on this 8th day of June, 2022.

Board Order 22_005 Davidson COE 2022 a.docx

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 344



DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION
DIVISION OF AIR POLLUTION CONTROL

CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION

By authority of Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-115,
the Tennessee Air Pollution Control Board Declares that

Metropolitan Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee
and all Included Municipalities

are
exempt from the provisions of the
Tennessee Air Quality Act as found in
Tennessee Code Annotated Title 68, Chapter 201,
subject to such limitations as established by the Board pursuant
to Board Order No. 22-005, passed
by the Board on this the 8" day of June 2022

Air Pollution Control Board Members of the State of Tennessee

Expiration Date: June 30, 2024

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 345



TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION
BUREAU OF ENVIRONMENT
DIVISION OF AIR POLLUTION CONTROL

IN THE MATTER OF:

Hamilton County, Tennessee

City of Chattanooga, Tennessee

City of Collegedale, Tennessee

City of East Ridge, Tennessee

City of Lakesite, Tennessee

Town of Lookout Mountain, Tennessee
City of Red Bank, Tennessee

City of Ridgeside, Tennessee

Town of Signal Mountain, Tennessee
City of Soddy-Daisy, Tennessee
Town of Walden, Tennessee

Board Order No. 22-006

N N N N N N N N N N N N N

CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION

BOARD ORDER

l.

Under the authority of Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-115(a), a petition to
renew the Hamilton County Certificate of Exemption was filed on July 20, 2021, with the
Tennessee Division of Air Pollution Control by the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Air Pollution
Control Bureau for the City of Chattanooga, the County of Hamilton and all included
municipalities.

The terms in Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-115(b)(3) state that:

"(3) The certificate of exemption shall be granted if the board determines that:

(A) The municipality or county has enacted provisions for the control of air
pollution not less stringent than this part;

(B) The enactments referenced in subdivision (b)(3)(A) are being, or will be,
adequately enforced; and

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 346



(C) The granting of the certificate will not interfere with the state's goal of
maintaining the purity of the air resources of the state;"
I,

In accordance with Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-115(b)(3), the
Chattanooga-Hamilton County Air Pollution Control Bureau does enforce regulations and/or
ordinances for the control of air pollution that are not less stringent than the State's. Therefore,
the Air Pollution Control Board of the State of Tennessee does hereby grant a Certificate of
Exemption to Hamilton County and all included municipalities for a two (2) year period. The
certificate goes into effect on July 1, 2022, and expires on June 30, 2024 as authorized by
Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-115(c). During this period, Hamilton County and all
included municipalities shall be exempt from the provisions of the Tennessee Air Quality Act
with respect to the power and authority to enforce the following as set forth in the ordinances,
regulations or other rules where indicated below:

1. Ambient air quality standards;
2. Open burning restrictions;
3. Visible emissions limitations;

4. Non-process emission limitations (fuel burning and incinerator);

5. Process emission including process gaseous emissions limitations;

6. Fugitive dust restrictions (Transportation and Material Handling in Open Air);

7. Permitting requirements, including definitions; amendments to permits; applications;
permitting fees; emissions fees; testing; practical enforceability; monitoring; record
keeping and reporting;

8. Construction permits:

New Source Review - Growth Policy
PSD Authority

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 347



Installation Permits
9. Certificates of Operation:

Initial and Renewal
Federally Enforceable

10. Part 70 Operating Permits
11. Asbestos Demolition and Renovation Project Permits

12. All National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants, as set forth in 40 CFR
Parts 61 and 63 and other standards and regulations for hazardous air pollutants
(including authority to determine Maximum Achievable Control Technology Standards)
and authority to incorporate them into permits to comply with all provisions of Section
112 of the Federal Clean Air Act and enforcement of these standards and regulations;

13. Methods of sampling; testing and analysis;
14. Enforcement and Compliance provisions including:

Instituting, or causing to be instituted in a court of competent jurisdiction, legal
proceedings to compel compliance with any order, final order, determination, rule,
regulation or ordinance of the local Board, the director of the local Bureau, or of any
included governmental entity, including instituting legal proceedings on behalf of any
included municipality or county;

Determining that any order, final order, determination, rule, regulation or ordinance of
the local Board, the director of the local Bureau, or of any included governmental entity
has been violated, that such violation constitutes a public nuisance, and abating such a
public nuisance in the manner provided by the general law relating to the abatement of
public nuisances, including instituting legal proceedings to abate a public nuisance on
behalf of a municipality or a county;

Obtaining compliance with air pollution control rules and regulations by conference,
conciliation, persuasion, issuance of formal notices of violation and prosecution thereof;
including, when appropriate, holding hearings and issuing orders to assess civil penalties
for each violation where each day of violation is a separate offense, and including, when
appropriate, judicial proceedings or referral to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
or district attorney general for prosecution;

Pursuing enforcement of any ordinance or regulations, or orders made by the director or

the Board pursuant to the ordinance or regulations, by injunction to enjoin any violation
of any requirement of the ordinance or regulations, including conditions of a permit or

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 348



certificate of operation, or other appropriate remedy, and the Board shall have power to
institute and maintain in the name of the Board any and all enforcement proceedings.

15. Control of emissions of particulates including PM2.5 and PM10, carbon monoxide, sulfur
dioxide, nitrogen oxides, volatile organic compounds, toxic air pollutants and gaseous
emissions;

16. Control of emissions of the precursors to ozone including volatile organic compounds
and nitrogen oxides;

17. Control of emissions of sulfur oxides, and emissions of sulfuric acid and sulfur trioxide
(combined);

18. Control of emissions of lead;
19. Emergency episode regulations including emergency stop orders;

20. New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) set forth in 40 CFR Part 60, after adoption
as local laws, listed below:

General Provisions;

Fossil-fuel fired steam generating units;

Incinerators;

Municipal waste combustors;

Portland cement plants;

Sulfuric acid plants;

Nitric acid plants;

Asphalt concrete plants (hot mix asphalt facilities);

Petroleum-refineries; Storage vessels for petroleum liquids for which construction,
reconstruction, or modification commenced after June 11, 1973, and prior to May 19,

1978;

Electric utility steam generating units for which construction commenced after September
18, 1978;

Storage vessels for petroleum liquids construction after May 18, 1978 and prior to July
23, 1984;

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 349



Volatile organic liquid storage vessels (including petroleum liquid storage vessels)
constructed on or after July 23, 1984;

Secondary lead smelters;
Basic Oxygen Process Furnaces constructed after June 11, 1973, primary emissions;

Basic Oxygen Process Steelmaking Facilities constructed after January 20, 1983,
secondary emissions;

Secondary brass and bronze ingot production plants;
Iron and steel plants;
Sewage treatment plants;
Phosphate fertilizer industry:
e Wet-process phosphoric acid plants,
e Super phosphoric acid plants,
e Diammonium phosphate plants,

e Triple superphosphate plants, and
e Triple superphosphate storage facilities;

Primary aluminum reduction plants;

Coal preparation plants;

Primary copper smelters;

Primary zinc smelters;

Primary lead smelters;

Steel plants: electric arc furnaces; Ferroalloy production;
Lime manufacturing plants;

Kraft pulp mills;

Grain elevators;

Stationary gas turbines;

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 350



Ammonium sulfate manufacture;

Glass manufacturing plants;

Automobile and light duty truck surface coating operations;
Asphalt processing and asphalt roofing manufacture;
Industrial surface coating: large appliances;

Surface coating of metal furniture;

Metal coil surface coating;

Graphic arts industry: publication rotogravure printing;
Beverage can surface coating industry;

Metallic mineral processing plants;

Pressure sensitive tape and label surface coating operations;
Magnetic tape coating facilities;

Equipment leaks of VOC in the synthetic organic chemical manufacturing industry;
Bulk gasoline terminals;

Synthetic fiber production facilities;

Volatile Organic Compound (VOC) Emissions from the polymer manufacturing
industry;

Lead acid battery manufacturing plants;
Equipment leaks of VOC in petroleum refineries;
Flexible vinyl and urethane coating and printing;
Petroleum dry cleaners;

Phosphate rock plants;

Equipment leaks of VOC from onshore natural gas processing plants;

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 351



Electric arc furnaces constructed after October 21, 1974, and on or before August 17,
1983;

Electric arc furnaces and argon-oxygen decarburization vessels constructed after August
17, 1983;

Industrial surface coating: Plastic parts for business machines;
Industrial-Commercial-Institutional steam generating units;
Non-metallic mineral processing plants;

Onshore natural gas processing: SO2 emissions;

Wool fiberglass insulation manufacturing plants;
Polymeric coating of supporting substrates facilities;
Rubber tire manufacturing industry;

Calciners and Dryers in mineral industries;

New Residential Wood Heaters;

Municipal Solid Waste Landfills; and
Hospital/Medical/Infectious Waste Incinerators.

21. Administrative procedures including emissions credit banking and emissions trading
policy statements;

22. Emissions limitations and monitoring requirements;

23. Regulation of malfunctions, start-ups, and shutdowns;

24. Alternate emissions limitations;

25. General policies or plans;

26. System of permits and/or certificates to include the Title V (Part 70) permit program;

27. Scheduling and collecting fees for review of plans and specifications, issuance or renewal

of permits or certificates (including Part 70 emission fees), inspection of air pollutant
sources, building demolition and renovation, and computer and research time;

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 352



28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

Developing and recommending a comprehensive air pollution control program, reviewing
such program, and recommending such changes as may be deemed appropriate;

Requiring the furnishing of information from persons causing, or who may be about to
cause, air pollution;

Entering in or upon private or public property for the purpose of inspecting and
investigating any air contaminant source;

Providing such technical, scientific and other services as may be necessary and charging
fees for preparation, research, computer time and distribution;

Receiving, budgeting, receipting for and administering such moneys as are appropriated
or granted for carrying out the program of the local Board;

Collecting and disseminating information relative to air pollution; encouraging voluntary
cooperation in preserving and restoring a reasonable degree of air purity; and advising,
consulting and cooperating with other agencies, persons or groups in matters pertaining
to air pollution;

Handling correspondence, keeping records, preparing reports and performing such duties
as are necessary or authorized;

Granting or denying petitions for variances after first submitting variances to be issued to
the Tennessee Division of Air Pollution Control for review;

Regulation of infectious and medical waste incinerators;
Regulation of general engineering practice stack height requirements;

Abatement of air contaminants, water, steam, or a combination which reduce visibility
across any road to cause a hazard;

Transportation conformity requirements;
Confidentiality determinations;

Regulation of odors related to emissions of air contaminants and regulation of nuisances
related to emissions of air contaminants.

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 353



Approved by the following members of the Air Pollution Control Board of the State of
Tennessee and entered on this 8th day of June, 2022.

Board Order 22_006 Hamilton COE 2022 a.docx

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 354



DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION
DIVISION OF AIR POLLUTION CONTROL

CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION

By authority of Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-115,
the Tennessee Air Pollution Control Board Declares that

Chattanooga and Hamilton County, Tennessee
and all Included Municipalities

are
exempt from the provisions of the
Tennessee Air Quality Act as found in
Tennessee Code Annotated Title 68, Chapter 201,
subject to such limitations as established by the Board pursuant
to Board Order No. 22-006, passed
by the Board on this the 8" day of June 2022

Air Pollution Control Board Members of the State of Tennessee

Expiration Date: June 30, 2024

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 355



TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION
BUREAU OF ENVIRONMENT
DIVISION OF AIR POLLUTION CONTROL

IN THE MATTER OF:
Knox County, Tennessee Board Order No. 22-007
City of Knoxville, Tennessee
And all included municipalities

N N N N

CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION

BOARD ORDER

1.
Under the authority of Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-115(a), a petition to
renew the Knox County Certificate of Exemption was filed on August 2, 2021, with the
Tennessee Division of Air Pollution Control by the Knox County Department of Air Quality
Management for the City of Knoxville, the County of Knox and all included municipalities.
The terms in Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-115(b)(3) state that:
"(3) The certificate of exemption shall be granted if the board determines that:
(A) The municipality or county has enacted provisions for the control of air
pollution not less stringent than this part;
(B) The enactments referenced in subdivision (b)(3)(A) are being, or will be,
adequately enforced; and
(C) The granting of the certificate will not interfere with the state's goal of
maintaining the purity of the air resources of the state;"
1.
In accordance with Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-115(b)(3), the Knox

County Department of Air Quality Management does enforce regulations and/or ordinances for

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 356



the control of air pollution that are not less stringent than the State's. Therefore, the Air Pollution
Control Board of the State of Tennessee does hereby grant a Certificate of Exemption to Knox
County and all included municipalities for a two (2) year period. The certificate goes into effect
on July 1, 2022, and expires on June 30, 2024 as authorized by Tennessee Code Annotated
section 68-201-115(c). During this period, Knox County and all included municipalities shall be
exempt from the provisions of the Tennessee Air Quality Act with respect to the power and
authority to enforce the following as set forth in the ordinances, regulations or other rules where
indicated below:

1. Ambient air quality standards;

2. Open burning regulations;

3. Visible emission standards;

4, Non-process emission limitations;
5. Process emission limitations;

6. Fugitive dust regulations;

7. Permitting requirements:

A. Construction Permits:
(@8] New Source Review (Growth Policy)
(2 PSD Authority
€)) Minor Source Permits

B. Operating Permits:

(¢D)] Initial and Renewal
2 Federally Enforceable

C. Part 70 Operating Permits
D. Asbestos Demolition and Renovation Projects

8. National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants, and Maximum

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 357



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Achievable Control Technology Standards, as set forth in TN Chapters 1200-3-11
& 31 (as adopted from 40 CFR Parts 61 and 63) and other standards and
regulations for hazardous air pollutants (including authority to determine
Maximum Achievable Control Technology Standards) and authority to
incorporate them into permits to comply with all provisions of Section 112 of the
Federal Clean Air Act and enforcement of these standards and regulations.

Methods of sampling; testing and analysis;
Enforcement and Compliance provisions;

e Instituting, or causing to be instituted in a court of competent jurisdiction,
legal proceedings to compel compliance with any order, final order,
determination, rule, regulation or ordinance of the local Board, the director of
the Knox County Department of Air Quality Management, or of any included
governmental entity;

e Obtaining compliance with air pollution control rules and regulations by
conference, conciliation, persuasion, issuance of formal notices of violation
and prosecution thereof; including when appropriate, holding hearings and
issuing orders to assess civil penalties for each violation where each day of
violation is a separate offense, and providing hearings for administrative
review through a local Board of civil penalties, orders and permits, and
including, when appropriate, judicial proceedings or referral to the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency or district attorney general for prosecution;

e Determining that any order, final order, determination, rule, regulation or
ordinance of the local Board, the director of Knox County Department of Air
Quality Management, or of any included governmental entity has been
violated, that such violation constitutes a public nuisance, and instituting legal
proceedings to abate a public nuisance on behalf of a municipality or a
county;

Control of emissions of particulate matter including PM10, and PM2.5 and
precursors;

Control of emissions of carbon monoxide;

Control of emissions of the precursors to ozone including volatile organic
compounds and nitrogen oxides;

Control of emissions of sulfur oxides, emissions of sulfuric acid and sulfur
trioxide (combined);

Control of emissions of lead:;

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 358



16. Emergency episode regulations including emergency stop orders;

17. New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) as set forth in TN Chapter 1200-3-16
and Emission Guidelines in 40 CFR Part 60, after adoption as local laws, as listed
below:

- General Provisions;

- Fossil fuel-fired steam generating units of more than 250 million Btu/hr heat
input rate which commenced construction after August 17, 1971;

- Electric utility steam generating units of more than 250 million Btu/hr heat
input rate which commenced construction after September 18, 1978;

- Incinerators;

- Municipal waste combustors;

- Portland cement plants;

- Sulfuric acid plants;

- Nitric acid plants;

- Asphalt concrete plants (hot mix asphalt facilities);
- Petroleum refineries;

- Storage vessels for petroleum liquids for which construction, reconstruction,
or modification commenced after June 11, 1973 and prior to May 19, 1978;

- Storage vessels for petroleum liquids for which construction, reconstruction,
or modification commenced after May 18, 1978 and prior to July 23, 1984;

- Volatile organic liquid storage vessels (including petroleum liquid storage
vessels) constructed on or after July 23, 1984;

- Secondary lead smelters;
- Secondary brass and bronze ingot production plants;

- Primary emissions from basic oxygen process furnaces for which construction
is commenced after June 11, 1973;

- Secondary emissions from basic oxygen process steelmaking facilities for
which construction is commenced after January 20, 1983;

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 359



- Sewage treatment plants, incinerators;
- Phosphate fertilizer industry for:

Wet process phosphoric acid plants;

Super phosphoric acid plants;

Diammonium phosphate plants;

Triple superphosphate plants;

Granular triple superphosphate storage facilities;

- Primary aluminum reduction plants;

- Coal preparation plants;

- Iron and steel plant furnaces constructed after April 21, 1971;
- Primary copper smelters;

- Primary zinc smelters;

- Primary lead smelters;

- Steel plant electric arc furnaces constructed after October 21, 1974 and on or
before August 17, 1983;

- Ferroalloy production;

- Lime Manufacturing plants;

- Kiraft pulp mills;

- Grain elevators;

- Stationary gas turbines;

- Ammonium sulfate manufacture;

- Glass manufacturing plants;

- Automobile and Light-duty truck surface coating operations;
- Asphalt processing and asphalt roofing manufacture;

- Industrial surface coating: large appliances;

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 360



- Surface coating of metal furniture;

- Metal coil surface coating;

- Graphic arts industry: Publication Rotogravure Printing;

- Beverage can surface coating industry;

- Metallic mineral processing plants;

- Pressure sensitive tape & label surface coating operations;

- Equipment leaks of VOC in the synthetic organic chemicals manufacturing
industry;

- Bulk-gasoline terminals;

- Synthetic fiber production facilities;

- Lead-acid battery manufacturing plants;

- Equipment leaks of VOC in petroleum refineries;

- Flexible vinyl & urethane coating and printing;

- Petroleum dry cleaners;

- Phosphate rock plants;

- Equipment leaks of VOC from onshore: natural gas processing plants;

- Electric arc furnaces and argon-oxygen decarburization vessels constructed
after August 17, 1983;

- Industrial Surface Coating: plastic parts for business machines;
- Industrial-commercial institutional steam generating units;

- Onshore natural gas processing: SO2 emissions;

- Non-metallic mineral processing plants;

- Wool fiberglass insulation manufacturing plants;

- Rubber Tire Manufacturing Industry;

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 361



18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

- Calciners and Dryers in Mineral Industries;

- Municipal Solid Waste Landfills (40 CFR 60, Subpart WWW);
- Hospital Medical Infectious Waste Incinerators;

- VOC emissions from the polymer manufacturing industry;

- VOC emissions from the synthetic organic chemical manufacturing industry
(SOCMI) air oxidation unit processes;

- VOC emissions from the synthetic organic chemical manufacturing industry
(SOCMI) distillation operations;

- VOC emissions from petroleum refinery wastewater systems;

- VOC emissions from the synthetic organic chemical manufacturing industry
(SOCMI) reactor processes;

- Magnetic tape coating facilities;

- Polymeric coating of supporting substrates facilities;

- Other Solid Waste Incineration Units;

- Commercial and industrial solid waste incineration units for which
construction is commenced after November 30, 1999, or for which
modification or reconstruction is commenced on or after June 1, 2001;

- Stationary Compression Ignition Internal Combustion Engines;

- Stationary Spark Ignition Internal Combustion Engines;

- Stationary Combustion Turbines.

Administrative procedures including emissions credit banking and emissions
trading policy statements;

Monitoring, Recording, and Reporting of Source Emissions;
Regulation of malfunctions, start-ups, and shutdowns;
Alternate emissions limitations;

General policies or plans; Ozone Attainment and Maintenance Plans (SIP);
Program Operating Procedures; Carbon Monoxide Maintenance Plan (SIP);

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 362



23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

Particulate Matter Control Plan (PM25s);

System of permits and/or certificates and emission fees to include the Title V
Permit Program;

Scheduling and collecting of fees for review of plans and specifications, issuance
or renewal of permits or certificates (including Title V permit fees), inspection of
air pollutant sources, including building demolition and renovation, and computer
and research time;

Developing and recommending a comprehensive air pollution control program,
reviewing such program, and recommending changes as may be deemed
appropriate;

Requiring the furnishing of information from persons causing, or who may be
about to cause air pollution;

Entering in or upon private or public property for the purpose of inspecting and
investigating any air contaminant source;

Receiving, budgeting, receipting for and administering such monies as are
appropriated or granted for carrying out the program of the local Board;

Collecting and disseminating information relative to air pollution; encouraging
voluntary cooperation in preserving and restoring a reasonable degree of air
purity; and advising, consulting and cooperating with other agencies, persons or
groups in matters pertaining to air pollution;

Handling correspondence, keeping records, preparing reports and performing such
duties as are necessary or authorized;

Granting or denying petitions for variances after first submitting variances to be
issued to the Tennessee Division of Air Pollution Control for review;

Regulation of Infectious Waste Incinerators;
Regulation of good engineering practice stack height requirements;

Abatement of air contaminants, uncombined water, or a combination which
reduces visibility across any road to cause a hazard,;

Transportation Conformity Rule requirements;

Confidentiality determinations.

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 363



Approved by the following members of the Air Pollution Control Board of the State of
Tennessee and entered on this 8th day of June, 2022.

Board Order 22_007 Knox COE 2022 a.docx

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 364



DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION
DIVISION OF AIR POLLUTION CONTROL

CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION

By authority of Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-115,
the Tennessee Air Pollution Control Board Declares that

Knoxville and Knox County Tennessee
and all Included Municipalities

are
exempt from the provisions of the
Tennessee Air Quality Act as found in
Tennessee Code Annotated Title 68, Chapter 201
subject to such limitations as established by the Board pursuant
to Board Order No. 22-007, passed
by the Board on this the 8" day of June 2022

Air Pollution Control Board Members of the State of Tennessee

Expiration Date: June 30, 2024

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 365



TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION
BUREAU OF ENVIRONMENT
DIVISION OF AIR POLLUTION CONTROL

IN THE MATTER OF:

Shelby County, Tennessee

City of Memphis, Tennessee
Town of Arlington, Tennessee
City of Bartlett, Tennessee
Town of Collierville, Tennessee
City of Lakeland, Tennessee
City of Germantown, Tennessee
City of Millington, Tennessee

Board Order No. 22-008

N N N N N N N N N N

CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION

BOARD ORDER

1.

Under the authority of Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-115(a), a petition to
renew the Shelby County Certificate of Exemption was filed on July 8, 2021, with the Tennessee
Division of Air Pollution Control by the Shelby County Health Department Air Pollution Control
Program for the City of Memphis, the County of Shelby and all included municipalities.

The terms in Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-115(b)(3) state that:

"(3) The certificate of exemption shall be granted if the board determines that:

(A) The municipality or county has enacted provisions for the control of air
pollution not less stringent than this part;

(B) The enactments referenced in subdivision (b)(3)(A) are being, or will be,
adequately enforced; and

(C) The granting of the certificate will not interfere with the state's goal of
maintaining the purity of the air resources of the state;"

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 366



In accordance with Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-115(b)(3), the Shelby
County Air Pollution Control Program does enforce regulations and/or ordinances for the control
of air pollution that are not less stringent than the State's. Therefore, the Air Pollution Control
Board of the State of Tennessee does hereby grant a Certificate of Exemption to Shelby County
and all included municipalities for a two (2) year period. The certificate goes into effect on July
1, 2022, and expires on June 30, 2024 as authorized by Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-
201-115(c). During this period, Shelby County and all included municipalities shall be exempt
from the provisions of the Tennessee Air Quality Act with respect to the power and authority to
enforce the following as set forth in the ordinances, regulations or other rules where indicated
below:

1. Ambient air quality standards;

2. Open burning regulations;

3. Visible emission standards;

4, Non-process emission limitations;
5. Process emission limitations;

6. Fugitive dust regulations;

7. Permitting requirements:

A. Construction Permits:
(¢D)] New Source Review — Growth Policy
(2 PSD authority
€)) Minor Source Permits

B. Operating Permits:
(¢D)] Initial and Renewal
2 Federally Enforceable

C. Part 70 Operating Permits

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 367



D. Asbestos Demolition and Renovation Projects

8. All National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants, and Maximum
Achievable Control Technology Standards and other standards and regulations for
hazardous air pollutants (including authority to determine Maximum Achievable
Control Technology Standards) and authority to incorporate them into permits to
comply with all provisions of Section 112 of the Federal Clean Air Act and
enforcement of these standards and regulations;

9. Methods of sampling and analysis;
10. Enforcement and Compliance provisions:

e Determining that any decision of the local Board or of any order, final order,
determination, rule, regulation or ordinance of the Director of the Shelby
County Health Department or of her designated representative, or of any
included governmental entity, where applicable, has been violated, that such
violation constitutes a public nuisance, and abating such a public nuisance in
the manner provided by the general law relating to the abatement of public
nuisances, and instituting legal proceedings to abate a public nuisance on
behalf of a municipality or a county;

e Instituting, or causing to be instituted in a court of competent jurisdiction,
legal proceedings to compel compliance with any decision of the local Board
or with any order, final order, determination, rule, regulation or ordinance of
the Director of the Shelby County Health Department or her designated
representative, or of any included governmental entity where applicable;

e Obtaining compliance with air pollution control rules and regulations by
conference, conciliation, persuasion, issuance of formal notices of violation
and prosecution thereof; including when appropriate, holding hearings and
issuing orders to assess civil penalties for each violation where each day of
violation is a separate offense, and including, when appropriate, judicial
proceedings or referral to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency or
district attorney general for prosecution;

e Providing for appellate review by the local air board of decisions, rulings,
determinations, failure to act, or to act within a reasonable timeframe, by the
Shelby County Health Department;

11. Control of emissions of particulate matter including PM10, and PM2.5 and
precursors;

12. Control of emissions of carbon monoxide;

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 368



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Control of emissions of the precursors to ozone including volatile organic
compounds and nitrogen oxides;

Control of emissions of sulfur oxides, emissions of sulfuric acid and sulfur
trioxide (combined);

Control of emissions of lead,;

Emergency episode regulations including emergency stop orders;

New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) as set forth in Chapter 1200-3-16 and
40 CFR Part 60 and Emission Guidelines as set forth in 40 CFR Part 60, after
adoption as local laws, as listed below:

- General Provisions;

- Fossil fuel-fired steam generating units of more than 250 million Btu/hr heat
input rate which commenced construction after August 17, 1971;

- Fuelfired steam generators for which construction commenced after April 3,
1972,

- Electric utility steam generating units for which construction commenced after
September 18, 1978;

- Incinerators;

- Municipal waste combustors;

- Portland cement plants;

- Sulfuric acid plants;

- Nitric acid plants;

- Asphalt concrete plants (hot mix asphalt facilities);
- Petroleum refineries;

- Storage vessels for petroleum liquids for which construction, reconstruction,
or modification commenced after June 11, 1973 and prior to May 19, 1978;

- Storage vessels for petroleum liquids for which construction, reconstruction,
or modification commenced after May 18, 1978 and prior to July 23, 1984,

- Secondary lead smelters;

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 369



- Secondary brass and bronze ingot production plants;

- Primary emissions from basic oxygen process furnaces for which construction
is commenced after June 11, 1973;

- Sewage treatment plants, incinerators;
- Phosphate fertilizer industry for:
e \Wet process phosphoric acid plants;
e Super phosphoric acid plants;
e Diammonium phosphate plants;
e Triple superphosphate plants;
- Granular triple superphosphate storage facilities;
- Primary aluminum reduction plants;
- Coal preparation plants;
- Primary copper smelters;
- Primary zinc smelters;
- Primary lead smelters;

- Steel plant electric arc furnaces constructed after October 21, 1974 and on or
before August 17, 1983;

- Ferroalloy production;

- Lime Manufacturing plants;

- Kiraft pulp mills;

- Grain elevators;

- Stationary gas turbines;

- Ammonium sulfate manufacture;

- Glass manufacturing plants;

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 370



- Automobile and Light-duty truck surface coating operations;
- Asphalt processing and asphalt roofing manufacture;

- Industrial surface coating: large appliances;

- Surface coating of metal furniture;

- Metal coil surface coating;

- Graphic arts industry: Publication Rotogravure Printing;

- Beverage can surface coating industry;

- Metallic mineral processing plants;

- Pressure sensitive tape & label surface coating operations;

- Equipment leaks of VOC in the synthetic organic chemicals manufacturing
industry;

- Bulk-gasoline terminals;

- Synthetic fiber production facilities;

- Lead-acid battery manufacturing plants;

- Equipment leaks of VOC in petroleum refineries;

- Flexible vinyl & urethane coating and printing;

- Petroleum dry cleaners;

- Phosphate rock plants;

- Equipment leaks of VOC from onshore natural gas processing plants;

- Electric arc furnaces and argon-oxygen decarburization vessels constructed
after August 7, 1983;

- Onshore natural gas processing: SO2 emissions;

- Non-metallic mineral processing plants;

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 371



- Secondary emissions from basic oxygen process steelmaking facilities for
which construction is commenced after January 20, 1983;

- Wool fiberglass insulation manufacturing plants;

- Industrial Surface Coating: plastic parts for business machines;
- Industrial-commercial-institutional steam generating units;

- Rubber Tire Manufacturing Industry;

- Volatile organic liquid storage vessels (including petroleum liquid storage
vessels) constructed on or after July 23, 1984;

- Calciners and Dryers in Mineral Industries;

- Municipal Solid Waste Landfills;

- Small industrial-commercial-institutional steam generating units;
- Hospital/medical/infectious waste incineration;

- Volatile organic compound (VOC) emissions from the polymer manufacturing
industry;

- Volatile organic compound (VOC) emissions from the synthetic organic
chemical manufacturing industry (SOCMI) air oxidation unit processes;

- Volatile organic compound (VOC) emissions from the synthetic organic
chemical manufacturing industry (SOCMI) distillation operations;

- Volatile organic compound (VOC) emissions from petroleum refinery
wastewater systems;

- Volatile organic compound (VOC) emissions from the synthetic organic
chemical manufacturing industry (SOCMI) reactor processes;

- Magnetic tape coating facilities;

- Polymeric coating of supporting substrates facilities;

- Commercial and industrial solid waste incineration units for which
construction is commenced after November 30, 1999 or for which

modification or reconstruction is commenced on or after June 1, 2001;

18. Emission limitations for hospital/medical/infectious waste incineration;

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 372



19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

Administrative procedures including emissions credit banking and emissions
trading policy statements;

Emissions limitations and monitoring;
Regulation of malfunctions, start-ups, and shutdowns;
Alternate emissions limitations;

General policies or plans; [Ozone Attainment and Maintenance Plans (SIP); *
Program Operating Procedures; Carbon Monoxide Maintenance Plan (SIP); Lead
Maintenance Plan (SIP); Particulate Matter Control Plan (PM2s);

System of permits and/or certificates and emission fees to include the Title V
Permit Program;

Scheduling and collecting of fees for review of plans and specifications, issuance
or renewal of permits or certificates (including Title V permit fees), inspection of
air pollutant sources, including building demolition and renovation, and computer
and research time;

Developing and recommending a comprehensive air pollution control program,
reviewing such program, and recommending changes as may be deemed
appropriate;

Requiring the furnishing of information from persons causing, or who may be
about to cause air pollution;

Entering in or upon private or public property for the purpose of inspecting and
investigating any air contaminant source;

Receiving, budgeting, receipting for and administering such monies as are
appropriated or granted for carrying out the program of the local Board;

Collecting and disseminating information relative to air pollution; encouraging
voluntary cooperation in preserving and restoring a reasonable degree of air
purity; and advising, consulting and cooperating with other agencies, persons or
groups in matters pertaining to air pollution;

Handling correspondence, keeping records, preparing reports and performing such
duties as are necessary or authorized;

Granting or denying petitions for variances after first submitting variances to be
issued to the Tennessee Division of Air Pollution Control for review;

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 373



33. Regulation of Infectious Waste Incinerators;
34. Regulation of good engineering practice stack height requirements;

35. Abatement of air contaminants, uncombined water, or a combination which
reduces visibility across any road to cause a hazard,;

36. Transportation Conformity Rule requirements;

37. Confidentiality determinations.

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 374



1.

I. It has been determined that the Shelby County Health Department, Pollution Control
Section, Air Monitoring Branch’s (“SCHD”) 2019 Technical System’s Audit (“TSA”) has not
been closed out due to certain findings and concerns being left unaddressed and that this
deficiency is due to the inadequate staffing of the Shelby County Pollution Control Air
Monitoring Branch and, as such, the program is currently unable to demonstrate compliance with
all federal requirements included in 40 C.F.R. Part 58:

A. The United States Environmental Protection Agency performs TSAs of state and

local air monitoring programs in order to evaluate the operation and performance of
the air monitoring program, pursuant to 40 CFR Part 58;

B. In SCHD’s TSA Report, finding 4.5.2 indicated that standard operating procedures
(“SOP”) are out of date and do not reflect current practices and a data handling SOP
had not been developed. Specifically, the report indicates many of the SOPs were last
revised prior to 2016 and regulations and guidance have changed since those
revisions in addition to the fact that SCHD had since developed a Quality Assurance
Project Plan (“QAPP”). EPA also indicated that SCHD’s QAPP discusses data
verification and validation and provides a framework for handling generated data, but
it did not describe the verification, validation, and reduction techniques in enough
detail, nor does the QAPP discuss how the data will be consistently coded and
qualified to ensure staff consistently handle data. EPA recommended SCHD review
and revise its SOPs to ensure they reflect staff’s current practices and ensure that
measurement quality objectives for each pollutant identified in the QAPP are

achieved. Finally, EPA indicated SCHD must develop a data handling SOP that

10

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 375



includes review of all information associated to collected data, including logbooks,
forms, and PM2s laboratory data and instructions on how to consistently handle data
based on information available;

C. SCHD’s TSA report also identified concerns, labeled 4.3.1; 4.3.2; and 4.4.3 that
indicate a concern with insufficient information on forms and logbooks that impact
the ability to fully validate data to ensure all measurement quality objectives are
being achieved;

D. In its responses to questions posed by the Division in this COE renewal process,
SCHD indicated that the findings and concerns noted in B and C remain incomplete,
almost three years later due to inadequate staffing;

E. Staffing levels in the Air Monitoring Branch has historically been five employees,
and SCHD has stated that all five positions are necessary to adequately run the Air
Monitoring Branch and ensure data integrity;

F. Two of the three vacant positions in the Air Monitoring Branch have been vacant for
over eighteen months and SCHD has indicated hiring challenges such as small
applicant pools, lack of qualified candidates and the potential need for additional
funding to increase offers to qualified candidates;

G. SCHD acknowledges that data integrity will be at risk if staffing is not corrected and
indicates that the TSA findings and concerns that remain outstanding will not be
addressed until staffing vacancies have been filled; however, cannot provide any
indication of when the staffing deficiency will be corrected;

H. Sufficient air quality monitoring data that meets quality assurance and other data

integrity parameters reported to EPA’s Air Quality System (AQS) is critical for:

11

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 376



assessment of air quality,
attainment/non-attainment designations,
evaluating State Implementation Plans for non-attainment areas,
performing modeling for permit review analysis, and
prepare reports for Congress as mandated by the Clean Air Act; and
I. EPA is currently reviewing the ozone, PM, secondary SOz, NOy, and PM, and lead
NAAQS and consequently may soon revise the NAAQS, for which air quality

monitoring data of sufficient quality and quantity is critical.

I. It has been determined that the SCHD has had a significant number of permitting
activities in its Title VV program that are beyond their regulatory deadline, which may be
related to inadequate staffing or funding in the Title V program:

A. As of the time of the COE renewal process, SCHD had 30 permitting activities with
applications beyond the 18-month regulatory deadline. In the past two years, SCHD
has had about 75 permitting activities that were completed with applications beyond
the 18-month deadline;

B. SCHD reported that the Local Air Board approved a new Title V fee structure on
September 22, 2021, but the County Commission has not yet provided approval to
move forward with the new fee structure;

C. SCHD reported that it plans to get approval from the County Commission for the fee
structure as soon as possible; and

D. SCHD reported that the request for an engineer will be added to the current Title V

staff.

12

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 377



Therefore, with respect to the program identified in section | above, this certificate is being
issued conditionally with the requirement that SCHD resolve the outstanding findings and
concerns identified in the 2019 TSA and provide the Technical Secretary of the State’s Air
Pollution Control Board (“the Board”) with EPA’s TSA close out letter no later than twelve

months from the date of this Order.

The Board encourages SCHD to take whatever action may be most appropriate in order to
quickly resolve the outstanding findings and concerns identified in the 2019 TSA, including but
not limited to, supplementing current staffing with contract labor, working to resolve staffing
concerns by finding and hiring staff, or seeking any available assistance from EPA or other air
programs. In order for the Board to evaluate progress with regard to this condition, the SCHD
must, on a quarterly basis (September, December, March, and June), notify the Technical
Secretary of the State’s Air Pollution Control Board in writing of progress being made towards
making the necessary revisions to SOPs and creating an SOP to resolve the outstanding findings

and concerns noted above and receive a close out letter from EPA for SCHD’s 2019 TSA.

With respect to the program identified in section Il above, the Board encourages SCHD to take
action to correct the staffing deficiency or the lack of funding or any other factor that may be
contributing to the significant backlog in Title V permitting activities beyond regulatory

deadlines as soon as practicable.

In order to avoid the suspension of the program under the local certificate for failure to satisfy

the terms of its conditional approval by resolving the concerns about the ambient monitoring

13

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 378



program, SCHD must address and complete the work necessary to resolve the outstanding
findings and concerns identified in the 2019 TSA, and provide a 2019 TSA EPA close out letter
to the Technical Secretary of the Tennessee Air Pollution Control Board no later than twelve
months from the date of this Order demonstrating that the outstanding findings and concerns

identified in the 2019 TSA have been resolved.

As authorized by Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-115(b)(7), the Board directs that the
Division of Air Pollution Control shall, based upon the quarterly reports referenced in section |
above and any other available information, determine at this specified frequency whether or not
the SCHD will meet the condition of this exemption and comply with these provisions. If a
determination is made that the SCHD does not meet the terms of this exemption or fails to
comply with these provisions, the Division of Air Pollution Control shall so notify the Board,
and the Board, upon reasonable notice to the SCHD, may suspend the exemption in whole or in
part until such time as the SCHD resolves the outstanding findings and concerns identified in the

2019 TSA.

14

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 379



V.

Approved by the following members of the Air Pollution Control Board of the State of
Tennessee and entered on this 8th day of June, 2022.

Board Order 22_008 Shelby COE 2022 b.docx

15

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 380



DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION
DIVISION OF AIR POLLUTION CONTROL

CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION

By authority of Tennessee Code Annotated section 68-201-115,
the Tennessee Air Pollution Control Board Declares that

Memphis and Shelby County, Tennessee
and all Included Municipalities

are
exempt from the provisions of the
Tennessee Air Quality Act as found in
Tennessee Code Annotated Title 68, Chapter 201,
subject to such limitations as established by the Board pursuant
to Board Order No. 22-008, passed
by the Board on this the 8" day of June 2022

Air Pollution Control Board Members of the State of Tennessee

Expiration Date: June 30, 2024

apc_board_packet-June-08-2022 381



	apc-board_agenda-June-08-22
	Draft Minutes Feb 09 2022-lida-edits
	0400-30-38 NESHAP amendments signature copy
	0400-30-38 NESHAP amendments redline
	Draft Bristol TN Lead SIP Revision - Maintenance Plan Update_Narrative_04122022
	Draft Bristol TN Lead SIP Revision - Maintenance Plan Update_Attachment_04122022
	Limited Site Investigation Exide 364 Exide Drive Bristol TN
	combined table, figures, attachments
	1. Tables
	1. Figures
	Figure 1 Site Location
	Figure 2 Soil Boring Locations and Groundwater Analytical (2013) locked
	Figure 3 Soil Sulfate Box Plot
	1. Attachment 1
	Boring Logs Bristol - Final
	1. Attachment 2
	J191255-1 UDS Level 2 Report Final Report
	1. Cover Page
	2. Table of Contents
	3. Case Narrative
	4. Detection Summary
	5. Method Summary
	6. Sample Summary
	7. Client Sample Results
	8. Definitions
	9. QC Association
	10. QC Sample Results
	11. Chronicle
	12. Certification Summary
	13. Chain of Custody
	14. Receipt Checklists

	J191261-1 UDS Level 2 Report Final Report
	1. Cover Page
	2. Table of Contents
	3. Case Narrative
	4. Detection Summary
	5. Method Summary
	6. Sample Summary
	7. Client Sample Results
	8. Definitions
	9. QC Association
	10. QC Sample Results
	11. Chronicle
	12. Certification Summary
	13. Chain of Custody
	14. Receipt Checklists

	1. Attachment 3
	J191260-1 UDS Level 2 Report Final Report
	1. Cover Page
	2. Table of Contents
	3. Case Narrative
	4. Detection Summary
	5. Method Summary
	6. Sample Summary
	7. Client Sample Results
	8. Definitions
	9. QC Association
	10. QC Sample Results
	11. Chronicle
	12. Certification Summary
	13. Chain of Custody
	14. Receipt Checklists



	APC COE Renewal Portion Board Packet 052722
	Summary of COE Agenda Items
	Board Order 22_005 Davidson COE 2022 a
	Davidson County Certificate of Exemption 2022
	CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION
	Metropolitan Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee and all Included Municipalities
	to Board Order No. 22-005, passed

	Air Pollution Control Board Members of the State of Tennessee


	Board Order 22_006 Hamilton COE 2022 a
	Hamilton County Certificate of Exemption 2022
	CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION
	Chattanooga and Hamilton County, Tennessee
	and all Included Municipalities
	to Board Order No. 22-006, passed

	Air Pollution Control Board Members of the State of Tennessee


	Board Order 22_007 Knox COE 2022 a
	Knox County Certificate of Exemption 2022
	CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION
	Knoxville and Knox County Tennessee
	and all Included Municipalities
	to Board Order No. 22-007, passed

	Air Pollution Control Board Members of the State of Tennessee


	Board Order 22_008 Shelby COE 2022 b
	Shelby County Certificate of Exemption 2022
	CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION
	Memphis and Shelby County, Tennessee
	and all Included Municipalities
	to Board Order No. 22-008, passed

	Air Pollution Control Board Members of the State of Tennessee






